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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Kin Pang Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Group is an integrated construction contractor which provides
(i) building and ancillary services; and (i) emergency repair services.
Since its establishment in 2006, the Group has accumulated
experience in providing a wide spectrum of construction services
to its customers. The services are required in various building and
construction projects in relation to hotel and casino resorts, property
developers, infrastructures of electricity and water supply, and public
amenities and utilities (such as carriageways, footpaths, drains and
sSewers).

The building and ancillary services mainly include foundation
associated works, hard landscaping, alteration and addition works,
road works, water pipe works, electrical and mechanical works and
other ancillary building works. The emergency repair services typically
refer to provision of repair services in relation to infrastructure of
electricity and water supply on a term contract basis.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER|E

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year 2022 was marked by several challenges for the Group,
including the suspension of construction works and business
activities to comply with Macau Government regulations in July and
the outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) in Macau in
December. Despite these setbacks, the Group was able to maintain
its operations and complete its projects on schedule.

One positive outcome of the year was an improvement in the
Group’s gross profit margin, which was mainly due to (i) higher
gross profit margin recorded from bored piling works; and (i) the
effective controls on the construction costs. However, this was offset
by several negative factors, including a decrease in revenue due to
the completion of large-scale projects and an increase in finance
costs as a result of higher interest rates and borrowing amounts.
Additionally, the setup fee for the joint operations led to an increase
in administrative expenses, which further impacted the Group’s
profitability.

The Group completed 37 building and ancillary services projects and
was awarded 29 building and ancillary services projects. The Group’s
revenue decreased by approximately 37.6% from approximately
MOP959.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately MOP598.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
loss for the year of approximately MOP11.6 million.

The Group made notable strides in business development in 2022.
It was jointly awarded a contract for construction works on a public
road and drainage network by the Macau Government, alongside
a local construction company. This highlights the Group’s ability to
secure significant infrastructure projects. Additionally, the Group
received another contract for bored piling works, demonstrating
its expertise in foundation-related works. For further information on
the specifics of the bored piling works contract, kindly refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 14 September 2022.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER|E

MARKET REVIEW

As the pandemic-related restrictions in Macau were lifted, the
gaming industry and the overall economy showed signs of recovery.
However, gaming companies remained cautious in their investments,
as the expiration of gambling licenses added to the uncertainty.
Consequently, the private sector market saw a slowdown in 2022.
However, with the renewal of gambling licenses expected in
December 2022, it is anticipated that gaming companies will resume
investments, leading to an expansion of the private sector market
in late 2023 or even in 2024. Meanwhile, the public sector market
in Macau remained active, with the government launching new
construction projects, particularly in infrastructure and public housing
development in New Town Zones. The Group sees an optimistic
outlook for the overall construction market in Macau in the future.

In contrast, Hong Kong’s businesses were negatively impacted by
several Omicron outbreaks and high construction costs in 2022.
Nevertheless, the Group expects to see more business opportunities
in Hong Kong after the pandemic subsides. With strict cost control
measures in place, the Group believes the Hong Kong market can
make a more significant contribution to its businesses.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group anticipates greater activity in the
construction markets in Macau as pandemic-related restrictions are
lifted. The Group will focus on strengthening its market shares in the
public sector market in Macau and is optimistic about the potential
for growth in the private sector market, particularly with the expected
renewal of gambling licenses and the recovery of the gaming
industry. The Group will also continue to seek business opportunities
in Hong Kong as it seeks to strengthen its presence in that market.
Additionally, the Group will explore opportunities in new markets,
such as the Greater Bay Area, to further diversify its business
portfolio.

However, the Group expects that inflation and rising interest rates
will present challenges to its operations. To mitigate the impact of
expected increases in construction and finance costs, the Group
intends to improve its cost control measures further. The Group will
continue to monitor market conditions closely and adjust its strategies
as needed to maintain its financial stability and success.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER|E

The Group is committed to delivering quality projects and maintaining
its reputation in the industry. With a focus on cost control and
business development, the Group will navigate any challenges
that may arise and seize opportunities for growth. The Group’s
experienced management team position it well to weather any
economic headwinds and capitalize on emerging trends in the
construction industry. Overall, the Group remains optimistic about
its future prospects and is committed to delivering value to its
stakeholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere appreciation to our shareholders, business
partners and other professional parties for their continuous support.
| would also like to thank our management team and employees for
their exceptional effort and valuable contribution during this year. We
look forward to continuing this success moving forward.

Kong Kin |
Chairman
Hong Kong

30 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWRE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an integrated construction contractor which provides (i)
building and ancillary services; and (i) emergency repair services. The
services are required in various building and construction projects in
relation to hotel and casino resorts, infrastructures of electricity and
water supply, and public amenities and utilities (such as carriageways,
footpaths, drains and sewers).

The Group’s revenue was derived from Macau and Hong Kong and
the Group was engaged in projects in both private and public sectors.
Public sector projects refer to projects of which the project employer is
the Macau Government, while private sector projects refer to projects
that are not within the public sector. The Group’s customers mainly
included (i) hotel and casino owners or their main contractors; (ii)
electricity and water utility companies; (i) the Macau Government;
and (iv) other private developers or their contractors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 29 building and ancillary
services projects with an aggregate contract sum of MOP480.3
million were awarded. The Group had completed 37 building and
ancillary services projects during the year ended 31 December
2022. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s backlog consisted
of 12 building and ancillary services projects, which exclude those
completed but not certified with an aggregate outstanding contract
sum of MOP336.1 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue by
business segments during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021:

i 35 Bl B

A
TRBSIARENBE-T-—FR-F-—
t- A=+ BLEEREBS BEH RS
Gl

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLFE

2022 2021
—g-=f —z-—%
MOP’000 % MOP’000 %
TR % TRPIT %
Building and ancillary services FEE N ERE 597,835 99.8 949,908 99.1
Emergency repair services 2ERTS 988 0.2 9,047 0.9
Total AFt 598,823 100.0 958,955 100.0

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s total
revenue decreased by approximately MOP360.1 million or 37.6% as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease was
attributable to a decrease in building and ancillary services revenue
of approximately MOP352.1 million or 37.1% due to the completion
of large-scale projects, resulting in less such works performed
compared to the year ended 31 December 2021.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately MOP14.6 million
or 158.7% to approximately MOP23.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 from approximately MOP9.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Group’s gross profit margin increased
to approximately 4.0% for the year ended 31 December 2022 from
approximately 1.0% for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The increase in the gross profit was mainly attributable to (i) higher
gross profit margin recorded from bored piling works; and (i) the
effective controls on the construction costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Other Income, Gain and Loss

The Group’s other income, gain and loss increased by approximately
MOP2,297,000 or 224.5% from approximately MOP1,023,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately MOP3,320,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in income from rental of equipment, and
the receipt of COVID-19 related government grants during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Impairment Losses under Expected Credit Loss Model

The Group’s impairment losses under expected credit loss (“ECL”)
model were approximately MOPO0.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 and were approximately MOP1.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Group applied simplified approach to
measuring ECL which used a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables and
contract assets. To measure the ECL, except for certain balances
of contract assets being assessed on an individual basis, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately
MOP3,158,000 or 11.5% from approximately MOP27,419,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately MOP30,577,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the setup fees for the joint operations and the rent of
staff quarters for the foreign labour.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by approximately
MOP2,628,000 or 103.7% from approximately MOP2,534,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately MOP5,162,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in interest expenses on bank borrowings
and the increase in the interest rate on bank borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Income Tax Expense/(Credit)

The Group has income tax expense of MOP2,043,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022 compared to income tax credit of
approximately MOP417,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Loss for the Year

The Group’s loss for the year was approximately MOP11.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 compared to loss for the year
of approximately MOP20.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Other Comprehensive Loss for the Year

The Group’s other comprehensive loss was approximately
MOP16,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 compared to the
other comprehensive loss of approximately MOP1,204,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2021. This was mainly attributable to fair
value loss on investment in an equity instrument at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year

The Group’s total comprehensive loss was approximately MOP11.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 compared to total
comprehensive loss for the year of approximately MOP22.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. It was mainly attributable to the
combined effect of the aforementioned items.

Basic Loss per Share

The Company’s basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately MOP1.16 cents (2021: basic loss per share
of MOP2.08 cents).

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment was approximately
MOP72.9 million as at 31 December 2022 compared to
approximately MOP72.3 million as at 31 December 2021. Due
to business expansion, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment of approximately MOP15.7 million during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: approximately MOP37.7 million). The
capital expenditures were financed by the proceeds from internal
resources and general bank borrowings of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Failure to Bid New Contract

The Group’s revenue is typically derived from projects which are
non-recurrent in nature. The Group secured new businesses mainly
through direct invitation for quotation or tender by customers. Save
as the emergency repair services which are in general provided for
a term contract basis, the Group generally does not enter into long-
term agreements with its customers and its customers are therefore
under no obligation to award projects to the Group. As such, there is
no guarantee that the Group will be able to secure new businesses
from customers after completion of the existing awarded projects.
Accordingly, the number and scale of projects and the amount of
revenue the Group are able to derive therefrom may vary significantly
from period to period, and it may be difficult to forecast the volume of
future business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(Continued)

Deviation from the Actual Time and Costs Involved in
Projects

The Group needs to estimate the time and costs involved in a
project in order to determine our quotation or tender price. There
is no assurance that the actual amount of time and costs would
not exceed the Group’s estimation during the performance of our
projects. The actual amount of time and costs incurred in completing
a project may be adversely affected by many factors, including
adverse weather conditions, accidents, unforeseen site conditions,
departure of key project management personnel involved, non-
performance by the Group’s subcontractors, unexpected significant
increase in costs of construction materials agreed to be borne by
us, and other unforeseen problems and circumstances. Any material
inaccurate estimation in the time and costs involved in a project
may give rise to delays in completion of works and/or cost overruns,
which in turn may materially and adversely affect the Group’s financial
condition, profitability and liquidity. In the event that the Group fails to
secure new contracts or there is a significant decrease in the number
of tender invitations or contracts available for bidding in the future, the
business and financial position and prospects of the Group could be
materially and adversely affected.

Uncertain External Factors

The future growth and level of profitability of the construction industry
in Macau and Hong Kong are likely to depend primarily upon the
continued availability of major construction projects. The nature,
extent and timing of such projects will, however, be determined
by the interplay of a variety of factors, for example, the Macau
Government’s spending patterns on the construction industry in
Macau, the investment of property developers and land owners, the
general conditions and prospects of economy in Macau and Hong
Kong, cyclical trends in the economy as a whole, fluctuations in
interest rates and the availability of new projects in the private sector.
Furthermore, the economy of Macau substantially relies on its gaming
industry, which can be affected by various factors, including policies
and measures adopted by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and Macau Governments. In recent years, the gaming industry
experienced slowdown primarily due to the anti-corruption measures
adopted by the PRC Government.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(Continued)

Uncertain External Factors (Continued)

As a result, there is no assurance that the number of construction
projects in Macau will maintain at a desired level or continue the rising
trend in the future. In case of a drop of construction activities in any
circumstances, our business and results of operations will probably
be adversely affected. In the event that the downturn in the economy
of Macau continues or takes a turn for the worse, which may be due
to a recurrence of recession in Macau, deflation or any changes in
Macau’s currency policy, or a decrease in the demand for building
and ancillary works in Macau, the Group’s financial position and
results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Group’s customers mainly include (i) hotel and casino owners
or their main contractors; (i) electricity and water utility companies;
(iiy the Macau Government; and (iv) other private developers or their
contractors. The Group has long-standing business relationship
with some of the major customers. The Directors believe a strong
relationship with customers would increase the Group’s recognition
and visibility in the construction industry in Macau. The Group can
leverage on our existing relationship with the major customers to
further develop new business opportunities in the construction
industry.

The Group has established and maintained working relationship
with a network of suppliers and subcontractors. In the event that
any of the suppliers and subcontractors fail to provide favourable
price quotation, deliver materials in a timely manner or complete
works assigned up to the Group’s required standard, the Group
still has other approved suppliers and subcontractors in its list for
replacement. The Directors believe that such extensive network with
the major suppliers and subcontractors will enable us to have higher
chances in winning construction projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The Group has adopted the risk management and control measures
in order to ensure subcontractors’ compliance with the terms of the
subcontracting contracts and the relevant laws, rules and regulations
regarding occupational health and safety and environmental
protection. The Group conducts regular reviews, checks and
inspections on the work done by the subcontractors to ensure
that the works done are in line with the contract terms. The Group
supplies its subcontractors with the Group’s internal guidelines on
occupational health and safety and environmental protection issues
and on compliance with applicable rules and regulations, and require
them to follow.

The Group has an experienced management team in the Macau
and Hong Kong construction industry and have maintained good
relationship with our employees. The Group has not experienced
any significant problems with the employees or any disruption to the
operations due to labour disputes nor has the Group experienced any
material difficulties in the recruitment and retention of experienced
core staff or skilled personnel. The Group provides various training to
the employees and sponsor the employees to attend various training
courses, such as those on occupational health and safety in relation
to the work.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group believes that its stringent quality assurance system and
strong commitment to environmental management will allow the
Group to be better positioned to deliver quality works on time and
within budget, thereby strengthening its position as an established
construction contractor in Macau.

The Group has set up an environmental management system to
promote environmental awareness and to prevent pollution of the
environment resulting from projects undertaken by the Group. Since
June 2015, the Group assessed and certified to have complied with
the requirements of ISO 14001: 2004 (currently ISO 14001: 2015) for
our environmental management system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT
REGULATIONS

The Group mainly undertakes building and ancillary services and
emergency repair services in Macau and Hong Kong. The Directors
confirmed that during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Group had obtained all the
registrations and certifications required for its business and operations
and had complied with the applicable laws and regulations in Macau
and Hong Kong in all material respects.

CORPORATE FINANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately MOP18.9 million (2021: MOP10.3 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had an aggregate of pledged
bank deposits of approximately MOP67.3 million (2021: MOP48.6
million) that are used to secure banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings amounted to
approximately MOP127.7 million (2021: MOP130.2 million), including
bank overdrafts of approximately MOP13.6 million (2021: Nil).
The bank borrowings amounts containing on demand clause of
approximately MOP81.1 million, MOP2.4 million, and MOP1.8 million
(2021: MOP48.7 million, MOP2.2 million, and MOP3.7 million) will
mature within one year, one year to two years and two years to
five years respectively. The bank borrowings amounts repayable
on demand due to breach of loan covenants were approximately
MOP42.4 million (2021: MOP75.6 million).

Current ratio remained 1.4 times as at 31 December 2022 compared
to 1.4 times as at 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

CORPORATE FINANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure
(Continued)

Gearing ratio is calculated based on debts divided by the total equity
as at the respective reporting dates. Gearing ratio increased from
61.2% as at 31 December 2021 to 63.5% as at 31 December 2022.
It was mainly due to the greater decrease in total equity than in debts
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the share capital and equity attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately MOP10.3 million
and approximately MOP201.3 million, respectively (2021: MOP10.3
million and MOP212.9 million, respectively).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitments
for purchases of property, plant and equipment of approximately
MOP1,953,000 (2021: MOP1,112,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, performance guarantees of approximately
MOP358.8 million (2021: MOP178.7 million) were given by the
banks in favour of the Group’s customers as security for the due
performance and observance of the Group’s obligations under the
contracts entered into between the Group and their customers.
The Group has contingent liabilities to indemnify the banks for any
claims from customers under the guarantees due to the failure of the
Group’s performance. The performance guarantees will be released
upon completion of the contract works. At the end of the reporting
period, the management of the Group does not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

CORPORATE FINANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Currency Risk

The Group entities collect most of the revenue and incur most of the
expenditures in their respective functional currencies. The Group is
exposed to currency risk primarily through sales proceeds received
from customers and the proceeds from issue of shares upon share
offer that are denominated in a currency other than the Group entities’
functional currency. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
Hong Kong dollar.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group’s bank
deposits and borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of prevailing market
interest rates arising from the Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and MOP best lending rate, MIBOR and HIBOR arising from
the Group’s variable-rate bank borrowings. The Group does not use
financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.

Other Price Risk

As at 31 December 2021, the Group was exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in equity securities measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). The Group
invested in an unquoted equity security of an investee operating in
construction industry sector for long term strategic purposes which
had been designated as FVTOCI. The Group had appointed a special
team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

CORPORATE FINANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
contract assets, other receivables and deposits, amount due from a
joint operation, pledged bank deposits and bank balances as at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge the obligations
by counter-parties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the end of the reporting period.

The Group has concentration of credit risks as 51.8% (2021: 43.4%)
and 88.7% (2021: 86.4%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors respectively
within the building and ancillary services segment. In order to
minimise the risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.

For other receivables and deposits, the Directors make periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables and
deposits based on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information.

The credit risk for pledged bank deposits and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group did not have any material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries or associated companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group had no significant investment.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any
other plans for material investments or capital assets during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 538 full-time employees as at 31 December 2022
(2021: 416).

The Group offers remuneration packages that includes salary,
discretionary bonuses and other cash subsidies. In general, the
Group determines employee salaries based on each employee’s
qualifications, position and seniority. The Group has designed an
annual review system to assess the performance of our employees,
which forms the basis of the decisions with respect to salary raises,
bonuses and promotions.

The Group’s gross staff costs from operations (including the
Director’s emoluments) was approximately MOP93.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: MOP103.6 million).

The Company adopted a share option scheme so that the Company
may grant options to the eligible persons as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolutions passed
on 24 November 2017. The Share Option Scheme enables the
Company to grant share options to the eligible persons as incentives
or rewards for their contributions to the Group. No share option has
been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption on 24 November 2017 and up to 31
December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to the relevant requirement under the Rules (the “Listing
Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the change in Directors’
information during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out
below:

Mr. Kong was appointed as a committee member of the 14th
Qingdao Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (CPPCC) (FF B A RBUA €% 5 +0UfE
EEMZE ) since April 2022.

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

As pandemic-related restrictions in Macau are lifted, the Group
anticipates greater activity in the construction markets. The Group will
focus on strengthening its market shares in the public sector market
in Macau and is optimistic about the potential for growth in the private
sector market. The Group will also seek business opportunities in
Hong Kong to strengthen its presence in that market. Additionally, the
Group will explore opportunities in new markets, such as the Greater
Bay Area, to further diversify its business portfolio.

The Group expects inflation and rising interest rates to present
challenges to its operations. To mitigate the impact of expected
increases in construction and finance costs, the Group intends to
improve its cost control measures further. The Group will continue to
monitor market conditions closely and adjust its strategies as needed
to maintain its financial stability and success.

Overall, the Group remains committed to delivering quality projects
and maintaining its reputation in the industry. With a focus on cost
control and business development, the Group is well-positioned to
navigate any challenges that may arise and seize opportunities for
growth. The Group remains optimistic about its prospects and is
focused on executing its strategies to achieve long-term success.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kong Kin | (5E 4 52 55 &), aged 53, co-founded the Group in
June 2006, and was appointed as a Director on 22 June 2017 and
was re-designated as the chairman, executive Director and chief
executive officer on 20 July 2017. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible
for overall management of the corporate strategic planning, business
development and daily operation of the Group. He also serves as the
director of each subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Kong has over 30 years of experience in construction industry. He
founded Kin Pang Construction and Engineering Company Limited
(“Kin Pang”) in June 2006 and Construtor Civil Kong Kin | in March
1991 respectively. Mr. Kong was appointed as a vice president
of Macau Association of Concrete Inspection, Maintenance and
Waterproofing (BFTREE 10 4 & K& [5/K T2 %) in March 2016.
Mr. Kong was also appointed as a vice president of J2F9JE{= T pg
¥ B A & (Shun De Federation and Commercial Union Association
of Macao*) since September 2016. Mr. Kong was further appointed
as a vice president, the 10th supervisory council of 8 9 i & /g €
(Macau Construction Association) since January 2021. Mr. Kong was
appointed as a committee member of the 14th Qingdao Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(CPPCCO) (FEIARBUAHEERFE TINESTSMEE®) since April
2022.

Mr. Kong is the husband of Ms. Choi Fong Lan, an executive
Director, and the father of Ms. Kong Ka Wan, a member of senior
management.

For Mr. Kong’s interest in the shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in this
report.

Ms. Choi Fong Lan (#BlBZ %), aged 57, co-founded the Group
in June 2006 and was appointed as a Director on 22 June 2017 and
was re-designated as an executive Director on 20 July 2017. Ms.
Choi is primarily responsible for overall management, administrative
matter and daily operation of the Group. She also serves as the
director of each subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Choi worked in % B 2 7K B A R 2 & (Union Garment
Factory Limited*) as a worker from September 1980 to January 1994.

*  For identification only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. Choi is the wife of Mr. Kong Kin |, the chairman, executive
Director and chief executive officer, and the mother of Ms. Kong Ka
Wan, a member of senior management.

For Ms. Choi’s interest in the shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in this
report.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky ( 5k 1& @ 5 &), aged 49, joined the
Group and was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 24 November 2017. Mr. Cheung is primarily responsible for
overseeing the Group with an independent perspective and judgment.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung has been a consultant of Loeb
& Loeb LLP, a law firm in Hong Kong, since April 2015. Mr. Cheung
served as a solicitor in D.S. Cheung & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong,
in May 2013 and was further promoted to a partner in July 2014. Mr.
Cheung had been a senior associate in Mayer Brown for the periods
from November 2008 to September 2012, and from September 2001
to December 2007.

Mr. Cheung has been an independent non-executive director of AV
Promotions Holdings Limited (AV £ &1 1 & (12 % ) B IR 2 7)) (Hong
Kong stock code: 8419) since December 2017. Mr. Cheung was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Century
Group International Holdings Limited ( t 42 & BAERAEA)
(formerly known as CHerish Holdings Limited (3R Z2 3% i% A& R 2 7))
(Hong Kong stock code: 2113) from September 2016 to May 2020,
an independent non-executive director of Geotech Holdings Ltd. (X
SRS AR A A)) (Hong Kong stock code: 1707) from September
2017 to January 2019 and an independent non-executive director of
Cornerstone Technologies Holdings Limited (£ A B £ & A R A
&) ) (formerly known as Elegance Commercial and Financial Printing
Group Limited (F57%f 7 3 81 15 ENRIEE B IR A 7)) (Hong Kong stock
code: 8391) from April 2018 to October 2018.

Mr. Cheung is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and was admitted
as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in November 1998.
He obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws and a degree of
Bachelor of Laws from The University of Hong Kong in June 1996
and November 1995 respectively.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Cheung Kin Wing (3R i &8 5% 4 ), aged 68, joined the Group
and was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 24
November 2017. Mr. Cheung is primarily responsible for overseeing
the Group with an independent perspective and judgement. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung has been a director and lead
consultant of Sunplex Consultants Limited, a company providing
management consulting service and human resources related IT
solution service, since February 1999. Mr. Cheung has been a
director of Self Strengthening Service Centre Limited ( & 38 AR %
LEBRAT]), a company limited by guarantee engaged in charitable
activities to help the underprivileged, since September 2019. He
was a consultant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants between April 2008 and August 2008, and a director
of the finance and operations department of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants between July 2004 and April 2008.
Mr. Cheung had been registered as a practising partner of Coopers
& Lybrand (a registered CPA firm that has changed its name to
PricewaterhouseCoopers since October 1998) from March 1993 to
June 1999.

Mr. Cheung has been an independent non-executive director of ENM
Holdings Limited (&2 %% A R 2 7)) (Hong Kong stock code: 0128)
since June 2016, and an independent non-executive director of
BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (25 E B (L2 ) $22 %
BBR A7) (Hong Kong stock code: 1338) since November 2014. Mr.
Cheung was an independent non-executive director of Trio Industrial
Electronics Group Limited (M E T2 E 7 &£ B AR 2 al) (Hong
Kong stock code: 1710) from February 2017 until May 2022, and
an independent director of AXA China Region Trustees Limited from
August 1999 until August 2015, and an independent non-executive
director of Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (XX iBR1TIE5EE
FR 72 7)) since November 2003 until January 2018.

Mr. Cheung has been a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since February 2015 and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since May 1986. He obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from The
University of Calgary in Canada in June 1979.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Zhao Zhipeng (i 7 g 5t &), aged 39, joined the Group and
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 24
November 2017. Mr. Zhao is primarily responsible for overseeing
the Group with an independent perspective and judgment. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Zhao has been working in Patrick Mak & Tse
Solicitors, a law firm in Hong Kong since 2011 and is currently its
senior partner.

Mr. Zhao has been appointed as the company secretary of ArtGo
Holdings Limited (F=12R% % PR A 7)) (Hong Kong stock code: 3313)
since June 2016, and an independent non-executive director of
Hanvey Group Holdings Limited ([&{& & &% %A R A 7)) (Hong Kong
stock code: 8219) since June 2018.

Mr. Zhao is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and was admitted as
a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in December 2013. Mr.
Zhao obtained Postgraduate Certificate in Laws and a degree of Juris
Doctor from City University of Hong Kong in July 2011 and October
2009 respectively. He also obtained a degree of Master of Laws
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 2007 and a
degree of Bachelor of laws from The East China University of Political
Science and Law in China in July 2006.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Fan Cheuk Lun (% = {f 5% &), aged 44, joined the Group in
February 2017 and was appointed as the financial controller of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company on 22 February
2017 and 20 July 2017 respectively. Mr. Fan is primarily responsible
for accounting, financial management and company secretarial
matters of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan had served
as a finance manager in Risun Coal Chemicals Group Limited (JEF5
HAL T&£ B AR A R]), a coking and coal chemicals company, from
June 2010 to February 2017. He worked as a consultant of Wise Top
Management Limited (%5 7 & 12 A BR A 7)) from September 2002 to
May 2010, primarily responsible for various PRC assignments.

Mr. Fan has been admitted as an associate of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators since November 2015. He has been
registered as a chartered global management accountant of American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since July 2012 and admitted
as a member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since December 2010. He has been registered as a certified
public accountant of Washington State Board of Accountancy
since November 2010. Mr. Fan obtained a degree of Master of
Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in September 2015 and a degree of Bachelor of Commerce from The
University of British Columbia in Canada in May 2002. Mr. Fan was
awarded a diploma of Arts and Science in Commerce from Langara
College in Canada in May 2000.

Ms. Kong Ka Wan ( 28 5 #8 &2 &), aged 30, joined the Group in
October 2015 as the administrative officer of Kin Pang and was
promoted to the human resources and administrative manager of Kin
Pang on 13 June 2016. Ms. Kong is primarily responsible for overall
administrative and human resource management of the Group.

Ms. Kong graduated from The University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom with a degree of Master of Science in Human Resource
Management and Employment Relations in November 2015. She
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in the Social Sciences
in Economics and Management Sciences from University of
Southampton in the United Kingdom in June 2014.

Ms. Kong is the daughter of Mr. Kong Kin |, the chairman, executive
Director and chief executive officer, and Ms. Choi Fong Lan, an
executive Director.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Ng Kin Fai (SREFEFE4AE), aged 54, joined the Group in May 2013
as the project manager of Kin Pang and was promoted to the senior
project manager of Kin Pang on 11 May 2015. Mr. Ng is primarily
responsible for the overall management of the Group’s construction
projects in Macau. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng worked as an
engineer of East Pacific (Holdings) Limited (3G & EBAR AR, a
real estate company, from July 2011 to April 2013, mainly responsible
for the management of construction projects in Shenzhen. From July
1996 to July 2011, he worked at Hip Hing Construction Co., Ltd. (1%
B AR A 7)) (“Hip Hing”), a construction company in Hong Kong.
He joined Hip Hing as an assistant project co-ordinator in July 1996
and was further promoted to a project co-ordinator in January 2001
and a senior project co-ordinator in October 2007.

Mr. Ng graduated from City College of San Francisco in United
States with a degree of Associate in Science and fulfilled the specified
requirements in construction management in May 1996. He further
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in the Construction Project
Management from University of Central Lancashire in the United
Kingdom in December 2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fan Cheuk Lun ( # £ {f 5 4 ), aged 44, was appointed as
company secretary of the Group on 20 July 2017. Please refer to the
sub-section headed “Senior Management” in this section for details of
his biography.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of corporate
governance standard. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework for the
Company to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that for the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied with all
applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code except the
deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, the Company
does not have a separate chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Kong Kin | currently performs these two roles. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring the consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning of the Group. Besides, with three independent non-
executive Directors out of a total of five Directors in the Board, there
will be sufficient independent voice within the Board to protect the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Therefore,
the Board considers that the balance of power and authority for
the present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
effectively. The Board will continue to review and consider splitting
the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into
account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions of the Company by the
Directors. Upon specific enquiries of all Directors, each of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

Corporate Culture

The Board and the management of the Group set the tone and shape
the corporate culture, which is underpinned by the core values of
acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly across all levels of the Group.
The Board leads the management in defining the purpose, values
and strategic direction of the Group and in fostering a corporate
culture that is building a long-term sustainable business models
where customers, partners, investors, suppliers and employees can
benefit in the shared value of corporate success. The desired culture
is developed and reflected consistently in the Group’s business
operations, workplace policies and practices as well as relationships
with the Shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board, together
with the management of the Group, create an organizational culture
of maintaining and developing an effective corporate governance
framework with stringent corporate governance practices and
mechanism through workforce engagement, employee retention and
training, robust financial reporting, whistleblowing, data privacy and
anti-corruption policies, and legal and regulatory compliance. Taking
into account the corporate culture in a range of contexts, the Board
considers that the Group’s culture, purpose, values and strategy are
aligned.

Corporate Strategy

In order to achieve the Group’s principal objective of enhancing
long-term values and interests to the Shareholders and other
stakeholders, the Group focuses on achieving sustainable growth
in both financial and environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
performance. The Group executes disciplined management of
revenue and profitability, margin and costs, capital and investment
return and other financing activities. The “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT”
and the “MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” in this
annual report include discussions and analyses of the Group’s
performance, the basis on which the Board directs to generate the
Group’s core values in the longer term and delivers the Group’s
corporate culture, strategy and objectives. The Group is increasingly
conscious on ESG and focusing on supporting the global low-carbon
and sustainable future transition. Further details on the Group’s ESG
initiatives and relationships with its key stakeholders are disclosed in
the “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT” of
this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board consists of five Directors including Mr. Kong Kin | (chairman
and chief executive officer) and Ms. Choi Fong Lan as the executive
Directors and Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky, Mr. Cheung Kin Wing
and Mr. Zhao Zhipeng as the independent non-executive Directors.
Their name and biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

Save that Mr. Kong Kin | and Ms. Choi Fong Lan are spouses, there
are no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
members of the Board.

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members

Regular Board meeting should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

The attendance record of each Director at the Board committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in
the table below:
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EENA EEE RRBEFAE HFHESE REEET BEREEE
Mr. Kong Kin | ERREE 14/14 11 11 1/1 N/A i
Ms. Choi Fong Lan REEZT 14/14 1/1 N/A TN A N/A A N/A TEFR
Mr. Cheung WaiLun Jacky — R{EfR%EE 14/14 1/1 11 1/1 4/4
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing RIERLE 14/14 1/1 1/1 N/A TNE R 4/4
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng HEWLE 14/14 1/1 N/A TNEA 11 4/4
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors, representing at least
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
period of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”).

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent views
are available to the Board. The summary of the mechanisms is set
out below:

(i) Composition

The Board ensures the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one-third of
its members being independent non-executive Directors (or
such higher threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules
from time to time), with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Further,
independent non-executive Directors will be appointed to Board
committees as required under the Listing Rules and as far as
practicable to ensure independent views are available.

(ii) Independence Assessment

The nomination committee of the Company strictly adheres
to the nomination policy with regard to the nomination and
appointment of independent non-executive Directors, and is
mandated to assess annually the independence of independent
non-executive Directors to ensure that they can continually
exercise independent judgement.

(i) Compensation
No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to independent non-executive
Directors as this may lead to bias in their decision-making and
compromise their objectivity and independence.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

(iv) Board Decision Making

Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are
entitled to seek further information from the management on
the matters to be discussed at Board meetings and, where
necessary, independent advice from external professional
advisers at the Company’s expense.

A Director (including independent non-executive Directors) who
has a material interest in a contract, transaction or arrangement
shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any Board
resolution approving the same.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
independent non-executive Directors as mentioned in item (i) above.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Nomination Policy of Directors

The Company has adopted a nomination policy of Directors (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the criteria and process in
the nomination and appointment of Directors in order to nominate
suitable candidates to the Board.

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Company considers a
number of criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships, including but not limited to (i) character and integrity;
(i) qualifications including professional qualifications; (iii) willingness to
devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and
other directorships and significant commitments; (iv) requirement
for the Board to have independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates would
be considered independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules; (v) board diversity policy of the
Company and any measurable objectives adopted by the Board for
achieving diversity on the Board knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy; and (vi)
other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination Policy of Directors (Continued)

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and/or the Board may select candidates for directorship
from various channels, including but not limited to internal promotion,
re-designation, referral by other member of the management and
external recruitment agents. The Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new Director and the biographical information (or relevant details)
of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship. The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship,
as applicable. For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. Where
appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
make recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the proposed
election of Director at the general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy annually
to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term, subject to renewal after the
expiry of the then current term.

The Articles of Association provides that all Directors appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to re-election by
Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring Director including his/
her attendance of Board meetings and, where applicable, general
meetings of the Company, and the level of participation and
performance on the Board. The Nomination Committee shall also
review and determine whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy. The Nomination
Committee and/or the Board shall then make recommendation to
Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the
general meeting of the Company.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board takes the responsibility collectively to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitor the performance of the senior
executives. The Directors have to make decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations.

The Board delegates the management, consisting of executive
Directors along with other senior executives, with the responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction adopted by the Board
from time to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the
Group.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) whereby it recognises and embraces the benefits of a
diversity of Board members. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to
set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
numbers of measurable aspects including gender, age, length of
services, knowledge and professional industry background. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regards for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at the date of this
report, the Board comprises five Directors, one of which is female.
The Company targets to avoid a single gender Board and will timely
review the gender diversity of the Board in accordance with the
business development of the Group. The Company believes the
balance of gender in the Board would bring more inspiration to the
Board and enhance the business development of the Group, thus
gender diversity is the essential factor for the Company to select
suitable candidate as a Director. The following tables further illustrate
the diversity of the Board members as of the date of this annual
report:
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Age Group

FHEER
Name of Director 30-39 40-49 50-59 60-69
EEEE 30E395% 40F495% 50Z595% 60Z695%
Mr. KONG Kin | Bl A 4
Ms. CHOI Fong Lan REEZ T v
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing ~ SRiE& %4 v
Mr. CHEUNG Wai Lun REMTE v

Jacky
Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng HHEN T AE v
Professional Experience
HEER
Construction Administrative Accounting
Name of Director industry management and Finance Law
EEEB BETHE THER Bt R B b7 e
Mr. KONG Kin | BERREELE v
Ms. CHOI Fong Lan RIEEZ T v
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing SRR %4E v
Mr. CHEUNG Wai Lun RIEMRESE 4
Jacky

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng HHEME - v
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continueq)

The Company’s diversity philosophy including the gender diversity
was generally followed in the workforce throughout the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022. As of the date of this report, 80%
of Directors and 93% of total workforce were male. The Company
will continue to take, steps to promote diversity, including gender
diversity, at workforce levels.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all the Directors have
been provided with relevant reading material including legal and
regulatory update for their reference and studying. All the Directors
have also provided the Company a record of training they received
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination Committee on
24 November 2017. All the Board committees perform their distinct
roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available to Shareholders on the websites of both the Company and
the Stock Exchange and upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under the section
headed “Corporate Information” on page 2 to 3 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (continued)

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 24 November
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to, among other things, make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and removal of external auditor, review
the financial statements and provide advice in the respect of financial
reporting, and oversee internal control procedures of the Company.
The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors who are Mr. Cheung Kin Wing, Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky
and Mr. Zhao Zhipeng. Mr. Cheung Kin Wing is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy which was established
to achieve the highest possible standards of openness and
accountability, and for employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders of the Company to raise concerns of any suspected
misconduct or malpractice within the Company. Proper procedures
were in place for investigation of any reported cases. The Audit
Committee will review the final report and make recommendations
to the Board and will review and monitor the effectiveness of this
whistleblowing policy from time to time.

The Audit Committee convened four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2022.

The Audit Committee performed the following work during the year
ended 31 December 2022:

(@ reviewed the Group’s annual unaudited financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021, reviewed the Group’s
annual audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 and reviewed the unaudited interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2022 including the
accounting principles and accounting standards adopted with
recommendations made to the Board for approval;

(b) reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

(c) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and related
matters;

(d) considered and made recommendations on the re-appointment
of the independent auditor of the Group, and the terms of
engagement; and

(e) considered and made recommendations on the change of the
independent auditor of the Group, and the terms of engagement.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 24
November 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee are to, among other things, make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the
Group, review performance-based remuneration, and ensure none of
our Directors determine their own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee consists of three members who are Mr. Cheung Kin Wing,
Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky and Mr. Kong Kin I. Mr. Cheung Kin Wing
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The main works performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2022 included reviewing the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors, independent non-
executive Directors and senior management for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:
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BOARD COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 24
November 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
to, among other things, review the structure, size and composition of
the Board, access the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, and make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment of Directors. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members who are Mr. Kong Kin |, Mr.
Cheung Wai Lun Jacky and Mr. Zhao Zhipeng. Mr. Kong Kin | is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board and the Nomination
Committee is responsible for monitoring the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to the talent, skill, regional,
and industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider putting in place measurable objectives to
implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such objective
annually to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee convened one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2022. The main works performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2022
included reviewing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the retiring
Directors standing for election at the 2022 annual general meeting of
the Company, reviewing the structure, size, and composition of the
Board and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee considered that an appropriate balance
of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (continued)

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statements of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration paid or
payable to Linksfield CPA Limited, in respect of its audit services is
HK$1,000,000.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
2020 were audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 were audited by Linksfield CPA
Limited, who were appointed as the Company’s auditor on 15 June
2022 to fill the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of Moore
Stephens CPA Limited on 29 April 2022. Save as disclosed above,
there has been no other change of auditor for the preceding three
years.
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SEEARE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to safeguard the
Group’s assets and investments and the Shareholders’ interest and
conducts a review on an annual basis. The Board acknowledges that
such risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board had
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company in aspects of the Group’s
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions through the effort of the Audit Committee.

The Group currently has no internal audit function and the Board
reviewed that it is more cost effective to engage an external
independent consultant instead of recruiting a team of internal audit
staff to perform such annual review function. During the year ended
31 December 2022, LIF Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”) was
engaged to review the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system. The Consultant worked closely with the
Group to identify risk components and risk owners in different aspects
through interviews with and workshops provided to the Group’s
management. Also, the Consultant assisted the Group to evaluate
the adequacy of existing mitigation plans. In addition, an independent
review was conducted by the Consultant under the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisation of the Treadway Commission’s 2013
framework (“COSQO”) to identify weaknesses and enhance the
effectiveness and efficiency of the internal control system of the
Group. Last but not least, findings and recommendations resulting
from the review were reported to and discussed with the Audit
Committee and the Board, and the Consultant concluded that no
significant area of concern that may affect the financial, operational,
compliance control and risk management of the Group has been
identified.

The Board has the overall responsibility to maintain in the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board had reached the conclusion that the Group’s
risk managements and internal control systems were in place and
effective.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEEARE

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s environmental,
social and governance strategy and reporting. The Board is
responsible for the Group’s environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) risk management and internal control systems to ensure
that the ESG strategies and reporting requirements are met.
Detailed information on the environmental, social and governance
practices adopted by the Group is set out in the sections headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022” (“ESG Report”)
of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that inside information should be announced immediately
when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information are as
follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

e the Group has formulated inside information policies and
disclosed its policies on fair disclosure by pursuing broad,
non-exclusive distribution of information to the public through
channels such as financial reporting, public announcements and
its website;

e the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential
or inside information; and

e the Group regularly reminds the Directors and employees about
due compliance with all polices regarding the inside information,
as well as keeps them appraised of the latest regulatory
updates.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEEARE

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Fan Cheuk Lun, who is an
employee of the Company as its company secretary. Mr. Fan has
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2022, he has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The biography
of Mr. Fan is set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 calendar months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Cayman
Islands Company Law for Shareholders to move new resolution at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the
“Procedure for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director” of the Company which is posted on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board
through the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit B, 23/F, Centre Mark Il, 305-313 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong (email: info@kinpang.co).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBRE

COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders will have equal
and timely access to information about the Company in order to
enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner and allow them to engage actively with the Company.
Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s website, corporate email, financial reports, AGMs and
other extraordinary general meetings that may be convened as well as
all the published disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the shareholder communication policy during the year and
conclude that it is effective because some minority shareholders have
personally approached the company and ask for relevant news.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report. The Articles of Association is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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“TECICFRE - HERERRE

INTRODUCTION

Kin Pang Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are an integrated construction contractor
principally engaged in providing (i) building and ancillary services;
and (i) emergency repair services. The Group persistently strives
to operate its business in an economic, social, and environmentally
sustainable manner. The Group committed to make continuous
improvements in Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) to
better meet the changing needs of an advancing society.

The Group is pleased to present its annual Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), which aims to demonstrate
its efforts on sustainability developments to both internal and external
stakeholders.

ESG governance structure

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for the overall ESG’s
development, and senior management was assigned to monitor
the implementation of the ESG strategies and polices as set by the
Board. Management meetings will be held regularly to (i) identify
and priorities perspectives from different stakeholder groups, (ii)
recommend ESG initiatives and measures to the Board, and (iii)
review the past ESG performance of the Group. In addition, relevant
departments and business units will work together for the execution
of ESG initiatives and measures; and assist to collect ESG data for
annual reporting.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2022

—_—

FRR HEREREE

INTRODUCTION (continued)
Reporting principles

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”)
as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The ESG
Report adheres to the following four reporting principals as set out in

the Guide:

Materiality:

Quantitative:

Consistency:

Balance:

The Group undertakes materiality assessment to
identify and understand its stakeholders’ concerns
and material interests for the ESG Report. After
the internal assessment, the Group had shortlisted
24 issues covering four different subject areas
including environmental protection, employment
and labour practices, operational practices and
community investment. Opinions are obtained
through interviews and questionnaires, which
help the Group to understand the core issues
that matter most to its internal and external
stakeholders, and to develop corporate strategy
to continuously improve the sustainability of its
business and operations. Details of the results
are disclosed under section headed “Materiality
assessment” of the ESG Report.

Where applicable, all key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) will be disclosed in quantities terms.
The purposes and impacts of the disclosures
will be accompanied by a narrative in the
respective sections of the ESG Report, such
as methodologies, assumptions, and source of
conversion factor used to calculate the KPlIs.

As far as practicable and unless stated otherwise,
the Group applies consistent measurement
methodology to allow for meaningful comparison of
the ESG performance over time.

The ESG Report discloses information in an
objective manner, which provides stakeholders
with an unbiased picture of the Group’s overall
ESG performance.
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TECCFRE - HERERRE

INTRODUCTION (continued)
Reporting boundary

The ESG Report primarily highlights the Group’s major initiatives and
activities implemented from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022,
and the reporting scope covers the business operations in Kin Pang
Construction and Engineering Company Limited, Kin Wah Machinery
and Equipment Company Limited and Greatway Construction
Engineering Limited which are located in Macau and Hong Kong.

Stakeholder engagement

The Group has set up policies on stakeholder engagement to
understand the needs of stakeholders and to ensure its activities
take into consideration of the stakeholders’ interests. Continuous
communication with stakeholders allows the Group to identify matters
in relation to the environmental, social and governance issues, and
it serves as a method to understand stakeholders’ expectation and
assess the materiality on various aspects as set out in the Guide that
are relevant to the Group. Below sets forth the channels used for
communication with respective stakeholder group.
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“EICFRE  HgRERERSE
INTRODUCTION (Continued) #g=
Stakeholder engagement (Continued) KRENSHE2)
Stakeholder group Communication channel
HirEERE BRRE
Customers e Official website of the Group
ESS s ZFEEEH
e Customer assessment
. EFHE

° Project progress meeting
e IHEEEEE

Employees e Annual appraisal
(== e FEFE

° Intranet

o INEH

e  Training

. =il

e Meetings

. @
Suppliers/Sub-contractors e  Project progress meeting
g, DelE e IEREEER

e Supplier assessment
o {HERATA

e  Site visiting

o  FiER

Investors/Shareholders e Annual general meeting
"EERR s REBFRE
e Annual and interim reports
o FERPH®mSE
e  Circular/announcement
o KK/ NAE
e  Corporate website

o REHEA

Community e Industrial event
gan= s 1TEEH

e  Corporate social responsibility activity
e DEMHEEMEED
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TECCFRE  HERERRE

INTRODUCTION (continueq)

Materiality assessment

The materiality assessment presented below is based on the replies
from stakeholders, where 19 critical issues are identified. Among
the critical issues, 37% are related to environment protection and
employment and labour practices, and followed by operational
practices at 26%. The result from the materiality assessment is
presented below.
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2
& 18

IMPACT ON STAKEHOLDERS

7 2=
Environmental Employment and
protection labour practices
R IRE BB R % TIER

As the Group strives for excellence, stakeholders’ feedback is always
welcomed. Readers are also welcomed to share their valuable views
and opinion with the Group at info@kinpang.co.

IMPACT ON BUSINESS #f%7549
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TIFRIR - HERERRE

—=
INTRODUCTION (continued) s
Materiality assessment (Continued) EEMTE 2

Details of the 24 issues identified for materiality assessment are listed & E T {E B4 EH BB 25T ¢
below:

Air emission EERBEK

Noise pollution 1235 %

Wastes management BEZE 4% 12

Dust pollution 5 EE}5

Water use and efficiency 7K &R 1 A & ik =

Energy use and efficiency 8EJR1E A M R

Packaging materials B35+ #}

Natural resource management XA & RE 12

Climate change &@{&%b

Employment management {&{# & 12

Discrimination and equal opportunity 4% & & &

Promotion and compensation system & F+ K 3 8l Z

Other benefits and welfare E.th F1| %5 242

Prevention of child labour and forced labour 7 1E % T 2 5838 25

Safety working environment and occupational hazards % 2 #) TER B R BB E

Development and training /& K23l

Quality assurance B &8

Protection of intellectual property rights R4 &N3%ZE #E

Consumer data protection S& & & SR [

Anti-corruption R EJE

Whistle-blowing policy £2 R 5

Supply chain management f jig § & 32

Sub-contractor management 76 & & 12

Community investment &% &

0 O O O O O O O (| (7 [ B R NN N NN VRN




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2022

TECCFRE - HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental protection is one of the core values of the Group. To
minimise the pollution to the environment, the Group has proactively
looked for and implemented new measures at various stages of
construction. Over the years, the Group has introduced energy-
efficient equipment and streamlined operation processes to reduce
the consumption of fuel, electricity and water, and enhanced the
efficiency of resources utilisation.

The Group’s environment management system was developed
based on, among others, Base Law of Environment, Guideline for
Site Pollution Control (#2522 4% # 1§ 5|) and Guideline for Waste
Classification (# £& T b % ¥l 5 %8 %5 5| ) and was assessed and
certified to have complied with the ISO 14001 standards since 2015.

During the reporting year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

Emissions

Air emissions generated by the Group were mainly produced by the
consumption of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) used in our staff
quarters and during the construction works, and diesel fuel consumed
by the self-owned vehicles. While the greenhouse gas (“GHG”)
emissions in CO.e are mainly released through the consumption of
fuels by the Group’s equipment and machineries.
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TEREIFRER  HEREREE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Emissions (Continued)

The relevant emissions data are set out below:

IRIBIRE )
B &)
BREEHESERIMT -

Note  Unit 2022 2021
Mz EBfI —F-- —T-—F
Gaseous Fuel Consumption SEES ARl HAEBER
Emissions
NO, emissions REIWHER kg T52 59,616.00 84,345.60
SO, emissions TR e 3t kg T%& 298.08 421.73
Vehicles Emissions EEREERR
NO, emissions RBACBER kg T52 468.30 404.54
SO, emissions PR BER kg T52 0.79 0.81
PM emissions AR kg T2 41.45 37.60
GHG Emission in CO,e RERIRHER
(FE=—FELHREE:T)
Scope 1 — Direct emissions EN — EEHE
Stationary combustion sources B EBREE R tonnes WA 0.98 1.38
Mobile combustion sources B ER tonnes 14§ 132.00 134.38
Non-road mobile combustion FEEIR M BIREEIR tonnes H# 4,373.48 3,857.89
sources
Scope 2 — “Energy Indirect” #i[F 2—[ ERMEE 1FE
emissions
Electricity consumed BEE 1 tonnes I 58.60 92.42
Scope 3 — Other indirect F[E3— HAb A HEm
emissions
Paper waste disposed at RIS R BERE AR tonnes M 6.22 4.80
landfills
Electricity used for processing BT &R P B IR A K F2 2 tonnes I 4.31 0.72
fresh water and sewage by VEKEFARE S
government department
Notes: KiaE -

1. For electricity, the emission factors of 0.62 kg/kWh, 0.71 kg/kWh
and 0.39 kg/kWh, is available CEM Sustainability Report 2021, HK
Electric Sustainability Report 2021 and CLP Sustainability Report 2021
respectively.

g 2. For water, the emission factor of 0.171 kg/m? is available from Macao

Water’s Sustainability Report 2021.

IXIXIXIX]

1. BEAME - EMER0.62F =,/ FTEE - 0.71F
%/ FEREX0.39F % /T RE Al 7ARPIE S5
ERABIZEZ—FAFEERRE - BE T
T FAREERBERTFETS O FASEE
BEREFER] o

2. FMKME - HEREE0A71T 5, M KA R
FIERKZEZ—FrAFERRKETER -



ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2022

—EIFRIR - HERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Emissions (Continued)

To carry out the Group’s construction business, the Group usually
employs medium and heavy goods vehicles for waste disposal and
non-road mobile machines for carrying out different types of sites
works. During the reporting year, the works of the Group’s project in
Hong Kong required large demand of heavy machine operations, such
as drilling pile, air compressors and crawler crane. Consequently,
the Group’s emissions from non-road mobile machines had been
increased as compared to last year. As for the fluctuations of indirect
emissions for GHG, the major emission sources were generated
through the consumption of electricity and water. Please refer to
section head “Use of resources” in this ESG Report for details of the
measures and initiative adopted by the Group.

As the Group’s emissions were substantially caused by the usage
of machineries and equipment, our mitigation strategy significantly
depends on these sources. The measures begin at the procurement
process by selecting machineries and equipment with low emission
and using of low sulphur fuel. In addition, regular inspection
checks were conducted for machineries and equipment at the
commencement of each construction project to ensure that they
were in good condition without excessive emission. At the end of the
reporting period, majority of the Group’s machineries and equipment
were operated with requisite environment license. With the aim to
further reduce emissions, the Group targets to gradually replace all
aged machineries with lower emission standards. On the other hand,
the Group adopts measures to avoid dust pollution by complying
with the hoarding requirement, minimising the dropping height of soil
and dusty material, and spraying water on vehicles and the surface of
dusty material.
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TECCFRE - HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Waste

Several procedures have been established and embedded in the
operations of the Group for different waste materials, which includes
concrete, mud, rebar, asphalt, wood, and others. To the best of
the Group’s knowledge, there are no material amount of hazardous
waste were generated. The table below shows the quantity of non-
hazardous wastes produced by the Group.

IRIBIRE )

BEEY

AEEC R FRABNE T ETRFL SEMALE
B LE - BRAIERET BT - 5 FS -
A REM - AEEFTA - L EELAREERE
BY) - TRENAEEFESNESHEYHE -

Note  Unit 2022 2021
B B —$—C —E- 4
Non-hazardous waste |EREZEY)
Industrial wastes T XREEY) 1 tonnes M 25,981.90  122,975.10
Non-hazardous waste intensity BERZEYEE 2 tonnes/project
& 18 § 3,711.70 17,567.87
Notes: Bia -

1. The quantity of waste was calculated by the estimated cargo capacity
of wastes disposal vehicles multiplies by the number of carriages
transported to landfill.

2. The Group adopted the number of projects that generate actual waste as
the basis for the calculation of intensity.

The amount of non-hazardous waste produced was highly depending
to the proportion of foundation works associated to excavation
and pilling works conduct in a reporting year. Due to the gradual
completion of a large-scale excavation of the deep basement of
one of the Group's major projects, the amount of generated non-
hazardous waste has been significantly reduced.
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TECCFRE  HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Waste (Continued)

The Group strives to reduce, reuse, and recycle throughout its
operations to minimise the quantity of waste disposal. Similar to
the measures of emission, the Group starts from the procurement
process and encourages a waste management hierarchy that
prioritises avoidance and reduction of construction materials.
Project teams plan work programmes carefully in achieving just-
in-time inventory management to avoid over-ordering of materials.
In addition, the Group encourages wastes to be re-used where
possible, and shared among its construction sites. To achieve this,
waste management plans are carried out to facilitate on-site sorting,
which re-usable and recyclable materials, and others waste for
disposal are separately stored so as to ensure that they are properly
utilised or delivered to appropriate reception sites or public disposal
facilities. The Group remains dedicated to sustainable development
and will continue striving to minimize waste and maximize recycling.

Use of resources

The Group aware that saving resources not only reduces the
emissions, but also effectively save its expenses and operating
costs. The Group has taken different measures to achieve its goal of
resources saving. For instance, the Group promotes electricity saving
by posting resource-saving labels in office. In addition, the Group
uses energy saving lighting in office and switch off office light, air-
conditioning and computers when they are not in use. The Group
also maintains the office air-conditioning at an average temperature of
25 degrees Celsius to save electricity. To raise its staff's awareness of
resources saving, the Group encourages staff to reduce paper usage
by double-sided copying and frequent use of electronic information
systems for communication and documentation.
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TECCFRE - HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Use of resources (Continued)

The details of energy and water consumption of the Group are set out
below:

IRIBIRE )
BiRER®)
AEEWE SRR RKERERIIMT -

Unit 2022 2021
L it e —E-—F
Total Electricity Consumption REIEFES
Offices NS KWh F 5B 16,742.00 16,726.00
Staff quarters BIREE kWh T FLE 34,102.00 26,944.00
Warehouses BE KWh F FLE 38,870.00 45,140.00
Projects 1HH kWh F ELEF 15,165.00 43,863.20
Electricity Consumption Intensity & /1SEFE4E KWh/unit
FRE, B 7,491.36 8,844.88
Total Water Consumption HBRKE
Staff quarters BIFESE md 375K 1,197.00 1,034.00
Warehouses 2= m3 325K 121.00 202.00
Projects 15 H m3 37 7K 11,281.00 323.00
Water Consumption Intensity FAKEE mé/unit
SR BT 1,259.90 141.73
Notes: et -

1. Water used in all offices and the warehouse in Hong Kong were supplied
by landlords/building management and shared among tenants, therefore
the water consumption data for the above premises are not available.

2. For projects carried out by the Group as subcontractor, the water used
in construction sites were provided by main contractors and shared
among different subcontractors, therefore the water consumption data
for these projects are not available.

3. The disclosure for the use of packaging materials is not relevant to its
businesses.

4. The locations where the Group operated did not encounter any issue in
sourcing water.

1. BEMEMAERRENAKOREE BEFER
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TECCFRE - HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Use of resources (Continued)

During the reporting year, the increase in resources consumption
in staff quarters were mainly due to longer period of occupancy to
accommodate our foreign labour as compared to last year. On the
other hand, for projects where the Group acts as main contractor, the
Group is generally responsible for managing the supply of electricity
and water in construction sites. Therefore, the Group has limited
control as to the fluctuations in resources consumption. Nevertheless,
the Group remains committed to improve resources efficiency and
reduce environmental footprint by promoting our resource saving
concepts to subcontractors. The Group also plans to enhance its
data analytics capabilities to gain further insights into usage patterns
and uncover new opportunities for resources savings.

The environment and natural resources

The Group committed to a sustainable construction through
minimising any adverse impact on the environment resulting from our
business activities. Below are the principles that the Group strives to
achieve:

e  Focusing on energy management throughout energy planning
including design, review, monitoring performance as critical
considerations within our core management process;

e  Compliance with the environmental aspects of the applicable
legal requirements and the other requirements to which the
Group subscribes;

e Regular performance reviews to ensure that energy objectives
and the requirements of interested parties are met; and

° Provision of staff training to ensure understanding,
implementation and development of those principles throughout
our business.
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TECCFRE - HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Climate change

With the urging issue of the impact from climate change, the Group
conducted a climate changes risk assessment by reference to the
recommendations as set out by the Task Force on Climate related
Financial Disclosures framework during the reporting year. This risk
identified and the corresponding mitigation plan are disclosed below:

IRIBIRE )

SEIREME

BZRRE T ERRNE  AEERNBEERE
N2 REIEABRI IS S S B TIEBIE R E s
EITRIREC R - FRSBIRR kAR SR
SIHTEWT

Risk Description Mitigation plan
il AR RiEETEl
Physical risk e  Our employees may not be able to Provide safety trainings to employees,
W3R a2 work outdoors during heatwave and such as work in hot weather.
raise in mean temperature, resulting in BEERMELZ2IEY - MABMKRT
an increase in cost of operations. =3
TAIEE B AR BURE KR E Arrange regular progress meetings
FAEEER T PIMESEMER S ERA to develop action plan rectify any
HI3E N o possible delays.
e The increased frequency of storm and LZHEE S 2R AR E
flood may affect the delivery schedule B AT REAERR ©
of construction material and damage Provide guidelines to safeguard to
the works structures and equipment. structures and equipment in the
This may result in an increase in the construction site before anticipated
cost of operations and depreciation of extreme weather event.
equipment. FATE Bt i X SR B (R BE SR BT HR (46 5
RERM KRR IE NN ST B REM VAIRFEIE TIN5 80 4518 I 48 -
B R B B T2 AR
AR BUEEN ARG IS RAIBITE -
Policy and legal risks e  The tightened environmental regulations Review our environmental policies
PR Kok 2 E g may lead to higher compliance costs or regularly to ensure they can
penalties because of non-compliance. keep up with any changes in any
RBFHRPESEEHRRE MK environmental regulations.
FEINERE S © EER A PR IRIREUR - REER
RAEABRIRIE IR BV EE o
Technology risks ° Rapid development in the technology Replace aged equipment and
& e 2 fex market may increase the cost of machineries with high environment

Reputational and market risks e
BEL SRR

investment for latest equipment and
machineries to keep up with the higher
emission standards.
REFERSHNBERE - RIAMTTISHR
RERYGEMNSEINRERERNIRE
DN

Change in market preference towards a
more environmentally friendly contractor
may affect the tender success rate.
MEHREAERNREEZ(CHER
gk o

standards.
HERAPEE AR R RME -

Promote the Group commitments of
low carbon operations.

HEB) AR SR B R A & B R AGE o
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—ECCEES - HBREARE

SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Employment

The Group regards employees as the most valuable and crucial
assets. The beliefs in “competition makes progress” and “rewards
and penalties” are the foundation to our human resources (“HR”)
system. Clear policies and guidelines have been established to attract
and retain talent and delivers a fair and safe working environment
for employees to support their career advancement and fosters their
personal development.

HR management of the Group has stepped up efforts to ensure
that the HR system and manual are complied with relevant labour
laws, including but not limited to Labour Relations Law, Employees'
Compensation Insurance Ordinance, Social Security System, laws
and regulations for the employment of non-resident worker, regulation
on prohibition of illegal work and lists of restricted and prohibited
works provided by minors. Besides, employment checklist is
established to govern the procedures and documents that need to be
conducted and obtained during the hiring and termination process.

In addition, policy on HR, including organisational structure, working
hour, leave entitlement, dismissal, recruitment, promotion, and
compensation system, are communicated to employees through
the circulation of employee handbook upon hiring and during the
employment period if any updates.

To facilitate equal opportunity and anti-discrimination, standard
interview criteria (each for recruitment and annual appraisal) are
established to ensure that every staff are evaluated under the same
evaluation scheme. Promotion opportunities and salary adjustments
are benchmarked against individual performance. Voluntary exit
interview is encouraged on resignation which serves as a feedback
channel allowing us to detect any vulnerability in our HR system.

During the reporting year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits or welfare.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 538 (2021:
416) employees with direct employment relationship and an overall
employee turnover rate of approximately 69% (2021: 69%), of which
approximately 99% (2021: 99%) of the new joiners and leavers are
entry level staff.
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR HE-EERSIEN =

PRACTICES (Continued)
Employment (Continued) E®E=)

The fluctuations in staff movements for both years were mainly M{EEEE TREBHEB T EHINEL TR EES|
caused by foreign labour quotas. With the intensive labour Et- HRAMEEFTEAELT - AtEAIIMET
demands from large projects, foreign workers are hired in handling ~ ABRIESHASEE T2 « (8% - #E2iR1F > EiRT
reinforcement fixing works, welding, machine operations, formworks, 12 SRR+ TR N HAM —fREE TR - BEEIER &
concrete works, and other general construction works. As the  #5%EK @ EZEINMET ARNEBBIEITEILAER -
projects gradually reached completion stage, the employment

relationship with these foreign workers ended accordingly.

TREIAKERFBEIE -

Below set forth of the Group’s employment data:

2022 2021
ot Sl —ET—4F
Turnover Turnover
rate Headcounts rate  Headcounts
MK AEK IS N
Gender 5l
Male S 73% 506 73% 386
Female ey 19% 32 31% 30
Age groups FiRdAR
30 or below 30RRLLAT 55% 63 68% 39
31-50 31E505% 76% 302 70% 255
51 or above S1pRak A 61% 173 67% 122
Position levels Ay
Senior management aRERE 0% 13 0% 12
Middle management PRERE 18% 33 13% 33
Entry level LiaES 75% 492 77% 371
Geographical regions HE
Macau BT 22% 77 32% 87
China F 74% 418 72% 287
Hong Kong B 125% 43 141% 42

Note: The employee turnover rates are calculated using number of employees A5t - B ERARIZERIEES ABRB AFERNREE FHH
leaving employment divided by average number of employees for the T o
year.
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TECCFIRE  HEREREE

SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Health and safety

The Group regards health and safety as one of the top-ranking issues.
To minimise accidents in the workplace, effective health and safety
measures has been stipulated. The Group has been accredited
with OHSAS 18001:2007 for our occupational health and safety
management system. To this end, the Group has implemented
various measures, including those as stated in the Emissions
section of the ESG Report, to protect its employees from injury and
occupational hazards.

The Group has established occupational health and safety manuals
which provide guidance on the essential procedures before entering
construction site and during construction. The Group committed to
offer insurance protection to all employees. Also, the Group posts
relevant warning labels and notice regarding onsite health and safety
in the construction sites. In case accident occurred, the emergency
flow chart provides the procedures and included a list of emergency
contact for the report of emergency.

In addition, safety officers were appointed to secure the safety in our
construction sites, their duties include, among others, (i) patrolling
construction sites to identify any irregularities and emergent safety
risks, (i) preparing inspection reports and providing recommendations
for safety enhancement, and (iii) performing follow-up review to
monitor the implementation of enhanced measures.

Despite of the safety measures employed in relate to health and
safety, work-accidents are unavoidable. During the reporting year, the
Group was reported 19 (2021: 40) incidents of work injuries, which
lead to 295 (2021: 626) lost days. The Group will continue to evaluate
the potential causes leading to the past work injuries and identify
corresponding measures to provide employees a safe, accident-
free work environment. The Group is pleased that no work-related
fatalities have been occurred in the past three years.

During the reporting year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
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TECCFIRE  HEREREE

SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and training

Staff training is crucial to drive business success, it presents a prime
opportunity to expand the base knowledge of all employees. We
strive to provide adequate training to our staffs not merely for their
personal development, but more importantly for the sake of safety,
especially for our workers in construction sites.

Most of the employment positions in our Group require specialised
knowledge and skillsets. Internally, we offer safety training to our site
workers in relate to personal safety, safety equipment, machinery
operation at the inception and during the construction project.
Externally, staff are encouraged and reimbursed to attend related
professional course to enhance their job competence. The Group
also offers comprehensive training to new employees, including
understanding of corporate culture, business processes, health,
and safety. We also promote on-the-job training to help our staff to
improve problem solving and software application skills, so as to
ensure that daily tasks are performed in an efficient and effective
manner.

Our employees perform regular performance appraisal with their
supervisors or managers. This process helps our staff set work goals
and expectations, as well as providing feedback for their personal
growth and future career development.

During the reporting year, the Group offered internal safety training
courses cover 22 (2021: 20) different topics to 61 (2021: 142) of its
employees, and the average training hours per trained employee was
approximately 10.61 (2021: 0.42) hours. In aggregate, the percentage
of employee trained (note 1) is approximately 13% (2021: 37%), and
the average training hours per employee (note 2) is 1.36 (2021: 0.15)
hour.
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR HE-EERSIEN =
PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and training (Continued) BRRIEIN 2

The average training hours increased substantially in this reporting  RAIREFE - FEFIGB(LHE T BESM
year, especially for entry-level employees. New hires required = )AIRIEN - FEEZTEE AR LA BEET
extensive onboarding and compliance training to ensure safe work ~ ARERLZ2HMTIEBE - ERFJBHER - £EE
practices, resulting in a longer training time emphasized on building 25 /5 ART4R 8 TR ERE R M3 MR REEM - ARF
a strong foundation of knowledge and skills for front-line staff. This  fERIEFISEZ BN TIESALE2RRF &K TRR
year's training continued to focus on workplace safety procedures — HIEREIR{ERBA - IR E LR CES BBEZES
and proper manipulation instructions on various equipment. The  FEIFZHEEF °

front-line staff also received updated training on emergency response

plans.
2022 2021
ot Sl —ET—4F
Percentage Average Percentage Average
of training of training
employees hours per employees hours per
trained employee trained employee
ZilEE SBHEEN XiEE BEEER
Bt F9EFNeGE Aok TSRS
Gender R
Male B4 13% 1.39 41% 0.51
Female 74 6% 0.85 6% 0.16
Position Levels R
Senior management SREERE 48% 11.86 50% 10.35
Middle management RREEE 6% 0.11 - -
Entry level LTimES 12% 1.15 42% 0.17
Notes: et -

1. The percentage of employees trained is calculated using number of 1. FIHIEENADLLETIEBASSGAERNEETF
trained employees divided by average number of employees for the year. BEETHE -

2. Average training hours per employee are calculated using total training 2. T (& 8 M) F 15538 SUR B3R 8% LA F R g

hours divided by average number of employees for the year. BYEHHETHE -
B
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TECCFRE  HERERRE

SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Labour standards

The Group has strictly complied with the labour related regulation to
eliminate child and forced labour. Our standard recruitment procedure
requires HR department to perform background check on all potential
job applicant to ensure that the candidates are physically and
conditionally satisfied with relevant labour regulation and standard,
this helps to confront the risk of child and force labour. On the other
hand, direct reporting channel is established, and staff are always
welcomed if they have any doubt or uncertainty about their job duties,
and if there are any complaints.

If any forms of forced or child labour are identified, the Group will take
corrective actions immediately, such as (i) discharge the child labour,
(i) report to local labour bureau, (iii) investigate the causes improper
events, and (iv) discipline or take legal action against the wrongdoer.

During the reporting year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating to preventing child and forces labour.

SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

Supplier selection is an essential process for supply chain
management. The Group strives to join hands with various interested
parties along its supply chain on improving sustainability performance
throughout its operations.

To this end, the Group has established a supplier management policy
which stipulates vigorous guidelines to monitor the tendering and
quotation process, covering areas such as sourcing, internal control
and risk management. In addition, the Group places significant
measures in choosing a qualifying supplier and sub-contractor by
conducting business reviews with its suppliers and subcontractors.
The Group evaluates suppliers and sub-contractors by taking
their recent service quality, skills and technique, prevailing market
price, competitiveness of pricing, ability to meet its specifications
and requirements, reputation, and environmental performance
into accounts. All approved suppliers and sub-contractors will be
registered in an internal approved list and will be reviewed and
updated on an ongoing basis.
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TECCFRE  HERERRE

SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Supply chain management (Continued)

All key suppliers and sub-contractors will be evaluated regularly to
ensure they are up to required standards. Any suppliers or sub-
contractors with inferior past records of material environmental or
social accidents with no improvements, such as excessive pollutions
discharge to the environment and exploitation of workers, will be
remove from the approved list.

Below sets out the suppliers and sub-contractors of the Group by
geographical regions.

HE-2EEH =
HERER &)

FIE R HER NS Bl E MR - BRE
FEIRERE - ABAFEENRIRIMES
WA R (SR P BRSHAIS T) BES
BEUOHERIN BRRBIER AT RE LRS-

TREGIAEE R ES DO EER D BRE -

2022 2021
—F-= —T-—F
Geographical Regions HE

Macau R 599 503

China F 87 81

Hong Kong B 209 170

Others EHAth 1 -

Product responsibility EmEE

The Group believes that the reliability and quality of the construction ~ANEERERETRMAISENEEHFMFNBEE
works are crucial to our reputation. As such, the Group has MEZMEZE - At - AEBEEGEE = LHREF
implemented quality control procedures with documentation covering ~ MIFEMREA BV EHFEEEETIER THEES

the entire stage of its construction process, from the procurement of
raw materials to the completion of construction works, which allows us
to review and ensure the consistence of a quality progress.

The Group has adopted and implemented a quality control
system that complies with international standards, ISO 9001. A
dedicated project management team is formed based on the
scale and complexity of works to ensure the project is running as
intend and within customer’s requirement. Each member of the
team was assigned with specified duties, which includes liaising
and communicating with clients and external parties, allocating
manpower resources, materials, equipment and machinery required,
coordinating, and providing guidance to team members and sub-
contractors, reviewing site records, and performing regular quality
inspections. If any defects are detected, project team will work
closely with the employer or main contractor to address the defects.
During the reporting year, the Group has not received any complaint
or request for product recall from our customers due to quality, safety
and health issue in relation to works performed.

REBERMARE B E BIRELEISO 9001 H'E
SHIEE R o REERIE TIRRVIRE Mg - &K
VEMMIEER EEEMK - UERTEBIZERETI
HEBPHEX - BBMSEK BEZRATRE
BE BREAFFRINIZSHETHELRER 9
BERTRE AN EIR « M - REFHEE - A0 m)
BB kDB Eietiee - FEIRISHEWHIT
THEERE - WEEAMRE - 1BEBEREHEE
BT ERDEBETRIEARRRIE - RREF
B AEETEZERFRTREEE T2 RER
EIRE e A E R QR Esk -
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TECCFRE  HERERRE

SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Product responsibility (Continued)

The Group value its intellectual properties and has registered all our
business logo where we operated to protect the Group’s reputation.
On the other hand, the Group might have access to trademark,
copyrights and contractual documents of its business partners.
With this regards, the Group’s code of conduct strictly prohibits its
employees from using any unauthorised intellectual properties of its
business partner and disclosing sensitive and private information
to irrelevant parties. If any incident of infringement is detected, the
Group will take necessary legal action against them.

Anti-corruption

The Group upholds high standards in its market practices, with all
employees required to maintain a high level of business ethics. The
Group’s conflict of interest policy, anti-corruption policy and code
of conduct as stipulated in its employee handbook clearly define the
Group’s philosophy against corruption, such as prohibit employees
to take any forms of advantages from their association by competing
or conflicting with the interests of the Group and to comply with
applicable requirements relating to the privacy and the confidentiality
of information received in the course of business. All employees are
required to receive an induction training of the Group’s philosophy
and go through the employment handbook with our HR officer.

In addition, corruption, bribery, or fraud in any form is strictly
prohibited. Whistleblowing policy was established to allow employees
to report any misconduct or malpractice events observed on a
confidential platform to the audit committee. Any matters of genuine
concern are to be thoroughly investigated by the management and
actions will be taken accordingly.

During the reporting year, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money
laundering.
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AEBEGHEMBER - WO RRAKEMEE
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TEICFRE  HEREREE

SOCIAL - COMMUNITY

Community investment

The Group realises the importance of corporate social responsibility
and has stepped up conscious efforts to establish closer ties and
interaction with local communities.

We endeavour to support the communities by understanding their
needs, in particular the health and safety of its employees. During
the outbreak COVID-19, the Group has established the following
measures to minimise the transmission risk of COVID-19.

° Provide anti-epidemic supplies including hand sanitizer and
disinfecting wet wipes for our employees.

e Check body temperatures of our employees when entering the
office.

e Carry out facilities cleaning and disinfection regularly.

° Arrange staffs who are unwell or with symptoms to stay at home
and advise them to seek for medical attention.

HE-HE
HERE

AEBERBICEHSEENEEE - BB EE
HERYEETAMERES) o

BB ESTESRK(LEREEREREZE) N
YR o RCOVID-19/8 3 HifE - REBBEHITE
AT - AR SFRECOVID-198)F B A -

s RESRHENERAR  BEAFRNHESE

e LHIBTHEAIEEMRNEIBERS I
B EE -
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TECCFRE - HERERRE

ESG INDEX

A. Environmental

IRIE - HERERZS
A. IRiE

Section Reference
HHEREEN

Aspect A1: Emissions

XX

EEA1 - BE

General Disclosure

—fRIFE

KPIA1.1
BARAERUEIRALT

KPIA1.2
BASAARUIEIRAL.2

KPIA1.3
RS MIEIRALLS

KPI A1.4
RSB IEIRAL4

KPIA1.5
BASRAABUEIRALS

KPIA1.6
RSB NIEIRALLG

Information on:

B -
a) the policies; and
a) BRI &

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

b) BEFHBITABBEERIMEEREYEN - KR LHEHE
T BEREERENESEAZENBMERRFRIINE
#} o

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BERU TS S ARRA P IR BUR

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.
B (HEN) MaREE (BE2) RERB BT HE (UEAE) &
(WEA)EE -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.

FESRZEEDES UANEAE) (ER)EE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.
FTEABEEREZEYAE (UETE) R(WER)ZE -

Description of emissions target(s) set and step taken to achieve
them.
HAATE] S MBS B R R AR %S B IEAERI P o

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

MR EENEEEEYNIE - ARSI PTET S 80RRE B 12
NREDZE B EAERIE R o

° Environmental
protection
o IRIFRE

° Emissions

o B
. Emissions
o HEEmW
o Waste
o [EEEY
° Waste
o EEY

. Emissions

o R
o Waste
o EEY
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TECCFRE - HERERRE

ESG INDEX (continueq)

Rk - HERER

A. Environmental Continued) A. BRig#E)

Z5|®)

Section Reference
HHEREER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2: ERER
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A2.1
BASRAERUEIRA2.1

KPI A2.2
BB NIEIRA2.2

KPI'A2.3

FABHERIEIRA2.3

KPI A2.4
BB NIEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5
RS NIEIRA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water,
and other raw materials.

BRERER(BIELIR - KREAMRMEL)HBER -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity.
RERESMER R, SHEEER(INE - Geloh) @FEE (AT
AT BBt E) REE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BFEKERRE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
PR S VBB IR AR R B R SOE BI3Z 5 B R P ERERE) 2 5% -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

K EGE AR SR B AR - PRI Ak E B 1R RiES)
%% BIRPTERER A A5 ©

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
R MATAREMANBE (CANETE) R(ER) BEESEG

=
= °

Use of resources

BRER

Use of resources

BIR{EM

Use of resources

&R A
Use of resources

BRER

Use of resources

BIRER

Use of resources

BIRER
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“EICFRE  HERERRE

ESG INDEX (continued) IRIE - HENRERZES|»
A. Environmental Continued) A. Rig#E)

Section Reference

1HEAEER
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
[EHA3 : IRIERXAEIR
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the ¢  The environment and
— MR environment and natural resources. natural resources
WIREITABRBERRAEREKERTZENHER - o RERRAER
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the e  The environment and
BB R R IRAS.1 environment and natural resources and the actions taken to natural resources
manage them. o  IRIRERAEIR
M B EHHRERARABERNERFEREHKNERGHY
20178 -
Aspect A4: Climate Change
[EHA4 : RiRE1L
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate- e  Climate change
—RH R related issues which have impacted, and those which may ¢  S{EE1L

impact, the issuer.

BRI EH RN HEITAEETENEARBKRAHEER

BIISR ©
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have e  Climate change
IR AETUEIRAL A impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the *  RIEEL

actions taken to manage them.
HABEERAEEHETAEATENERRGEEEE - KB
RIER BT ENTTE -
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TEITFRE

ESG INDEX (continueq)
B. Social

HERELRRE

RiR - HERERES®

B. #&

Section Reference
HHEREER

Aspect B1: Employment
[BEB1 : {Ef#

General Disclosure

—fRIFE

KPI B1.1
FABAE NIRRT A

KPIB1.2
BASARUEIRB1.2

Information on:

a4
a) the policies; and
a B X

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment, and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

b) EFHEBITABBHNEGEE BELES  IK B
FE#e - Zoolh  REBUAREMGFERBNEESEAY
EOMRBEENADINER

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and
geographical region.

ZIR - EREERE - FRAMNMLREISNES B -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

RIER - FiER KRB D BERRLE -

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[BHEB2: f#RHETZE

General Disclosure
—Rg iR EE

KPI B2.1
B AARUISIRB2.1

KPIB2.2
BARAARURIRB2.2

KPI B2.3
FAS A NIEIRB2.3

Information on:

a6
a) the policies; and
a BER: K

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

b) EFHEHBITAGBRMLTE TIERERREES G EBEN
EEELEATENRBERNANNE -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the e

past three years including the reporting year.
BE=F(BRERSFE)EFRAITHMHABSILE -

Lost days due to work injury.

EIEBEETIERS -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, e
s [RESEZE

how they are implemented and monitored.

PR BRI R 2180k - ARMBREIT REERITA

° Employment

o B

° Employment

o (Ef®

° Employment

o [Ef®

e Health and safety
e [RESEZE

Health and safety
s REEAZE

° Health and safety
s REHEZE

Health and safety
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TECCFRE - HERERRE

ESG INDEX (continued) IRIE - HENRERZES|»
B. Social (Continued) B. &%)

Section Reference
HHEAEER

Aspect B3: Development and Training

JEEB3 : #RKIE

General Disclosure
—RH R

KPI B3.1
B BUIEIRBS. 1

KPI B3.2
FAB A RIE1RBS.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRRTMEE BT TIERE MBI ER - Hil i FE
g o

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category.
ZURRIEEEAESFINEEE DL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.

BRI REEERE D  BREETHZ I TR -

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

BEB4 : TR

General Disclosure
—Rg i EE

KPI B4.1
B SRAA RUIEIRBA. 1

KPI B4.2
RAB AN IE1RB4.2

Information on:

B -
a) the policies; and
a BE: X

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forces labour.

b) ETHBTABEMLETIRRABTELERATENEE
KRB ERS -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour.
BT REBOINEEABRET RRBEST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.
R IRE RGN ERE BB ST EREE 28K -

Development and
training

R MIEFl

Development and
training

B S5

Development and
training
R IET

Labour standards
LT AR

Labour standards
BT AR

Labour standards
45T %8|
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TECCFRE - HERERRE

ESG INDEX (continueq)
B. Social (Continued)

RiR - HERERES @

B. #&#)

Section Reference
HHEREER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EMEBS5 : HEHEERE
General Disclosure

—REH

KPI B5.1
RS AA RIS IRBS. 1

KPI B5.2

RSB NIEIEBS.2

KPIB5.3
R AR E1RB5.3

KPIB5.4
PR RSBS54

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.
ERHEENRE M SRBREEK -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

mitREIDMHEHHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

R EAERESHNEN  mERTEREMNNHEEREA
AR B BB HIITREEER X

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

AR P IRE Rt gRREEH - LAREBIEG
BITRERGE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

B H RS BN EIRRE o LIRISEVED - AR BRIE
PIEVBIT REER % -
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—ECFRE - g RERKRE
ESG INDEX (continued) IRIE - HENRERZES|»
B. Social (Continued) B. &%)

Section Reference

THEAE &R
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHB6 : EmME(E
General Disclosure Information on: e Product responsibility
—RER B e EmEAE
a) the policies; and
a BEEK: K
b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.
b) BETFHBITABUMREHERERMBREORERERZS - BE -
SHRABEEARMBR EEEERZENEER LR
BlE)ERE
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for e Product responsibility
RSk A IE1ZB6.1 safety and health reasons. s EREE
EEXCEXEREHT AL HEZRIEHMARKNA D
KPI B6.2 Number of products and services related to complaints received e Product responsibility
RSB IEIEB6.2 and how they are dealt with. e EmE
PR E o MR IR B B AR B 7K -
KPI B6.3 Description of practises relating to observing and protecting e  Product responsibility
RS 4E FIEIEB6.3 intellectual property rights. e EmEf
T ot B T I ARPR AN EE RS A ROE B o
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. ° Product responsibility
RS E M IE1RB6.4 g 2R T BIERERBKIER e EmAE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how e  Product responsibility
BSR4 N FE1EB6.5 they are implemented and monitored. e EmE

WU BEEBURRERALEBBER - ARBERITRERTE -
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ESG INDEX (continueq)
B. Social (Continued)

RIR
B. #&®

HERERZES|I®

Section Reference

1HEAEER

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EHEB7 : RERE

General Disclosure

—fRINER

KPI B7.1
RS 4E N EIERT .1

KPI B7.2

RSB IE1RBT .2

KPI B7.3
RS N IEIZRT.3

Information on:

£
a) the policies; and
a BE: X

b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

b) L#;ﬁéﬁ/\*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ% P= -
T EBNREER LRI ER -

BRFMARBEELER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

WMERANEHTASE EERENEEENEARBITANFD
RUBEREMER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
TR Fh S A b R RIZ T - A RMERAIT REER A0k ©

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.
HEHTEERETHRERBIE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHBS : #HERE

General Disclosure

—fRIER

KPI B8.1

RSB 1515881

KPI B8.2
RS AE R IE1RB8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BRI R2EK Tﬁﬁé TALEMEHRTEMBRELEEE
e EELRMEHBOR

Focus areas of contribution.

EXE R o

Resources contributed to the focus area.

EEIBEMBHRER -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRSE

The Board presents this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an integrated construction contractor which provides
building and ancillary services and emergency repair services.

The Company acts as an investing holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income on page 101 to 102 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

BFe 2N AFRERNAEEEEZE T _—F1+=
A=Z+—HIFENEEXGRETHERE -

EFEXHK

AEBAFAREARZRE  REZEREERS M
ISR

ARBRREZERAT - HMB AN ERERH
WA M HRRME14 -

e 4G
HE- - —F+-A=+—HBIFENEKOE
R AFERIEEE 5w Mo | —&0 -

E 3

AEEBE-T-—F+- A=+ BLEENE
RN AFRE101 102 AR A A% H 2 E M
#E o

32N

EEeUvEERRNEBEE T __F+-_A=+—
BLEFENRPRE(ZE % ®)-
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DIVIDENDS POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any
dividend pay-out, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group’s financial results, the general financial condition of the Group,
the Group’s current and future operations, the level of the Group’s
debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial
covenants, liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group,
surplus received from the Company’s subsidiaries and any other
factors that the Board deems appropriate. The Company’s ability to
pay dividends is also subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules
and all relevant applicable laws, rules and regulations in the Cayman
Islands, Hong Kong and the Articles of Association.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 212 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

iz BEER

ARBDHEMARBBR(BREEREK]D) - B\t - AR
AR ARRE IR MRS - ERRED ZARLRF]
2 A B EARRAE F%%Xi'ﬁﬁ FE e
o

EXeRARUDBRATRMEMBEHEE
M EIREA RIS BRI - FERFIRE
EARER  EFETEER (AP R AKEH
BEE  AEBEBRBYBAON - LB B 5 ARK
B AEBZEBERLE BARRE AR
IRHEKRF - ARERBDESRN R EAFF -
ARBMBRAAGRZBHEETERSBEE
ZEMEMER - ARBELIKNKREIAER EH
RAZHRELFERS  BERABERRARIZAHR
BEBERER - RASRPIFTRR -

EFMFERNBRERR  WREEMAZER
BEBERENERREER - BT R REHBE
BUOK - RBBERL MR ER O RN A AGEER
RAAEMABSRIRNES - &SI MER
RAAEGREMNRFEITREIRKE

B ISR
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had reserves available
for distribution to Shareholders in accordance with the Articles of
Association amounting to MOP34,051,000 (2021: MOP45,909,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 105 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kong Kin | (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Choi Fong Lan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or if their number is not 3 or a multiple
of 3, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation at every annual general meeting of the
Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Mr.
Cheung Wai Lun Jacky and Mr. Zhao Zhipeng shall retire from office
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company. The
appointment of each of the Directors is for a period of three years and
shall continue thereafter until being terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, to him/
her than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of the SFO, which had to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
in which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares:

ESEREETHRASRKG - HER
REEEZES AR

RIZBZ_F+-A=+—08 ARREEZEES
TTHRABRAR R REMBEEE(EE R EH KB
EIEGHRIRY - BERGSEEERHREREE
H NS IEHIEXVEBET M8 SAME A QA
MR AR (B REREEBIEXERE
BB 2 EERAR)  KAREFESRKHE
16 15) B 352 B LR BFI ARZ GBI FTHE 2 B e R
AR SR BIEEST R AN AN E) R
RETZ S AR IT ¢

(i) ARAPHEFE:

Percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests Shares interest
E551 813 EME kaHE FRESEIL
Mr. Kong Kin | Beneficial owner, 684,950,000 68.50%

Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1);

Interest of spouse (Note 2)
BEfEREE Em#EBA

REGEEER (A1)

Bt s (Hfatz)
Ms. Choi Fong Lan Beneficial owner, 684,950,000 68.50%

Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1);

Interest of spouse (Note 2)

wERZ T EnlEEA
R AR (M)
BBz (f1at2)
Notes:

1. Fortunate Year Investments Limited (“Fortunate Year”) is owned as
to 60% by Mr. Kong Kin | and 40% by Ms. Choi Fong Lan. Under
the SFO, Mr. Kong Kin | and Ms. Choi Fong Lan are deemed to
be interested in all the Shares registered in the name of Fortunate
Year.

2. Ms. Choi Fong Lan is the spouse of Mr. Kong Kin I. Under the
SFO, Ms. Choi Fong Lan is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Kong Kin | is interested, and vice
versa.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EEREETHRASRIRG - HER
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN PREEEBZERSRKR =)

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (Continued)

(i) Long positions in the ordinary shares of associated (i) REEZEZERMSFNITFR :

corporation:

Percentage of
shareholding

in the
Name of associated Capacity/Nature Number of associated
Name of Directors corporation of interests shares corporation
RIEEHEE R
EEEB BABHEERE S EEME RiaEE Bikaat
Mr. Kong Kin | Fortunate Year Beneficial owner, interest 200 100%
of spouse (Note)
R LS I ER#EBA
BB iEes (ML)
Ms. Choi Fong Lan Fortunate Year Beneficial owner, interest 200 100%
of spouse (Note)
RERZ L I EmlEEA
Bt (Aat)
Note:  Fortunate Year is owned as to 60% by Mr. Kong Kin | and 40% Kt WmFHERRAERGBEMRZLEIDES
by Ms. Choi Fong Lan. Under the SFO, Mr. Kong Kin | and Ms. 60% K 40% 7 55 o 1R 15 E 5 R EE 5G] -
Choi Fong Lan are deemed to be interested in all the Shares EREEERREBEZTHE SR UGS
registered in the name of Fortunate Year. Ms. Choi Fong Lan is BRECHABERGOPHEEERD - RE
the spouse of Mr. Kong Kin I. Under the SFO, Ms. Choi Fong ZTRAERTEENRS - RIFEZH KRB
Lan is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in EIE - RBEEZIEREAREER LA

which Mr. Kong Kin | is interested, and vice versa.

BAREDMERME RO EAER
RZ IR °

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, there were no [ F X BEEIN R ZE—-—&F#+_-_HF=+—
other interests or short positions of the Directors or chief executive of B » KA FIEE=S RS/ THA BELER NN T ST
the Company in the Shares or underlying shares or debentures of the  {aJ B A E (FE & B F 5 L EAE R HIXVER) 9 I% 5
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part  siiBRARE (D ek EEB A EM S SOA R - SR
XV of the SFO) or pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, required to be &4 & B E &0 FE 3521888 N\ B MR E b
recorded in the register or as otherwise notified to the Company and  jEzisiA B + X s BREIEEST R A< AN A &) B

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

R E S SIR R o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31 December
2022, the following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had notified the Company of its interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 or Part XV of the SFO:

ERICRNILG - HEARG R AR
2GR RIKE

RAEMRIBEEF R AAEKROIFE336KAERMNEZEMR
HEMPER N E-_—F+-_A=+—H" T
WAL (RAREFRATEHITHRABRINE NS A
NEIERARBIRRD SAERER G R ERFEFHEEIR
BES RIS GG EXVEE2 N30 B IE AR A
NRFENESSKET ¢

Long positions in Shares: RERGBPFR :
Percentage of

Name of Number of shareholding
Substantial Shareholder Nature of interests Shares interest
FERRERE RsitE kaHE RESEIL
Fortunate Year Beneficial interest 670,000,000 67.00%
ImfF Ry o

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no other persons Bk EXFIHEEIN - RZZE__F+_A=+—

(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 was the
Company or any of its holding company or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolutions passed
on 24 November 2017. The Share Option Scheme enables the
Company to grant options to the Eligible Persons (as defined below) as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any Eligible Persons to take up
options. Upon acceptance of the option, the Eligible Person shall pay
HK$1.00 to our Company by way of consideration for the grant. The
option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the
date on which the option is granted. “Eligible Person” means any full-
time or part-time employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, and any suppliers, customers,
agents, advisors and consultants of the Group who, in the sole
opinion of our Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and other
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 100,000,000 Shares, being
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of listing of Shares on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”). No share options were granted
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme up to the date of
this annual report. Therefore, the number of Shares available for issue
is 100,000,000 Shares, being approximately 10% of the Shares in
issue as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to a participant under the Share Option Scheme
and other schemes (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue from time to time. Any further grant of options in excess 1%
limit shall be subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting
with such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

The subscription price for the Shares subject to options will be a price
determined by our Board and notified to each participant and shall
be the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
options, which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Unless there is any early termination of the Share Option Scheme
pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, the Share
Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Listing Date, after which period no further options
may be granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects and options
granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above, there were no equity-linked agreements entered into by the
Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company had no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which requires compliance with any of the
reporting, announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in this annual report and in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance, to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with him/her had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. These transactions were
either exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, or did not fall under the definition of connected transactions or
continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors are considered to
be interested in businesses which compete or are likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

Save for Mr. Kong Kin I's registration for Construtor Civil Kong Kin | as
a sole proprietorship according to the laws of Macau, details of which
were set out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus, none of the Directors nor the
controlling Shareholders nor their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) had an interest in a business that competed or
might compete with the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022,

The controlling Shareholders entered into a deed of non-competition
in favour of the Company (for themselves and as trustee for the
subsidiaries) on 24 November 2017 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”),
details of which are set out in the section headed “Relationship with
our Controlling Shareholders — Non-Competition Undertakings by
our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus. The controlling
Shareholders confirmed the compliance with the undertakings given
under the Deed of Non-Competition.

The independent non-executive Directors were delegated with the
authority to review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition. The independent non-executive Directors were
not aware of any non-compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition
during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets or profits of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur or about
the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter
in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any such
Director.

The Company has taken out appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualification
and competence. The emolument of the Directors is reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme as an incentive
to eligible persons, details are set out under the heading “Share
Option Scheme” in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the applicable laws of the Cayman lIslands where the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this annual report.

DONATION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not make
charitable and other donations. (2021: Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS
AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of
revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 78.5% of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue
from the Group’s largest customer was accounted for approximately
583.2% of the Group’s total revenue.

In addition, the Group’s purchases attributable to its five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 64.0% of the Group’s total
purchases. The Group’s purchases attributable to its largest supplier
accounted for approximately 31.9% of the Group’s total purchases.
The Group’s sub-contracting charges attributable to its five largest
subcontractors accounted for approximately 71.7%. The Group’s
sub-contracting charges attributable to the largest subcontractor
accounted for approximately 61.8% of the total sub-contracting
charges.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 did the
Directors, their close associates or Shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the total number of
issued Shares) had any interests in any of the five largest customers,
suppliers or subcontractors of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the CG Code except the deviation from provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code. Detailed information on the Company’s
corporate governance principle and practices are set out on pages
28 1o 44 of this annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 January 2023, the Company and a placing agent entered into
a placing agreement to subscribe a maximum of 100,000,000 new
ordinary shares (the “Share(s)”) of the Company at the placing price
of HK$0.11 per Share (the “Placing”). The new Shares were issued
under the general mandate granted to the Directors pursuant to an
ordinary resolution of the Company passed at the annual general
meeting held on 9 September 2022. The 100,000,000 new Shares,
with par value of HK$0.01 each, were placed to not less than six
independent placees on 1 February 2023 with net proceeds of
approximately HK$10,835,000.

The closing market price per share of the immediately preceding
business day of the issue of Placing Shares was HK$0.151. The
discount of the issue price to market price was approximately
27.15%.

Details of the Placing are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 9 January 2023 and 1 February 2023.

The Directors intended to use the entire net proceeds from the
Placing as general working capital of the Group.

Save as disclosed, the Board is not aware of any significant events
requiring disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

AUDITOR

Linksfield CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company
on 15 June 2022 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Moore Stephens CPA Limited on 29 April 2022. Moore Stephens
CPA Limited has been the auditor of the Company from 30 December
2019 to 29 April 2022 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who has been the auditor of
the Company since the Listing.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by Linksfield CPA Limited who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”).
A resolution will be proposed to the Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint Linksfield CPA Limited as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Kong Kin |
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R TR

LINKSFIELD

CPA LIMITED

To the Shareholders of Kin Pang Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kin Pang Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
101 to 211, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

— revenue recognition for provision of building and ancillary
services and recognition of contract assets; and

— impairment for trade receivables and contract assets.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key Audit Matters
FRESSE

Revenue recognition for provision of building and
ancillary services construction works and recognition
of contract assets

Refer to Note 2.20(a), Note 4(a), Note 6 and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BER2HERE M E KN F2.200a) © Kl iEd@ - W6k
F7E20 ©

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue
as recognised from provision of building and ancillary
services amounted to approximately MOP589 million and
the Group’s contract assets as arisen from the provision of
building and ancillary services amounted to approximately
MOP316 million as at 31 December 2022.
HE_Z-__F+-_A=+—HILFE - E5EKEREMH
BEREERBERHWAL RE89E &RMT - ARRZ
T_F+ZHA=1+—H ESEXREBRERERZEREER
B2 EHEENRII6E &R -

Revenue from provision of building and ancillary services is
recognised over time by measuring the progress towards
completion of the Group’s performance obligations as set
out in respective contracts.

REZENAERBOWATIEBAE
HTE BB 40 B (L ST S BE R R BERR ©

BEEEEZALT

The Group has used the output method to estimate the
progress of each performance obligation satisfied over time
by reference to the value of construction works completed
to date (as evaluated by the Group’s internal technicians
and/or certified by external architects, surveyors or other
representatives as appointed by customers (collectively the
“External Technicians”)) as a proportion of the total contract
value of the relevant construction contracts.
EEBRRARDEAGAEREATKSHERANEEINER -
EHP2RIEZSE TR I'&f’i@(ﬁ BB BT
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FAREZEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EFEERDREEARERSENSE

EHEEROIERBEZTENUAEZRSHEENE

=

-0

We performed the following procedures to address the key
audit matter:

BERTTUATERFAREBRERSEA

e Understood management’s internal control on
the revenue recognition for provision of building
and ancillary services and recognition of contract
assets and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk factors;

e  THREREHIREM Lﬁ&@ﬂﬁﬁ&i‘%ﬂ&)\ﬁﬁw&/\%ﬁﬁ
ERERH A IS - WS M T EERZEMEAE
B R l%%ﬁﬁk%fﬁ LE) &5 R

° Evaluated the outcome of the prior period assessment
on the estimated value of the construction works
completed to date for different projects (primarily
focus on those construction works as completed as
evaluated by the Group’s internal technicians but not
yet certified by External Technicians) to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process
by comparing with the actual value as subsequently
certified by External Technicians or the actual amounts
as subsequently settled by customers;

e FHMEHEARIERLESTEARBRETIRMGES R
HER(EFZEPZECRIREH SEEMAIIRM
ABFHHERARBINIRIMA SRBRETIR) - 8
BLELBINBEMA B ERFRANEREBERXTP HZ
HENER SR UMEERE 2 A EF 2/

° Evaluated and tested, on a sample basis, the key
controls over the revenue recognition from provision
of building and ancillary services and recognition of
contract assets;

o HEGRHE BB IR HEEE R R E RS BMARER KR
BB ERRH AT



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key Audit Matters
HRERSE

Revenue recognition for provision of building and
ancillary services construction works and recognition
of contract assets (Continued)

Contract assets arise when the Group has completed certain
construction works which are yet to be certified by External
Technicians and/or the Group’s right to payment is still
conditional on factors other than passage of time.
SHREER BREETKE TRABIMNIRMASRIL
BETER /% BEEHNFRERDEURR R E R AN
RIEERESE o

The determination of the estimated value of the construction
works completed to date for different projects involved
significant management’s judgment and estimates which
may have significant impact on the amount and timing of
revenue recognised.
EETRBERLESRIETKNEETENMGTEESRE
BREmERABAMGET - HA] R AR & R R E
HEEARTE -

We focused on this area because the magnitude of revenue
as recognised from provision of building and ancillary
services and the contract assets as at the end of reporting
period is significant and determining the value of the
construction works completed to date for the purpose of
recognising revenue from provision of construction works
over time involved significant management’s judgment and
estimates.
EEZENHTENRRERNREARERERERELRE
BB LEHNEENBACTEREAN  MEBTLESRIEETK
BEETRNEENEREREIERERETIRNLAL K
EIR BRI EAHIER R A ET o

FAREZEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EEEERTREMRERSENS

EBHREZRDERBEZZTIENRABERSHEELE
4G

o Reviewed, on a sample basis, the key terms and
conditions of material construction contracts;

o MBEFEERNERESONBRIGIMGEMT

e  Checked, on a sample basis, the value of the certified
construction works completed to date for different
projects as used in determining the amounts of revenue
recognised for certified construction works against
the amounts as set out in the underlying supporting
certificates issued by the External Technicians;

e HMERBESRILA/TRIERTKEERERZETE
ZEBE UETEREEERIENERIWASTE - I
EANER R A BB MR R E R IR R

AR
MR

e  Assessed, on a sample basis, management’s estimates
on the value of uncertified construction works
completed to date for different projects by inspecting
the relevant underlying supporting documents (e.g.
evaluation reports as prepared by the Group’s internal
technicians, payment applications to customers and
etc.); and

o EREMEBMEAXE(PIE EEERNMRIMAS
EHNFERS  AETFELZMNRBES)  HEE
BEHTFRERLESE KN AREREIRZEE
BflET - &

e Discussed with management and project managers
to understand the extent of completion of the
construction works of different projects in progress.

o HEBERRBLEN® ATHEIRERERNE
ETIRZTHERE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
judgment and estimates adopted by management in the
accounting for revenue recognition for provision of building
and ancillary services and recognition of contract assets
were supportable by available evidence.

BEREEDZEF  EEEREBEENZEREHRERER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key Audit Matters
FREXSE

Impairment for trade receivables and contract assets

Refer to Note 2.9.4, Note 4(b), Note 18 and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FL2ERATBERRWT29.4  HE4b) « MEi18 k&
F#5E20 o

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had gross trade
receivables and contact assets of approximately MOP33
million and approximately MOP327 million, respectively
and, the provision for impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets of approximately MOPO.7 million and
approximately MOP12 million, respectively. Provision is
made for lifetime expected credit losses (‘ECLs”) on trade
receivables and contract assets.
RZBZZF+ZHA=+T—0 " E5ENEFEKFIER
BHEEMBTES A AIBE BRI T RA27E BERMT -
ME 5 RWHRIERENEERBEREED BIZR0.7E &R
TRAN2EERPIT - ERMEZRIHKIEREHNEERNTH
BRHEEER(FEREEEBE DA RES -

Management applied judgment in assessing the expected
credit losses. Trade receivables and contract assets relating
to customers with known financial difficulties or significant
doubt on collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. Expected credit
losses are also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables and contract assets based on shared credit
risk characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account the nature and size of
the customer, and applying expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables
and contract assets. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on the nature and size of customer,
historical credit losses experience, ageing of overdue
receivable and customer’s repayment history, and are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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FAREZEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EEEERTREMRERSENS

ESRBRMAEREHEENRE

We performed the following procedures to address the key
audit matter:
EERT YRR AREFREZEE -

e Understood, evaluated and validated, on a
sample basis, the key control procedures over the
management’s estimation of expected credit losses
allowance and periodic review of aged receivables and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors associated with
estimating the expected credit Iosses

o LMBAIATH FEREEEERERANBREES
BEE N E SR SRR IERN B IEGRRr - I
FRERBANTHERE REMETRNBRESES
BHEENERREREE - FHEERERERRALNE
ARk

e Obtained management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables.
We corroborated and validated, on a sample basis,
management’s assessment based on the historical
settlement pattern, correspondence with the
customers, evidence from external sources including
the relevant market research regarding the relevant
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors used in management’s assessment;
s ENMEEREEREUWRERBEEEEREELOT
1° EEURBETABZALIE  EBERBELLE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key Audit Matters
FRESSE

Impairment for trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade
receivables and contract assets and the estimation and
judgment involved in determining the expected credit losses
allowance of the trade receivables and contract assets.
HNE ZRIKFIER G NEENREARETEE S EWRIE
REHNEBENTBREREBERBENY REET KA - 8K
ISR R E S -

FAREZEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EFEERDREEARERSENSE

ESERHKERSHEENREE)

Challenged management’s basis and judgment in
determining loss allowance on trade receivables and
contract assets, including their identification of credit-
impaired trade receivables and contract assets, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
remaining trade debtors into different categories in the
provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss rates
applied in each category in the provision matrix (with
reference to historical default rates and forward-looking
information);
EREEEERTEHIRBRARANEENEIRR
7 ERKE R - BREBRNEERENESE
WHIBEREHNEE BEEBSHRTEZBEBADER
BEEEPTRARNE B REREEBHSE
RIFTEA AT IBARRNKER(2ER LB KA
HERD)

Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of information
used by management to develop the provision matrix,
including aging analysis of trade receivables and
contract assets, by checking to the relevant sales
invoices;

FRRSHEAEEERE BT REERTEEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Key Audit Matters
FRESSE

Impairment for trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

FAREZEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EFEERDREEARERSENSE

ESERHKERSHEENREE)

e  Considered the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent, professional and qualified valuer
by considering its qualification, relevant experience and
relationship with the Group;

o BBEEBY  BERESERMERMIER  BHEL
BhkE BEEECBAER ZEHESEE - HeE Rk
FHIM

o Involved our internal valuation expert to develop an
auditor’s point estimate in assessing the expected
credit losses allowance including forward-looking
information; and

e PHEEFNNBHEZRAEZBENTHERAGEE
BIEBERNDBULHE - BENREER &

e Tested, on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement
of trade receivables and contract assets against bank
receipts.

e EERITHKEBEHESRKFERSHNEENRERE
EITHEOAH -

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation
and judgment made by management in respect of the
impairment for trade receivables and contact assets were
supportable by the available evidence.

EREiRE EEEREREERESIRUFEREHNE
EREPTER AT R AT B RIS BB IS HF -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs wiill
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Kwok Chi Kan.

Linksfield CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023

BB EFZ G S ISR AREN
B5F=

EENRBZZEQBBNERT  BEPLER
UGS MBREANERTIERREE AR
FAREZSFA - BROPARIER T T ARKEL
FFH  IRNBFEANBERT - EERSWELF
ZRASERHNTREARGERARIBNES
BENNAEM AERBERRE - BRIBEFERNZH
AR & st bt I8 o

HEAARB Y ZBENRENETHEABARILE
%jj o

SEEHEMEBAERAT
HEE D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEERR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZE - —F+-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021

—E_— —E-—F

NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
Kz TR T TP

Revenue A 6 598,823 958,955

Direct costs BEERA 8 (575,070) (949,758)

Gross profit EF 23,753 9,197

Other income, gain and loss HUA -~ Wz K Esia 7 3,320 1,023

Administrative expenses 1T 8 (30,577) (27,419)

Impairment losses under expected TEEMEEBEEN T 2RE

credit loss model E518 10 (903) (1,464)

Operating loss REEE (4,407) (18,663)

Finance costs BB RS 11 (5,162) (2,534)

Share of results of associates DIGEE R RIFEE (29) =

Loss before income tax FREFBILAIE IS (9,598) (21,197)

Income tax (expense)/credit FriS®i(AX), e 12 (2,043) 417

Loss for the year attributable to ARTHE AEBLERER

the owners of the Company (11,641) (20,780)

Loss per share attributable to ARTHE AELERER

owners of the Company (LAEPILET)
(in MOP cents)

Basic and diluted BERR#E 13 (1.16) (2.08)
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in LA _E4r& 18237k FE EARE M P 5= — FFBE:E -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SeEZHEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZE - —F+-A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
ot o —FT-—%F
NOTE MOP’000 MOP’000
Kz TRMT TP
Loss for the year FREE (11,641) (20,780)
Other comprehensive loss EM%EEE
Item that may not be reclassified to AJRET B EM DR Eam
profit or loss: EA -
Change in fair value of equity instrument IR ABE AHME E IR
at fair value through other RERTAZ AREBES
comprehensive income 17 (16) (1,204)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FREMEEEIE - HRTHE
netoftx ... g (1,204
Total comprehensive loss for AREHE AELFERAZHEHE
the year attributable to the R4EEE
owners of the Company (11,657) (21,984)
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should [ F4R4 2S5 e S REFI BT s — 1R -

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SE BB R

As at 31 December 2022 R —ZE - —F+_-A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
B=-—Z=-— R-IZE——F
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—~”
NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
e TRMT TR
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB MR 15 72,861 72,300
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 5,947 5,022
Deposits i 19 435 334
Investments in associates KB E R RIIRE 29 - 7
Equity instrument at fair value through IR ARBEF AE M2 ERZEH
other comprehensive income BT HE 17 - 3,016
79,243 80,679
Current assets mEBEE
Trade receivables E 5 EWGRIE 18 32,204 42,874
Prepayments, deposits, and other TBRRIE -« Re REMEREIE
receivables 19 20,085 47,602
Contract assets BHEE 20(a) 315,725 352,108
Amount due from a joint operation JEU—THA & HEFUE 33(b) 2,023 1,289
Pledged bank deposits BRIRERIT IR 21(a) 67,297 48,558
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 21(b) 18,915 10,330
! 456,249 502,761
Total assets HEE 535,492 583,440
EQUITY S
Equity attributable to the owners of ZA2ATRIHEE AE(LRER
the Company
Share capital N 22 10,300 10,300
Reserves fEtE 190,963 202,620
Total equity RS 201,263 212,920
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As at 31 December 2022 R —ZE - —F+_-A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
B=-—2—_— R —5F
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—~”
NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
Bfat TiRMT FRFT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRENEE
Deferred government grants EEBT B 16 404 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 3,632 3,221
4,036 3,221
Current liabilities mBaE
Trade and other payables 2 5 RHEMERFIE 24 181,160 227,693
Contract liabilities BHEE 20(b) 12,638 3,054
Income tax payable FERTFR1S R 6,389 4,346
Bank borrowings RITER 25 127,743 130,219
Deferred government grants R TFE B 16 165 =
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 2,098 1,987
330,193 367,299
Total liabilities HaE 334,229 370,520
Total equity and liabilities HESREE 535,492 583,440

The consolidated financial statements on pages 101 to 211 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023 and were

signed on its behalf.

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be

Mr. Kong Kin |
BER5LE

Executive Director

HITEF

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FINE2NENGEAMBRREBEFTEN_-F
“=F=A=1TRHIE TR TIALTHRAEE -

VA5 & BA TS AR 2% e SR A B B 5 — G B AE -

Ms. Choi Fong Lan
HERZL
Executive Director

HITEF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—ZE - —F+-A=+—HILFE

Share Share Legal  Fair value Other  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve rese{ve reserve earnings equity
4
KA RINEE  EERE F{Ef‘iﬁﬁ HitfkE  Z&FE miER
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000
TREMT  TRAr  TEfAx TRMAT TR TRMx TRMR
(Note () (Note (i)
(W) (hrzz)
At 1 January 2021 MW=2--%-F-H 10,300 80,932 125 (6,480) 12,731 137,296 234,904
Comprehensive income 2EkKE
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (20,780) (20,780)
Other comprehensive loss ~ HH12EEE
Change in fair value of equity AR EE AL 2 EME
instrument at fair value through ~ BB T A2 A EE
other comprehensive income 2 = = = (1,204) - - (1,204)
Total comprehensive loss for ~ FRZHEEEAE
the year - - - (1,204) - o780 (21,984)
At31December2021and ~ W=F-—F+-f=+-H
1 January 2022 k=B-_"%-HF—-H 10,300 80,932 125 (7,684) 12,731 116,516 212,920
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year ENEE - - - - - (11,641)  (11,641)
Other comprehensive loss Rt 2EHR
Changeinfairvalue of equity ~ RAREBEAEMZENR
instrument at fair value through B9 TEZ AR EE
other comprehensive income 8] - - - (16) - - (16)
Total comprehensivelossfor ~ FRZFFEEE
the year - - - (16) - (11,641) (11,657)
Release of fair value reserve  (HERA L BEG ARfH
upon disposal of equity PENHNERTE
instrument at fair value through ARt BIERFERE
other comprehensive income - - - 7,700 - (7,700) -
At 31 December 2022 R=F==F+-A=t+-H 10,300 80,932 125 - 12,731 97,175 201,263
Notes: KiaE
() In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau ()  RIECRFISRITTHREE AR YEI77IE - KRG

Special Administrative Region, the subsidiary registered in Macau is
required to transfer part of its profits of each accounting period of not
less than 25% to legal reserve, until the amount reaches half of its share
capital.

(i)  Other reserve arose from the group reorganisation in 2017.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

(i)
AR

e B8 A R AN & &5t B K T DR EMES
BRBEETEREM - EREERBSRETERA

MBI ©

Hit#ERE T —tFNEEEH -

AR A BB R BB R X — ORI -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

S A A —]
GEHRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE
2022 2021
=5 —E_—fF
NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
Hfat TRMT TR T
Cash flows from operating activities R&FHELENRESRE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &S,/ (Frf )R & 32(a) 49,437 (70,878)
Income tax paid BEATSHEL - (3,257)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KRR ENFTS, (FTA) IR &
operating activities R 49,437 (74,135)
Cash flows from investing activities REFHELENHEESRE
Placement of pledged bank deposits FASERBRITIEHK (21,829) (6,884)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits R EEARITFR 3,090 =
Purchases of property, plant and BEYX  WEREE
equipment (15,733) (36,751)
Proceed from disposal of equity HERAREBEFAEMEZE
instrument at fair value through other I zsry e zs T AR5 5RIE
comprehensive income 3,000 -
Acquisition of an associate g el /N (25) =
Interest received BHFIE 248 702
Government grants received EWBSEED 659 =
Net cash used in investing activities KB EEAIR S F5E (30,590) (42,933)
Cash flows from financing activities BIZEFHELENRESRE
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (2,624) (2,024)
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITER (856,275) (409,984)
New bank borrowings raised EEMIBRITER 853,799 511,872
Interest paid ERFE (5,162) (2,534)
Net cash (used in)/generated from FEEE(FTA), TSR EF8
financing activities (10,262) 97,290
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBSEEWEMCRL)
cash equivalents pEiE] 8,585 (19,778)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUBR e MRSEEY
beginning of the year 10,330 30,108
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRBEEMARCEEYD
of the year 21(b) 18,915 10,330

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  Filt4r& IR & &7 FE ERREM I s —PFBIRE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kin Pang Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate and ultimate
parent is Fortunate Year Investments Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) with limited
liability. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Kong Kin | (“Mr.
Kong”), who is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, and Ms. Choi Fong Lan (“Ms. Choi”), the spouse
of Mr. Kong.

The Company’s registered office is located at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business in Hong Kong
is located at Unit B, 23/F, Centre Mark Il, 305-313 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong. The headquarter in Macau is located
at L17 Pak Tak (China Civil Plaza), No. 249-263 Alameda Dr.
Carlos d’Assumpcao, Macau.

The principal activity of the Company and its subsidiaries is civil
engineering in Macau and Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Macau Pataca (“MOP’000”), unless otherwise
stated.

—RER
BEEBEZERBERAR(TARFRASAHSTE
MR RERRER AR - ERHNE LR
ERGMBRAR([HRPT]) LW - HEE
RERBARANRBEARES ([RBH
BRES ) EMKINERARARFRER
Rm] - RRAERTT SRR TA([ET
£ BARARBERERITERAR) RIFR
(MRt BELNEE) -

A A B FE A 9 = B L R Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° & 4
FEE MBI N BB 2R/ ABHI05-3135%
KEFRL2EBE © BB NBRPIREE
[&3%249-2635% £ KE17HL -

ARRBREK B AR EBERBE /R R
BEENLTARIRER -

BREBEATIEIN  ZEEE TR IA TR
(I FRFATHZE7) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXE:IBEREIE
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation %%%EZ%F Aﬁ?ﬁ“#&i’%ﬁﬁﬁﬁi%?ﬁﬂl%ﬁ
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. FIAT - BRAEBEHAI  ZFEHRERFEZ
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years &if‘éf’%&fﬁﬁ @

presented, unless otherwise stated.

21 RREE

RAEMBRRTIBRBEEBYBRELER
(TEEMBHREER | (ZERARRE

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting

B\

Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

mEBEMAS([FEEMAE])
B TR B R R (E R BB B 15 i 2
Al FREHEN(EBSTER ] R
28) BEARGTRALEEQRIE
BI(F6228 ) 2 REREL - 76 %R
RIVRE S RAEI R EL -

AN AT EMBHREERZRENT
BERFBRERETHREE A - EF
EREEEERBARESTRR 2B
RPITREHE - FRBRERE 2 H 6
RAEFENE 2 B - SRR MAAETH
WRM s BERZ SISO E4EE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXZEFABEHBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE )

(a) New and amended standards adopted by (@) AEBEIRMZIETREIETE
the Group =1l
The Group has applied the following new and AEBER-_Z=_=_F—F—HHA
amended standards, improvements and interpretation R FEREHEEAEANATH
for the first time for their annual reporting period A RAMERTZER ~ B MR
commencing 1 January 2022:

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and BAEGTER ¥E - BERRE
Equipment: Proceeds 1658 & : BERZEA
before Intended Use Fris kB (55T
(Amendments) )

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent BELEER BE  ABER
Liabilities and Contingent B375% SAREE  BiE
Assets: Onerous BHR—EBITER
Contracts — Cost of B (IERTAN)
Fulfiling a Contract
(Amendments)

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: BEMBHRE EBE0H - B
Reference to the AR 355 HEZR AR (57T
Conceptual Framework )
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16 Leases: COVID-19-Related HEMBmE ME: —T-—F
Rent Concessions AERIZE165%  SNA=ZTHED
beyond 30 June 2021 COVID-1948F87H

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements FENEER T \FE=-F

Project 2018-2020 Cycle ZTE RN
(Amendments) SR (B3R A)

The amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current
or future periods.

BB RT AR M B 1 B R R Y
SRERTATE  BEHYTE
HBAMRKARRBREEKEKRT
g;ﬁ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEE)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b) EIRRAHIFNETER R RE
adopted

AT e 2R R 2B E B E R R

PR BRI H AR - BAEE

AR RN

The following new standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for the current
reporting period and have not been early adopted by
the Group:

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
HRUTHES 2%
BRI AYF EHAR £ 3K

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice  Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments)
Statement 2

1 January 2023

EREGEFIRNER BATBERKER (BR] ) —E-=%—f—H
B RS R s R B M S 55258

HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments) 1 January 2023
g ERIE8R EEHAETHER (BRTA) —E_=%—H—H

HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising 1 January 2023

from a single transaction (Amendments)

A G ERIE125% HE - HMEFNEERBERBNELETE —ZE_=F—H—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BB REERIEITIH RiREK —E_=%—H—H
HKFRS 17 Amendments to HKFRS 17 1 January 2023
BBV RELRFETHR BEMBREERFATRIEFT A —ZE-=%—A—H

HKFRS 17
BAMGREEUEA7H
HKAS 1

BAGHEAEIR
HKAS 1

BAGRTEAE1R
HKFRS 16

BB RELERFE165%
HK Int 5 (Revised)

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information

BN REERNE17TR R BB REAER
FOFRE VA IE A — LB E Y

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
Current (Amendments)

BESERRBSIERE (ERTA)

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(Amendments)

MR ERE B E(ERTA)

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
(Amendments)

ERMADNEEEREGEETA)

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan

1 January 2023
—ET=%—H—H
1 January 2024

—ZE_mME—-HA—H
1 January 2024

—EUFE—H—H
1 January 2024

—ZE-F—H—H
1 January 2024

R\

that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
WEmENEY —ERAHSBRERKERGR ZT-NWF—H—H
HEHER DL
Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor To be determined
and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments)
REEEEBENR NG ELE L RNEELE HFETE

B (IBEIA)

BEREFSH(EIER])
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

ESI RS ERZE105 &
B ETHERFE 285



For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 RBEEE)

(b) FERERAAIFET R R 2R ()

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (Continued)

The directors of the Company have assessed the
financial impact on the Group of the adoption of
the above new standards, amendments to existing
standards, interpretations and accounting guideline.
These standards, amendments and interpretation
are not expected to have a material financial impact
on the Group in the future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions. The Group is
currently revisiting their accounting policy information
disclosures to ensure consistency with the amended
requirements. The Group intends to adopt the above
new standards, amendments and interpretation to
existing standards interpretations and accounting
guideline when they become effective.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

ARRESDFHERMA LB T E
A RELEA BRI 2 BEE
AHESIHARENT B E - %5
R BRI AR BREBRHTER K
RS B AR SR E K A TR R AR 2R
RHBEAYBEE - AEEBA
EENEGHEESABREMKE
MARER BRIEERT 1R A B SRR %5 —
B REBEN AR LTI
FIER|  MEERZER]A - 2l
ERECEEIE

2.2 FERAIRESEE

(a) Subsidiaries (a) KMIBAT
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured MEAREASEEZEH 22 EE
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group (BIEEBILER)  c EASEER
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or 2EBEEMEEREENSER 2
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with Al D3R - WHRE N BEERE N5
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns BEREDHAFEZZRRE - A
through its power to direct the activities of the entity. REEEHZER - B R REE
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on SlEEEEASE 2 HRRTR2GE
which control is transferred to the Group. They are AR o BB A RIEEHERILEZ B
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. BIEIEARE ARR ©
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised SEARRICENR S « Bk R
gains on transactions between group companies FIENR W TUAE - BRIER
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated SRMMEEEERENLE &
unless the transaction provides evidence of an BIREIBA BRI T A S - (1B
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting AN BT REERSTEERR
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where B DARRR BN S B BRI BUR —
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies By o
adopted by the Group.
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling REBBEFERERETISE
interests that do not result in a loss of control as AR EEHERFE AERNEER
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A A NETHR S - FTAEER
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment ) I i i B IR iR i R A
between the carrying amounts of the controlling FEEZE  URBESRHBEA
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative ARSI R o JFEREE AR S
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the REUEM BB AR E 2 AT ‘\
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests A Z5 - AR RIHEE AELHE §\%
and any consideration paid or received is recognised HANEIBEEBERER
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group has joint operations.

Joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group recognises its direct right to the assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint operations
and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.

2.2 FERAIRESEER)

(a)

(b)

MEATR @)

BN E A R R - KRS
EBAFENME LFE ARIIR
B AR—RRER  R%ER
MERMNGESREEAREES
METE - YRGBT ERS

HENES - pLER AR FRZ
DA AEEFRAETHMEENRE
BaEmE - 22N EBE/RVZERER
B - W5 RRREREREME
M Y s R N (AT 2 BRI IR B N
ARBECERLERBEEXARE
T AARR - BRIBEBIRE SATE
Hip 2 E W R 2 BASE N
DHREEDnNEREERBTEVG
WEERPTIEE AT S —
&5l -

AERH
REFBVHBHRELENE R G
BRHE] HEERHZREED
BREEEBREELE - %0
BYEREEZERRENREBN
T MRS B LB ARG
REBREREFS -

AERK
BEXBIEERARITHIRNE S
FHEHEGELHERNEEEN &
BEEEN—BAERY - ARE
HIFEIR IR A M E S — AL BT A
B EhE - KEEHEEERE
BEKZRITHIEZATOIFEL—
HREZRERFE -

AEERABELHEEXHNEE -
BfE - WARFXHEREN AR
EEEMARBEREENEE
BE  WARFXTHONE -



For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity accounting (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity accounting (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

22 FERAIRESES
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEXEHBEREBZE®

POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 2.2 GFERAIRESFE®)
(Continued)

(d) Equity accounting (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.8.

(d) #E=EEHER
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2.3 Business combination 2.3 BELSH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

o fair values of the assets transferred,

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
entity,

e equity interests issued by the Group,

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXE:tHEHSE 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combination (Continued) 2.3 ESHE)

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

o consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses
arising from such remeasurement are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

24

2.5

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiaries in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investments in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwiill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (the “CODM”). The CODM, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the management of the Group, who makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Macau Pataca (“MOP”), which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”).

24
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or
loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net
basis within “administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

° income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

2.6 SMBBE @)

(ii)

(iii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.6 SMBBE )

B

(i) Group companies (Continued)
e all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXE:tHEHSE 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.7 Y¥ - RERRE#)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the remaining lease
term of 30 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
term of the lease, or 3
years

Furniture and fixtures 3to 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 to 6 years

Plant and machinery 6 to 7 years

Office equipment 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other income, gain and loss” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition. To
the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there is separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

Investments and other financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
(“OCI") or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVTOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

29 RERHMEMEE &)
292 TERRRARIEHERD

29.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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29.3 Measurement 203 ;E
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial ML ERE - AEEREHEEN
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial ARBENHNEHEELIEZEA
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”), AEEFAERE([RAREBERA
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the Bx])) EEFBERNKEZERE
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs ENRGKIFTECTHEE - BA
of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in AEEFAEBRIENCRHEER
profit or loss. DA RIBIR T o
Equity instruments T A
The Group subsequently measures all equity REBHEEBZEAABETEMEE
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s miEE o WASEEREERENH
management has elected to present fair value gains EERE 2 ERIREN A NE
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no BlmKEE - BIRRERIEER
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and ‘BregAEEKE R EERERE
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition EMOEEER c REEHEIREN
of the investment. Dividends from such investments 1% S 8 P2 & B 2 Wk i R e L
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other R B B A FER BEAA -
income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEFABENERHEEN
are recognised in “other income, gain and loss” in the AABEEHRGEERERAN
consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable. Ea g A~ Uas & e 1B RERR (A0
A) .
Annual Report FE R 2022 121

) 7



122 Kin Pang Holdings Limited 22512 AR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

29 RERHMEMEE &)

B

294 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (the “ECL”) associated with
its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the trade
receivables and contract assets.

210 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. Other receivables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents 212 RERBFLEEY

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within bank borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheet.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXZT:tHEHSE 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Borrowings 215 {8

B\

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred
to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss as
finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap),
a gain or loss is recognised in consolidated statement of
profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair
value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Borrowing costs 216 {ERAA

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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(i)

(ii)

BPEARR S %L
ENHAPTSIRAR R B R KK B 2 A
BB NELERARTWAMEBRRR
BERRCEMLELD R 2HR
EREEE - BEEMERNG
DI FT R IR A 15 E HiRTHE 3R
BRI - WEEBRGHEED
BRI REIR ZRREEE R TLIRATA o
AERERBHEAAELENSESL
TBHA(E(E (R i) & Be B ERETAOR
THERZNBRTREME) &t
BHTRMER

IEEFSH
EEEHREER BB HER
ReVBRERAAEEER Y
RiEZ8 - WA BEEBHAIRE
o AT MRS EREEESE
EXERARAE - AN S ERIELR
AR - WRIEXEBEH X ST
VFHEREERBBEMELELERR
BH - MRXSZERTELESTR
B R ERBUENHEE - AT g
RREMSHARK B TELRE
R ERRBL R AT IR E R 58 i
FEFTIS RN RS HIoR Al 2 R =X
BEECDHEM XA ERRARELT
FISMEESFEREMSHAR
RIEMR B 2 B R (oA &
5 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXZEFABEHBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the entity is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Investment allowances and similar tax
incentives

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits,
which means that the allowance reduces income tax
payable and current tax expense.
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(ii)

(iii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Retirement benefit costs

Group companies operate various defined contribution
pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or trustee-
administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.

Eligible employees of the Group are covered by a
government-mandated defined contribution plan
pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement
benefit would be determined and paid by the
Macau Government. Contributions are generally
made by both employees and employers by paying
a fixed amount on a monthly basis to the Social
Security Fund Contribution managed by the Macau
Government. The Group funds the entire contribution
and has no further commitments beyond its monthly
contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 218 EE@ER»)

(i) Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme
(subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 per month
per employee), which contribution is matched by
employees. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed to the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

(ii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. Accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
consolidated statement of financial position date.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, namely the share option
scheme. Information relating to the share option
scheme is set out in Note 27. The fair value of options
granted under the Group’s share option scheme is
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for
example, the entity’s share price);

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a
specified period of time).
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(iv)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued) 218 EE@ER»)

(iv) Share-based compensation (Continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (hominal value) and share premium.

(v) Termination benefit

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Provisions (Continued) 219 BE =)

B\

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the rendering of services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple elements, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices.
If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly observable,
they are estimated based on expected cost plus a margin
or adjusted market assessment approach, depending on
the availability of observable information.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the good or service may be
transferred over time or at a point of time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEXEHBEREBZE®

POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.20. T ATERR ()

Control of the goods or service is transferred over time if
the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
asset.

(@) Revenue from provision for building and
ancillary services

The building and ancillary services mainly included
foundation associated works, hard landscaping,
alteration and addition works, road works, water pipe
works, electrical and mechanical works and other
ancillary building works. Generally, the contracts
entered into by the Group is for the provision of
significant integration services and the goods and
services within the contract will be highly dependent
on or highly integrated with other goods or services.
As such, different elements of a construction contract
are accounted as a single performance obligation. The
Group treated the construction contracts as a single
performance obligation as the construction works are
not capable of being distinct.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

220 Revenue recognition (Continued)

220 Y A\ FERZ (4%
(a) REBEREERTEZWA @)

(a) Revenue from provision for building and

)N

ancillary services (Continued)

Revenue from individual contracts is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to
progress of the project towards complete satisfaction
of performance obligation. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue based on the value of construction
works completed to date (as evaluated by the
Group’s internal technicians and/or certified by
external architects, surveyors or other representatives
as appointed by customers (collectively the “External
Technicians”)) as a proportion of the total contract
value of the relevant construction contracts, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services.

The Group accounts for a modification if the
customers to a contract approve a change in the
scope and/or the price of a contract. A contract
modification is approved when the modification
creates or changes the enforceable rights and
obligations of the customers to the contract. If the
customers have approved a change in scope, but
have not yet determined the corresponding change in
price, the Group estimates the change to the contract
price as a variable consideration.

The estimated amount of the variable consideration,
including the claims and liquidated damages, is
included in the contract price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable considerations is subsequently resolved.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

220 Revenue recognition (Continued)

220 Y A\ FERZ (4%
(a) REBEREERTEZWA @)

(a) Revenue from provision for building and

ancillary services (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting
period and the changes in circumstances during the
reporting period.

For warranty embedded to the construction contracts,
the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets unless the warranty provides the
customer with a service in addition to the assurance
that the contracting work complies with the agreed-
upon specifications.

The payment terms differed for different customers
due to the variety of projects. The Group does not
intend to give a financing to customers and the Group
make efforts to collect the receivables and timely
monitor the credit risk.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEXEHBEREBZE®

POLICIES (Continued)

220 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Revenue from provision for emergency
repair services

The emergency repair services typically refer to the
provision of repair services in relation to infrastructure
of electricity and water supply on a term contract
basis.

Revenue from emergency repair services under term
contracts are recognised over time, and progress
is measured towards complete satisfaction of the
service, because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group. The revenue from the provision of the
emergency repair services under term contracts is
recognised when the service has been rendered.

2.21 Other income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method, on a time-proportion basis.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Earnings per share

(i)

(ii)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and the weighted average number
of additional ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

2.23 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXE:tHEHSE 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued) 223 #HE»®)

B\

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable,

e  variable lease payments that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date,

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees,

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received and makes any adjustments specific
to the lease, e.g., term, country, currency and security.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXET:tHEHSE 2
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases (Continued) 223 #HE#)

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to
the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the Group entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

o any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-valued assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase
option.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAEFAHEERBE»
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Dividend distribution 224 B 5K

B\

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as
a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the entity’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Dividend proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

2.25 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all the attached
conditions.

Government grants are recognised as “other income, gain
and loss” over the period necessary to match them with
the related costs which they are intended to compensate,
on a systematic basis.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.
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B EMERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to market risk (including
foreign exchange, cash flow and fair value interest rate and
other price), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and monitoring of such risks which
are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The
Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise potential adverse
effect on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency of the relevant group
entity. The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
and Macau. The Group entities collect most of
the revenue and incur most of the expenditures
in their respective functional currencies, namely
HK$ and MOP. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominating in a currency other than the Group
entities’ functional currency.

Management closely monitors foreign currency
exchange exposure and will take measures
to minimise the currency translation risk. The
Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not
used any hedging arrangement to hedge its
foreign exchange risk exposure as management
considers its exposure is not significant.

As the exchange rate of HK$/MOP is relatively
stable, the Group does not expect any significant
foreign currency exposure arising from the
fluctuation of the HK$/MOP exchange rates. As
a result, the management of the Group considers
that the sensitivity of the Group’s exposure
towards the change in foreign exchange rates
between HK$/MOP is minimal.

3

3.1 MFEREER

REE 2 X EEmE R T 5 AR (B35
- RERERAABEMEAREA
ERR) FERRIRBESRR - A&
Ee R R TR SIRAER DN - 5F
fl ~ B R BRI R T B T Al R
BRRER - Bt - AEBEHBERIIER
R B2 O 3R 2 e E P W ER Exmfi
%MS%IEM’%%%EEE’J BENNRE

(a) ™miZEE
() SMNE[ESZ

SMNERR KB RKEERS -
ARAFFREEEEREEE
WiTENERREENARG -
REETFZNEBLRFIFE
E Lﬁﬁlﬁﬁfiﬁu,\ 5 E
H&HXKﬁBn E’UH&U\&SEH?HE
DX o AEEEERINER
BRERKEER S RIARSE
B BRI GBI E T
EBENCHEAEERAE -

EREERVNERINERR jt
SRMEBEREEEHRE
2 o REBBEBTE ﬁﬂ*ﬁ%ﬂ‘$§.‘%
B B SN E R AR R IR SMNE R
g o ZNER [ S 5 R () 0
22 PR H [ bR RO S E LB -
ENEEERSERRY TNE
X o

R TTLRFITTH E KA Y
%E AEBBEHTISRET
YR P 7T BEE R Bh i 2= AR A AR

EKE’WI\@%J—L o Ak - AE
EERERR AKEEHBT
HORPITT 2 FE 9N e 22 5 B [
b BURERBIER -

Annual Report FE #%5 2022 141

) 4



B

142 Kin Pang Holdings Limited 22512 AR A 7

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from the Group’s bank deposits and borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of prevailing
market interest rates arising from the Group’s
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and MOP
best lending rate, Macau Interbank Offered Rate
(“MIBOR”) and Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR?”) arising from the Group’s variable-
rate bank borrowings. The Group does not use
financial derivatives to hedge against the interest
rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for its variable bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate
bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year and
50 basis points increase or decrease are used.
The pledged bank deposits and bank balances
are excluded from the sensitivity analysis as the
management of the Group considers that the
interest rate fluctuation is not significant.

If interest rates have been 50 basis points
higher/lower for variable-rate bank borrowings
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December
2022 would increase/decrease by approximately
MOP446,000 (2021: post-tax profit decrease/
increase by MOP557,000).
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BERRER
3.1 BBEMREZEZ)
(a) ™R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(iii) - Other price risk
As at 31 December 2021, the Group was
exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at
FVTOCI. The Group invested in an unquoted
equity security for investee operating in
construction industry sector for long term
strategic purposes which had been designated
as FVTOCI. The Group had appointed a special
team to monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis had been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at 31
December 2021.

Sensitivity analyses for ungquoted equity securities
with fair value measurement categorised within
Level 3 were disclosed in Note 3.2.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refer to the risk that the counter-party fails
to meet its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The credit risk of the Group
mainly arises from trade receivables, contract assets,
deposits and other receivables, amount due from
a joint operation, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BRMRERw
3.1 HEBEE 2
(b) EERKZ)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

B\

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has five types of assets that are subject to
the ECL model:

Trade receivables;

—  Contract assets;

—  Deposits and other receivables;

—  Amount due from a joint operation;

—  Pledged bank deposits; and

- Bank balances.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, twelve-month ECL
(“12-month ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within twelve months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets under the simplified
approach in accordance to HKFRS 9. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with known financial difficulties or significant doubt
on collection of receivables and collectively for other
debtors based on shared credit risk characteristics by
reference to the nature and size of debtors, historical
credit loss experience, ageing of overdue receivable
and customer’s repayment history and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information such
as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance under the general approach in accordance
to HKFRS 9, which is equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. Forward-looking information considered
includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate and contract
assets, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts and governmental bodies, as
well as consideration of various external sources
of actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

BRI )

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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BRI )

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BKEMERe
3.1 MERERE#)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

B\

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
performs credit investigation (including assessing
financial information, seeking advice from business
partners of the potential customers and performing
credit search) to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed on a
regular basis. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 51.8%
(2021: 43.4%) and 88.7% (2021: 86.4%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the building and ancillary services segment.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection of
receivables and collectively for other debtors based
on shared credit risk characteristics for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature and size of
debtors, and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables
and contract assets. The expected credit loss rates
are determined based on the nature and size of
customer, historical credit losses experience, ageing
of overdue receivable and customer’s repayment
history, and are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the debtors to settle the
receivables.

(b) EERKZ)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BHEEMEREe
3.1 MERER#)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(b) EERKZ)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECL on individual basis

As at 31 December 2022, individual assessment
on trade receivables and contract assets with
outstanding balances with gross carrying amounts of
nil and approximately MOP9,986,000 (2021: nil and
MOP9,986,000) were made respectively. Impairment
allowance of nil (2021: nil) and approximately
MOP9,986,000 (2021: MOP9,986,000) was provided
for trade receivables and contract assets respectively
as at 31 December 2022.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors, credit risk characteristics of debtors
with reference to the Group’s internal credit ratings,
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-
looking information is used by the management of
the Group to assess both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management
of the Group to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated. The contract assets have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same type of contracts. The Group
has therefore concluded that the loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss
rates for contract assets.

Measurement of ECL on collective basis

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers.
Except for debtors that are with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection of
receivables subject to individual assessment as
disclosed above, the debtors are grouped under
a provision matrix into four (2021: four) internal
credit rating buckets (namely: Group 1, Group 2,
Group 3 and Group 4) based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to nature and size of
debtors and an analysis of the debtors’ current
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BRMERe

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEABEE®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER =)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) B SN TE R &4 EE ()
Measurement of ECL on collective basis (Continued) REREESSTRHEESRE#E)
The following table provides information about TRERR-ZZZFR=ZT=—
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables F+-_A=+t—HAEBE S ERKX
and contract assets which are assessed based HEAEEE(BENTETES
on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit- FEEBE(EEERE) REEER
impaired) as at 31 December 2022 and 2021: M) BEREERBEFR
Lifetime expected
Average loss rate Gross carrying amount credit loss
TEEEE IRESEE FENRBEESE
Trade  Contract Trade  Contract Trade  Contract
receivables assets receivables assets receivables assets
g5 g5 g%
EWRE AHNEE EURE ANEE EWRE ARHEE
% % MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
% % TRMT FEMAT FTRMAT TRMAT

As at 31 December R=FE=—f

2022 +=A=+—-H
Group 1 £ 0.14 0.44 31,586 288,248 43 1,281
Group 2 -4 100.0 0.29 312 4,800 312 13
Group 3 £=4 0.15 1.22 662 21,350 1 260
Group 4 SEPN4E 100.0 0.83 387 2,905 387 24
32,947 317,303 743 1,578
Asat 31 December R-T=—F
2021 +-A=t+—-H
Group 1 F—4 0.05 0.10 19,543 330,641 10 340
Group 2 b | 0.04 5.09 18,623 5,774 8 294
Group 3 £=4 0.06 0.83 4,730 16,464 3 137
Group 4 EA 100.0 100.0 387 239 387 239
43,283 353,118 408 1,010




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

3 HMBEMEEe
3.1 BREKBEEZ)

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECL on trade receivables

Note:

Description
Group 1 Listed company/government authority
Group 2  Private large company with long term relationship
Group 3  Private company with long term relationship
Group 4  Other private company

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables
and contract assets under the simplified approach.

(b)

EERE#)
EZENFIERE#EE (&)
E 5 RN IEN B EEEET=

Hrat -

fii
F— ETRR/ B
—H  EARHBENTLEREIRE]
F=H ABRHMERNLERT
FmE  EAERRE

TRINERIEEETERE S
*”IE&/—\%’JEFEEEWZTFHH%E
HEEBRE

Trade receivables

B A EWGRIE
2022 2021
—g=-= - —F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Opening loss allowance at R—A—BREYEEEE
1 January 408 1,407
Provision for/(reversal of) REE B, ()
impairment losses 335 (999)
Closing loss allowance at R+ RA=+—BrFRERE
31 December BE 743 408
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BRMERe

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEEMEEZ)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERRE)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) B SN TE R &4 EE ()
Measurement of ECL on contract assets BHEBENTBREEEE=

Contract assets

EHEE
2022 2021
—E-— —EF-—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Opening loss allowance at N—A—BMFEYEEEE
1 January 10,996 8,533
Provision for impairment losses VERIEN R 568 2,463
Closing loss allowance at W+ RA=+—BrFRERE
31 December e 11,564 10,996
During the year ended 31 December 2022, BHE_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HI
impairment losses recognised on contract assets FE - FEEAERARTFAA
attributable to work already performed but not yet FREMNTREEEESNEERRAR
billed to customers and retention monies amounted to BEEERRE 9 5/54%289,000
approximately MOP289,000 and MOP279,000 (2021: SEPI7T 279,000t (ZF = —
MOP209,000 and MOP2,254,000) respectively. F : 209,0008 F9 7T & 2,254,000/2

FI7T) »




For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

BSR4

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

Deposits and other receivables and amount due from
a joint operation

For deposits and other receivables and amount
due from a joint operation, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables and deposits
and amount due from a joint operation based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The directors of the Company believe
that there is no significant increase in credit risk of
these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12-month ECL. For
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group assessed the ECL for deposits and other
receivables and amount due from a joint operation
were insignificant and thus no loss allowance was
recognised.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit agencies. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
banks and financial institutions as they have no default
history in the past. Therefore, expected credit loss
rate of cash at bank is assessed to be immaterial and
no provision was made as at 31 December 2022 and
2021.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.

3

3.1 BHEREEE)

(b)

(c)

1‘% E Elv Bﬁ L//%\; /"
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HAEEBEBFEMS * AR ES
BIEBEAELE  BALRLE
BEEBBENAELETEREHE
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BEEBIEARIEN  NEBEIR
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+—A=1+—HILEE  ~EEF
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BRI T R AR TAE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BRMERe

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEABEE®)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REIE£R =)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAREENIITESR B ERR
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial TEHBN BRI FFIE o ZRIBE
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the AEEANRNZFEHRNESHE
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based BRARURREREHFE -

on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

Weighted On
average demand
effective or Total
interest less than 1-3 3 months Over Undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
MERS  RERIR RER

HRA= 1fERR 123EF SEAEIE  1FE5F BESE RERELE ]
% MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000
% TR THEAL TR TEAL THAT THAL THAT

Asat31December2022  W=F-_f

+ZA=+-A
Tradeand other payables 5 RAMERZA - 94,758 a47 32,166 23,816 - 178,157 178,157
Lease bilties g8k 588 238 417 1,637 3842 - 6,194 5,730
Bank borrowings HHER 5.15 121,743 - - - - 121,743 121,143
220,739 21,894 33,803 21,658 - 312,094 311,630
As at 31 December 2021 i3
tZA=1-R
Tradeand other payables ~ E5RAMERZE - 189,303 8157 12,660 14,164 - 204,284 204,284
Lease lbilfies fgak 438 190 569 1417 3406 - 5,582 5,208
Bank borrowings IS 321 180219 - - - - 130,219 130,219

319,712 8,726 14,017 17,570 = 360,085 369,711




For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BHEEMEREe
3.2 AREMEME

AEEHH T ARV BRRE N
NABEME - ARREZSEKULA

3.2 Fair value estimation

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The board of
directors of the Company has set up a valuation committee, RARBERMBERENHEZES -
which is headed up by the Chief Financial Officer of LUREEE A ABERZEMHEREM
the Company, to determine the appropriate valuation 8 A BUE o

techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

fEF AR EER - ANEE{ER A R
MR BRIZUR o HEXERE —RE
ABE  ARERFEELINE =711
BEEETRE HEZEEEEEEN
SMNEREERMEIAE - U B EE
R B ER S A B -

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The valuation
committee works closely with the qualified external valuers
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the model.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at TRIZFTEAABEZHERITHT AR
fair value, by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used ABBHER  2MEALBEIEZ
to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into TE T E - R ASURTIE T AT
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: Mo fEEA AR BEREEANN =ERE

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F—: HREESAERERTS
for identical assets or liabilities. HIZRE CRESHE) -

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Ffh: BEXAGEZAMINE
level 1 that are observable for the assets or %) s EE (BNRB E8) T8
liabilities, either directly (that is, as prices) or RE AR (F —RAEIE

indirectly (that is, derived from prices). BOIRIBRRAN) o

Level 3:  Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not E=: BEXBELIFKEATER
based on observable market data (that is, TSR @8 A SR (BT
unobservable inputs). BIRa AEE) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BKEMERe

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 paEEME )
The following table presents the Group’s assets and TREIWNAREBER-_ZZ__FR_-F
liabilities that are measured at fair value as at 31 December ——F+_A=t+—HBHERAAREBEF=E
2022 and 2021. WEEKRARE -
Level 3
E=HR
2022 2021
—ECHF —E-
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BARBEFAREMER
Wy tEm T A - 3,016
There was no transfer of financial assets and liabilities REEZT-_—_F+-A=+—HL*F
between the fair value hierarchy classifications during the E eREERBENAABERBRE
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: same). Bz B EEHER (T - —F : 7
&) °
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets RERE P IS ARR R AL SHR AN BR 7R
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the SEcREERSRBENREERERE
consolidated statement of financial position approximate AAEEES - EEEENZARER
to their fair values. The fair value for disclosure purposes FEiRrAEEEUe T ARISMNIREA
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash MSFREEBRRENR S REMIED
flows at the current market interest rate that is available et BRIEBAIR M EW NEARRIER!
to the Group for similar financial instruments, unless the i e

discounting effect is insignificant.

The Group’s other assets and liabilities are carried at AEEREAME E R B EIREHEK AT
amortised cost, and their carrying values are a reasonable = HiFEEEEEAEERD -

approximation of their fair values.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BRMERe

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 pREEME®)
Recondiliation for financial instruments carried at fair value REBEEATIBRGAZIR(E =%
based on significant unobservable input (level 3) are as AABETIRNESE TR ZHRNAT
follows:
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BRAafEER AHMEEIRSAIRE
=T H
2022 2021
—B-F T
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR
Opening balance as at 1 January R—RA—BMEYEHR 3,016 4,220
Fair value changes recognised in REMEARGETFEROAAEE
other comprehensive income H) (16) (1,204)
Disposal HEEIE (3,000) =
Closing balance as at 31 December A+ = A =+—HHFERLEE - 3,016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BRMERe

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 AREEME®
Equity instrument at FVTOCI (Continued) BRAafEER AHMEERSAIRE
=THE)
The table below sets out information about significant TREVRNERARFTERAABEER
inputs used at year end in measuring financial instruments BEAF-ANERMITAMNEERHA
categorised as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. HIBRHER} o
As at 31 December 2021 R-EBE-—Ff+=-—F=1+—H

Sensitivity on estimate

Valuation Significant fivst SRR
Exposure  technique(s) Unobservable input Estimate Impact
EAPAER
RO EERM PN ¢ flist 2
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFMT TRMT
Private equity 3,016 Market Approach Discount of lack of +10%/-10% (431)/431
investment at marketability discount
FVTOCI of 30%
BARBEFN AR (R Rz mimnEtaeR
ZHEENLE 30%

RS A
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BSR4

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

3.4

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
include the bank borrowings, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
retained earnings and other reserves. The management
semi-annually reviews and manages the capital structure
by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and
appropriate.

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

No material financial assets and financial liabilities
were subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar arrangements as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

3

3.3

3.4

ExERER

AEEEREANEERLS  RIRA
SEFBEENEN  AHEREILE
5 52 35 2 R T8 AR B A E
o A0 E B PR B A A AR
T o

AEENEARBRRBESG (BT BHAR
TR RARRBHEA ARG ER (B
EBRITERA - REARNREMBHE)

aIEJ"}Eﬂ%‘FﬁKEXK&,\m@ﬁK
BEMER  B¥FRI-RELARE
WHETERE - BERY  AREBEE
RRRERGENERT  ERIRMNK
8 BITHROARBETHERXER

RAERYR  VEHEBREEARE -
EHEeHMEERSMAE
R-ZFB__FR-_F_—F+=-A
=t—R HMEEREREELERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Revenue recognition for provision of building
and ancillary services

Revenue from provision of building and ancillary services is
recognised over time by measuring the progress towards
completion of the Group’s performance obligations as set
out in respective contracts. The Group has used the output
method to estimate the progress of each performance
obligation satisfied over time by reference to the value of
construction works completed to date (as evaluated by the
Group’s internal technicians and/or certified by external
architects, surveyors or other representatives as appointed
by customers (collectively the “External Technicians”))
as a proportion of the total contract value of the relevant
construction contracts. The Group regularly reviews and
revises the estimation of building and ancillary services
construction contract progresses whenever there is any
change in circumstances. As at 31 December 2022 and
2021, the value of work which is completed but yet to be
certified by External Technicians was disclosed in Note 20
(contract assets) to the consolidated financial statements.

4 FAREEHHIER MG

fEET RAE R EBEL R M AMAR (2R
EHEERATHRREHELR SR ENTE
H)ETTHAERT(S o

AEBHRKIEL B REBER - REEE
HIEEN S B RIFANBBEERS
R-ERAERT—EAFHRFENEERA
EREERETEAARNEARBRA MG
RBRERF AT

(a) EHEBREREEREHUBAREZ

BIREEERREE RN AIZB AL
BEES SRR TN ELEE ER R
R AEBEBKAHR HAMET TR EE
BHETREE  EPREBLESEEK
MEETRREEEASE /NN
ANBFHE R SHNERER SR - B ERTEK
EPEZAMEAMRR (G SN R A
8 REVHBERESONBENER
Lefl - S EBRE AR AEEH
TR RERT R E R R ERFEE
GHREENGGT R 2T ZFR=F
——F+-A=+—H BERKEHE
TESNERF T A B RFBH TIREBENEGS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4 PBIf@=:tiEiR{itst e

ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Loss allowance of trade receivables and

contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and
contract assets. The Group assessed individually and
provided for credit losses allowance for trade receivables
and contract assets which have impaired. If no reasonable
and supportable information is available without undue
cost for expected credit losses measurement, the trade
receivables and contract assets were grouped by reference
to the credit risk characteristics and assessed collectively
for credit losses allowance. When measuring expected
credit loss, the Group considers the nature and size of
the customer, credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
receivable and customer’s repayment history, and adjusts
by taking into consideration current conditions and forward-
looking factors. The Group uses judgment in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the nature and size of customer and
number of days that an individual receivable is outstanding
as well as the debtor’s historical repayment history and
forward-looking information at the year end. Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
result of the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional loss allowance to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

(b) BEREBREARENEEZBRR

&

AEEERBEEVBREELEIRE
LA ETRREEER - A ES
EUHRIE K & EEERFEYERE
BEE  AEEHERLERENESE
WA K & KB BT B AT 5 et 1R
EEERRE - WRFTERBEEER
R AT LT H B 2 BCARR B L T X
BREMAERIFHNEN  RESE
WHRIERANEESRERRRFEE
T U EEEBERREELEREN
b - RETERBEEBREN  A&EZE
BEPHERHAR FEERLR &
HARE W R 2 fR ikl B PR RACER - A
BAEERMAMBTEERREHAE -
AEBRERRBETPEE MR N E
R FIR B R BIAREHEANBEER
BECER MATRE LB - 8 H B 1F
ZEBRRIEZERRFERE 2B AR
% o REMR NG E S AR H TG
BREKRBEATE At B ERE
BRmRTERINEIRERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4 Ri=stylEiRi&st e
ESTIMATES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Current and deferred income tax

Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made. Deferred tax assets relating to
certain temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
when management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of a cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) is determined based on the higher
of fair value less cost of disposal (“FVLCD”) and value-in-
use (“VIU”) models. The methodologies are based upon
a number of key estimates and other information, both
internal and external, including (i) the revenue growth rate;
(i) the terminal growth rates; (iii) pre-tax discount rate in
VIU model; and (iv) estimation of market values of certain
assets in FVLCD, which are derived from market research.
These calculations require the use of estimates. Changing
the assumptions selected by the Group to determine the
level, if any, of impairment, including the pre-tax discount
rate or the growth rate assumptions, could significantly
affect the Group’s reported financial position and results of
operations.

(c)

(d)

BVHA R AEAE AR 15 11

BETMEHEER  S2ELEXH
B o AIBEHIRZ RS RORBEREYI B E &
RUBAZR P RGFTE - WMZFEHAIK
RBEBEREINRICE - ARZHE
152 B AR HOR T HIfE < BN EA SR SE PR 15
MEENRAEE BEEERARAREGER
Z RS B IR B A M A A DA 8 R R B ER
B A - AeRREMZFHREEHE
SRBEBEBRHEERAEE - ERER
BRIB TR -

W - RERREREAEEEZ
e

EEHRERB BT REEENEEE
WER  g8YE - BER&ENLER
BREEETRHRESS - REeELBM
([REEEBAM]) AT ESEIRE
AABEREHERAN([AAEEBERE
HERADEFEREAR(FEREB]DE
KNP EET c ZHEAERZEHNA
BRI B R A R EMER - EF
BIE  (MEBRE (i) RIERE ; (i)
FRBEEXN T 2HATAEE  Rivik
AABEREHENNFTEZHETEE
W SEEMAE - HRRERT SR -
EHFTEAERGE - WASERNUE
ERERZE(WE) 2BEEERNES -
BIERAAIR R g R b R {R& - AIA
REREFENEE 2R MIERRD KL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”),
which has been identified as the management of the Group,
considers the segment from a business perspective and
monitors the operating results of its operating segment for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
two (2021: two) reportable operating segments, which were
provision of building and ancillary services and emergency repair

5

2 ERE
AREHTBELREREE ([T BLERE
£ DEHBEATEEERE - BHEHE
AREENH UERXEEABHEER
SRS EE AR -

REBEE-E-_—_F+-A=+—HILEE
AEBEME(ZE=—% : MEA) 7] 2HLK
EoEl - BIREEEARREERBS A RZER

services. 7% o
No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the RERAEENAI Z2®my HFHEERLE
reportable segments of the Group. pan=ie
Segment revenue and results SEBURA R 245
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results TXAEUERDHEI DR EBUA K
by reportable segments: BT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ET_—_F+_-_HA=+—HILFE
Building Emergency
and ancillary repair
services services Consolidated
BER
EEERRHE ISR He
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TiRMT TR TR
Segment revenue D EBUTA 597,835 988 598,823
Segment profit 7 EBFE 21,869 981 22,850
Other income, gain and loss EAA - Wz REE 3,320
Administrative expenses THFAX (30,577)
Finance costs BUE RN (5,162)
Share of results of associates DILERE R B FEE (29)
Loss before income tax BRETISEL AT SR (9,598)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

5 9EEH @

DEBRAREE )
BE-F-—F+-A=1+—HLEE

Building Emergency

and ancillary repair
services services Consolidated

BER

e E RS SRR o)
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TFRPIT TFRFIT BT
Segment revenue DEHA 949,908 9,047 958,955
Segment profit 7 EBFE 2,970 4,763 7,733
Other income, gain and loss EAA - Wz REE 1,023
Administrative expenses THFAX (27,419)
Finance costs BhE AN (2,534)
Loss before income tax BRET1SE A 18 (21,197)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 2.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of other income, gain and loss, administrative
expenses and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results
of each segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly review
such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and
segment results are presented.

RED TN EFTIRREN F2Mt c A REE
ABERAR - 2 BN BREE D HBERDEE
A~ S R EE - TTHFEX REER A
BB T P ERERE A o b Th s B IR 7 Bl &2
RAFEATREERREERIFTESR

TREEBRRERBE D MK E KA
RE - ANEREERREALEAERDE
RERBFEEREHNIFEERDHEE -
B EZ I ZEERNODIT - Bt - Z27)
D ERA R BB -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER®
Other segment information HitoEHER
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_Z-__F+-_A=+—HLFE
Building
and Emergency
ancillary repair
services services Unallocated Total
BER
EBRERE BRI KRB &t
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TFRMT FRMT TFRMT TRMT
Amounts included in the ST AGTE 2 EBAERY
measure of segment T
profit:
Depreciation of property, 1%  E &R
plant and equipment e (14,340) - (716) (15,056)
Depreciation of right-of-use {# FREEEITE
assets (354) - (2,038) (2,392)
Impairment loss on trade ~ RIB&ZNERE 5
receivables recognised FEWGRIB R E R 1E
in profit or loss (335) - - (335)
Impairment loss on contract A 1E#E RNFERRIA 4
assets recognised in BEREERE
profit or loss (568) - - (568)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER@
Other segment information (Continued) HitoEER (2)
Year ended 31 December 2021 8Z-F_—F+-_A=+—HLFE
Building
and Emergency
ancillary repair
services services Unallocated Total
BER
AL =R =R ROER A

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFTT TRFTT TRFTT THRFITT

Amounts included in the ST AGTE 2 EAERY
measure of segment T
profit:

Depreciation of property, 1%  E &R

plant and equipment e (9,892) - (754) (10,646)
Depreciation of right-of-use £ G EITE

assets - - (2,100) (2,100)
Reversal of impairment RIBRNERNE S

loss on trade receivables  FEUFIEREEIE

recognised in profit or # o

loss 999 = = 999
Impairment loss on contract 188 RNFERHIA 4

assets recognised in BEREERE

profit or loss (2,463) - - (2,463)

4
G

4 N4 N4 N4 W

XXIXIXIXIX

T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER@®
Geographical information HWEEE

(@) Revenue from external customers

(b)

The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical area, which is determined by the country/
region where the services were provided, is as follows:

(a) SMEREFUWA

AEEZBE (HIRHREAERR,
BET)ED 2INBEPWALT

2022 2021

—F-= —E -

MOP’000 MOP’000

TFRMT TRPIT

Macau ! 560,417 906,391
Hong Kong &5 38,406 52,564
598,823 958,955

Non-current assets

(b) FREEE

The Group’s non-current assets other than investments in
associates and equity instrument at FVTOCI by geographic
area are as follows:

REERMRE| D 2 BRI EE (K2
NEINKRENZAABEFARMEZE
W RS TERRIN T

2022 2021

—E_— —E-—F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TR T

Macau SEFT 45,103 44,756
Hong Kong a5 34,140 32,900
79,243 77,656
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

5

6

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER®
Geographical information (Continued) WEEH 2
(b) Non-current assets (Continued) (b) ERENEE )
Key Customers FTEEF
For the year ended 31 December 2022, there were two HE_ZT-_—"F#+-_A=+—HLHF
customers (2021: one) which individually contributed over B REMEB(ZZEZ—F : —5)EP
10% of the Group’s total revenue, the revenue contributed ZWAMEREBRBAI0%A E - 32X
from this customer was as follows: FPERBZIBALT :
2022 2021
== —T_—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT FRFT
Customer A ZFA 319,919 806,598
Customer B ZFB 60,997 =
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 6 XREFTFSHNWA
CUSTOMERS
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REIBEFEHZIMAZ T
external customers
2022 2021
=wa— —E-—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FRFT
Recognised over time R ERNER
— Building and ancillary services —REREERS 597,835 949,908
— Emergency repair services — 2SRRI 988 9,047
589,823 958,955




For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

6

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
external customers (Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The Group provides building and ancillary services and
emergency repair services to customers. Such services are
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over time as
the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced at customer’s site.
Revenue is recognised for these construction services based on
the stage of completion of the contract using output method.

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group requires
certain customers to provide upfront deposits range from 5% to
10% of total contract sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before construction commences, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised
on the specific contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same
contract, is recognised over the period in which the construction
services are performed representing the Group’s right to
consideration for the services performed because the rights are
conditioned on surveys of work performed to date, customer’s
correspondences or other documents. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, are classified as contract assets, which ranges from
one to five years from the date of the practical completion of
the construction. The relevant amount of contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability period
expires. The defect liability period serves as an assurance
that the construction services performed comply with agreed-
upon specifications and such assurance cannot be purchased
separately.

6

REEFFSHNEA®
REMBEFEHZBRARF2)
REEFSHZEBHNRRE

AEBRFFPREHEZEREERBINLZME
AR7% - WARBNE A AIE R —
HEE  MaxBEREEIRAKBTFE
# - AZERBESEIR/N —REBAZEKX
M—HENERE - ZFRERBFOHKRARE
BRITTA S BUE MEHERER -

AEENRESNBRERETRERER —
RER AN EEERE D BB R R
BRERX AREERETEPREHNTFEH
BEEEERE10%MTFAMNIEA - EAKEEN
TR EIZREER - IS EARFARE
EANEE  BEIREANERNEARS
Ree@mlt-

BHEE(NRER -—ENEHENANEAE)
RZERGEITEIRE TIANER - KRAEE
ZRARE RS HERN - RERZFENTS
BURRIES BIEFMETH TIERZE - TP K
BIEHEMXAEME - SR-NKSERT
B BRNEEEBEE SRR -

RRRE N REETHEERINDOBERE
WEE HWEERKRERRTAHENT—=
he - AREENHBSRERKRETHE
ERRERDREREZRUGIR - RIGEE
HIRERITRERS T A hERIBHIE
R BRFERTEEEREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

6 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 6 XREEFFSHNIA®

CUSTOMERS (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) in respect of
building and ancillary services as at 31 December 2022 and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

XAZEBRIETEFANNRIBENT
£

R-EBE-——FE+-_A=+—BABPEZENE
ERBEHIETFRGBHETNRSHBIR(KRiE
B B8 BB 0 A AK ) K e RR U HY T8 B B RS 40
—|T :

2022 2021

—g-= — T

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TR

Within one year —FKN 198,605 224,907
More than one year but not more than —F LA BT BB E

two years 137,484 228,684

336,089 453,591

The provision of emergency repair works are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed for
both years.

RUSETENRRS—FHUAT - 8FE
IR ELRNFEISHAR  DEREXZRE
TEHNZRSERRMEFEHARKE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

7 OTHER INCOME, GAIN AND LOSS 7 HittrA - S RESE

2022 2021

—g== =

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR TR

Interest income FEWA 248 702

Income from rental of equipment REES WA 358 =

Government grants (Note) BUISHE (A aE) 1,138 =

Gain on lease termination BLIEHER IR ES 171 =
Amortisation of deferred government RIS R B 8 (A7 16(0))

grants (Note 16(d)) 90 -

Sale of leftover piles SR T BIRSHE 152 12

Sundry income EauA 1,163 309

3,320 1,023

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group Wit RBEZZT-_—_F+=-A=+—HIF

recognised government grants of MOP1,138,000 in respect
of COVID-19 related subsidies, of which MOP638,000 related
to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong
Kong Government and MOP500,000 related to Subsidies for
Businesses 2022 (2022 £F % 15 1% B 5 5T /) by the Macau
Government. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to these grants.

JE - N5 [ B 3L COVID- 1948 B 4 Bl e sR B
FF#B1,138,000)2F 7T » H #1638,000/2
F97T 500,000 37T 53 Bl EE A B IR AT FE 4
R BE S AT 8 RORPIER AT R 4 92022 5 5%
BERDFRBIAR - REHBLEMN S

IR AR K A IR SR LMD RN IR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 RMHEIZZMX
2022 2021
=—a—— — T4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TP
Material and subcontractor costs MR RS B ER A 432,408 812,359
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN B & 1,391 1,123
Depreciation of property, plant and Y%~ BB MBI E (HiE15)
equipment (Note 15) 15,056 10,646
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (Hit16)
(Note 16) 2,392 2,100
Employee benefit costs, including EERANKA(BFEESHE)
directors’ emoluments (Note 9) (K13£9) 93,532 103,624
Legal and professional fees FRREXEER 2,515 1,213
Expense relating to short-term leases BRARBHEHERS 11,538 8,398
Transportation and delivery costs E R AT 25,217 26,385
Others At 21,598 11,329

Total direct costs and administrative BHEKARITE S 4258
expenses 605,647 Q77 77

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING 9 (EESEFEA  GifESie
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2022 2021

—®-=f -T-—%

MOP’000 MOP’000

TiRMT FRFT

Wages and salaries IERF® 90,465 99,096
Staff welfare and benefits & BEN KA 2,334 3,910
Contribution to defined contribution plans & &8t 21 89K 723 618
93,532 103,624

XXX




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING 9 EERFIEA BREEEME
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Benefits and interest of directors (a) BRIRESHERE
(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) ES&
The remuneration of directors for each of the years EEREBE_TS_—_FR-_FT=—
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out FT_A=T—HLEZFENHE
below: ﬁﬁ'JQD—F -
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries to defined
and other  contribution Other
Fees benefits plans emoluments Sub-total
HeR EHEMREE
e HiEd  MEXEXR Hitii{ ¢ et

MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000
TR TR TR TR TR

For the yearended BZ=F-—%+=H
31 December 2022 =+—HILFE

Executive directors ~ #i77ZZ

Mr. Kong (Note) BEE(fT) - 1,320 1 - 1,321
Ms. Choi it - 1,080 1 - 1,081
Independentnon-  BUHHTEE

executive directors
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing SR8 64 206 - - - 206
Mr. Cheung Wai Lun  SR{EfRE4

Jacky 206 - - - 206
Mr.Zhao Zhipeng SR AE 206 - - - 206

618 2,400 2 - 3,020

Fortheyearended HZE-ZT-—F+-A

31 December 2021 =+—HIL5E
Executive directors ~ #li7Z%
Mr. Kong (Note) BEL(HT) - 1,320 1 = 1,321
Ms. Choi frmt - 1,080 1 - 1,081
Independentnon- B HEHITEE

executive directors
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing  SREZ4 54 206 - - - 206
Mr. Cheung Wai Lun  RfEfRoEHE

Jacky 206 - - - 206
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng ~ EEELE 206 - - - 206

618 2,400 2 - 3,020
Note: Mr. Kong is also the chief executive officer of the Bt : BEEAINARNATITEAEE -
Company.

XX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

9 EEFEMNAA  BEEEME )

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Benefits and interest of directors (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remunerations shown above represent
remunerations received from the Company and
subsidiaries of the Company by these directors in
their capacity as employees to the Company and
no directors waived any emolument during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the subsidiaries of the
Company to the directors as an inducement to join
the subsidiaries of the Company, or as compensation
for loss of office during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

Directors’ retirement and termination
benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiaries undertaking during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

No payment was made to the directors as
compensation for early termination of the appointment
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any third
parties for making available directors’ services for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled body
corporates and connected entities of such directors
(2021: same).

(a) ERIRESE=EA)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EEME )

TS M2 EE B AR EE
BARREENFHBEARFRA
NG = PNCTE &G oF a7 =1
E_E-__F+-_A=+—HIEF
B BEEEHRETCAHE (=2
T—F fE) o

REE=ZZT-_—_F+=-HA=+—H
WEEFE - KRR ZHE QB &M
EETMESEARSIMARAR
2 I BN B B0 R ED SR 1 A BT B
EH@EE(CTE_—F  8E)-

EERANRRLER

REEZZT-_—_F+=-HA=+—H
IEFE BMETHNESHREHREH
RABIHEMBAREEEENE
tb, PR 75 T Ui B Bk i MR AR AR FI (=
T —F /)

Rz _—F+—-_A=+—H
IEFE - BESERIREARIETE
MmEL S ERmE(ZE_—F :
) o

BERMKESEREQE=FIE
HERE
HE-Z-_—F+-A=+—H1F
FE ARABMERERESES
REETAEZAZIARE(ZE
——F i fE) o

BRALUESE - HEFIZEER
ZEESCHEERASEA
HNER EERRHEMZSH
=g
REE—_ZT-_—F+—-_A=+—H
IEFE - BEAS e T HAE
ERZEEF L BEEBAYEA
MER EEREREMRZTH
ZE=—F [ R) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING 9 EERFIEA BREEEME

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Benefits and interest of directors (Continued) (a) BAIRESERS®)

(v) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in the Note 33, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of the subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Group had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: same).

(v) EENRKS  THFHEHHH

B

BRINFESSATI TR AN - REBE=E
——F+-—A=+—HLEFEFRK
SRR - B AR A RS H (A
MEBARERI N AAEEES
BEA T (EREEREE)FHE
AEBEFEENEARS - T8
REH(ZZE=——4% : 8R) o

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBEEFHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include two directors respectively, whose
emoluments were reflected in the analysis presented in
Note 9(a) during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
two). The emoluments paid/payable to the remaining
include three individuals (2021: three) are as follows:

AEBRAEZRESTFMA LTS RIBEERA

T —F WRB)ES EREEC
T+ - A=1+—HILFERNHEN
R FEQQ) Z2FIH DT - B AT
BTI=ZR(ZEB_—F : ZF) ATHH
Ban T

2022 2021

—E-— —ET-—F

MOP’000 MOP’000

FEMT TR

Salaries and other benefits e R E AR 4,277 4,753
Contribution to defined contribution plans & %8t F T 21 EY 3% 7 7
4,284 4,760
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

9 EEFEMAA  BEEEM )

(b) EBESFHMALE

BN TUATEE

Number of individuals

N
2022 2021
—®-=fF -—T-—4

Emolument band M Es E

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T - =
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T 21,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% T 22,000,000/ 7T 1 2
3 3

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no emoluments
have been paid by the Group to the directors or the five
highest paid individuals mentioned above as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2021: Nil).

10 IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED
CREDIT LOSS MODEL

HE_Z-_—_F#+-_A=+—HLHF
B AEEYENESR LI AERS
Bz A £ 2B & fE AR S| A SN A
AEERHRE S IERBETREHREE
T —F )

10 FAHEEHREX TRRERSE

2022 2021

—E-=f —z-—&

MOP’000 MOP’000

TiRP9TT TR

Provision for/(reversal of) impairment AT S IERE, (B E)RE
losses of: E518 -

— trade receivables — B S EINIE 335 (999)

— contract assets —ERNEE 568 2,463
903 1,464
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

11 FINANCE COSTS

11 BERA

2022 2021

—F— — T4

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR TR

Interest expense on bank borrowings SRITER 4,770 2,130

Interest expense on bank overdrafts IRITBEZF B 141 140
Interest expense on lease liabilities HESENSRZ(HiF16)

(Note 16) 251 264

5,162 2,534

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the estimated
assessable profits above MOP600,000 for the year ended 31

December 2022 (2021: same).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman lIslands or the British Virgin Islands (2021: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the

year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: same).

An analysis of the income tax expense is as follows:

12 FiSHiRA% (&%)
BE-T--F+-A=1-BLFE A
P34 FE B R B 1B600, 0003 FI LAY 3 A
RBFBE 2% H (ZF=—% : §R) -

REFASHESIABEBRESNMRALEX
B AREBABMNRESRESRNNBERAR
BRENEAAEH(ZE=_—F : &) -

HRAEBREBEE S -_—&F+_A=1+—
HIEFEWEEEBELERENE - M
EHERABMEREBEEB( S ——F : fHR) °

PRSTBRAS 2 2T

2022 2021

ot ~Jonbt.- —ET-—%F

MOP’000 MOP’000

FEMT TR

Macau Complementary Tax: SBPIFTIS TR

Current tax BN EATR IR 2,043 =
Over provision in prior years B E R - (417)
2,043 @17)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of Macau as

12 PSR (K%)=

REBRPTSHAT R B A IR - EER AR P
BERELNEHSBNHEZRNT

follows:
2022 2021
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR
Loss before income tax bR ETIS T AT 1R (9,598) (21,197)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of ~ EBIRFTS L R 12%:1 E TR IE
12% (1,152) (2,544)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries PAE Ath B EHE[R 42 B A 78
operating in other jurisdictions TRBERE (768) (152)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for A H1F: A 5 VR 75 oo 2
tax purpose 1,383 1,962
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ B7BRFIW AR T TS 2
purpose (137) _
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary RERE B RIS 2
differences 99 175
Tax losses not recognised RNEERTIEE R 2,818 5569
Effect of tax exemptions granted to BFRRP MM E A R e FIE
subsidiaries registered in Macau MRRE (72) =
Utilisation of tax loss previously not B ST A M R R R R TR B 18
recognised (128) =
Over provision in prior years BAEFERERE - 417)
Income tax expense/(credit) FrisHifs (E5) 2,043 (417)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately MOP25,352,000 (2021:
MOP9,368,000) available for offset against future profits. The tax
losses are subject to the final assessment by the tax authorities
in the respective jurisdictions where the tax losses arising from.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
estimated unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

REEER - AEEGBFTARDAREBELD
25,352,00038 9T (= Z = — 4 : 9,368,000
SEPIIT) o] A LA S R 2R Os ) o BB BB A
RS HEN R EEIBEEMNER R AR
VER B AR FTAE o AR 2R 2% A1 7 B9 71 AT 78 8
M I ER AR RIS AR IBEEERET
RIBEE - AERHIER B A ER S -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

13 LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic loss per share

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year
excluding shares purchased by the Company for the share
award scheme.

13 BREE

(a) BREXEE

BRENEBRIREAABEE ARME
BERAFAD BT ERRINEFS
(T REAABGBN EZEE EIEES
Befn )5t & -

2022 2021
—B-F —T-—fF

Loss attributable to the owners of the KATEES AFELEE

Company (MOP’000) (FBFT) (11,641) (20,780)
Weighted average number of ordinary MAEBRERBHNME AL

shares for the purpose of basic earnings @AM F (T L)

per share (in thousands) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Basic loss per share (MOP cents) TRREAREECRPL) (1.16) (2.08)

(b) Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share for both years were presented
as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both
years.

(b) EBIREESE

HRMEFERNLECETEEER
B BAB2IMEFENSRETE
B8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & &

14

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows. Unless otherwise
stated, they have share capital consisting solely of ordinary
shares that are held directly by the Group, and the proportion
of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the

— = — —

=

F+A=1T—HILFE

14 K& Q5]

BRAESN

RZBZZFR_FT=—
B ARREZEMMBRARNGFRBUOT - B3
HENBRANEDEAEEERE
BHNL A - A R f SR AR
EEFERNREE -

E+=A=+—

Group.
Particulars of
Place of issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Principal
Name of subsidiaries establishment operation registered capital Equity interest held activities
AT,/ BRITRMERE/
WEARAR el gt iaAEE Frfsi i TEED
2022 2021
-2—C —E-—F
Directly held by the Company
FARERRE
Clear Achieve Global The British Virgin Islands  Hong Kong United States dollars 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (the “BVI") (US$") 200
RERFARAR EBGEBAREE(XE 4 200%7([%7) 100% 100% REEKR
ERRRE])
Indirectly held by the Company
FRAMERE
Abundant Triumph Group ~ The BVI Hong Kong US$200 100% 100%  Administrative support
Limited for the Group
BREEERAR ERERARER B 200%TT 100% 100% AKETEE
Fame City Investments The BVI Hong Kong US$50,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited
EHRERRAR ERURRER B 50,000% T 100% 100% EEEH
Greatway Construction Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Givil engineering
Engineering Limited Business
BERETRERAR  FE 6 BT 100% 100% TATERER
Kin Pang Constructionand  Macau Macau MOP250,000 100% 100%  Civil engineering
Engineering Company Business
Limited
RERETRERAR  2F 2 250,000 100% 100% TARTIEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE
14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14 B AT =)
Particulars of
Place of issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/ Principal
Name of subsidiaries establishment operation registered capital Equity interest held activities
MR, BRTRMERE
WEARER RT3 ey iEAHE Frfsi g TEED
2022 2021
—F-C %
Indirectly held by the Company
FRERMERE
Kin Wah Machineryand ~ Macau Macau MOP250,000 100% 100%  Management of
Equipment Company machineries
Limited
REMmEEARAR R R 250,0002F7T 100% 100%  EIRHR
Success Frame Global The BVI Hong Kong US$50,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited
BIRRHARAR EBGERAREE &R 50,000%7T 100% 100% EEEH
Pang Ching Global Limited  The BVI Hong Kong US$2 100% N/A~ Inactive
BRERERAA ERERRES &k X 100% TER EEER
Kin Chit Construction &~ Macau Macau MOP250,000 100% N/A Inactive
Engineering Limited
BEREIRARAR &M 2 250,0002M9 7 100% TER  EEXK
Mutual Reliance Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 35%  Inactive
Development Limited
BEGERARAR &% B 10,0007 7 100% B% EEEH
Jianhuixin Digital The People of Republic  The PRC Registered capital 100% N/A~ Inactive
Technology (Chongging)  of China (the “PRC’) RMB50,000,000
Company Limited"
REGETRM(ER)  HEARLNE i HMER 100% NER  EEEE
ARDA] (TEd]) AR 50,000,0007

U Jianhuixin Digital Technology (Chongging) Company Limited is a 0

wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

BEGHRFRM(ZEE)ERAR S —HERF

BRI RN B ERE -

RER - BEHRBQRBETEMNERES

Annual Report FE R 2022 181




182 Kin Pang Holdings Limited Z 5% AR A 7]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 B2 —Z -~ +_A=+—HILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 W% - BERR
Leasehold Furniture Plants
land and Leasehold and Motor and Office
buildings  improvements fixtures vehicles ~ machinery  equipment Total
i)l HE

k#F  WREE  BERKE RE REREE  WOGH ait
MOPOOO ~ MOPOOD  MOPOOD  MOPOOO  MOPOOO  MOPOOO  MOPO00
TR 0 TR TAMT TEAR  TEMR TR TEMR

Cost HA
At 1 January 2021 A\ZE-—%—-F-H 11,024 207 405 5,324 52,521 629 70,116
Additions E - - 30 185 37,463 13 37,691

At 31 Decernber 2021 and R_E_—F+-A=1-A

1 January 2022 k-E--£-j-H 11,024 207 4% 5509 89,990 642 107,807
Additions & - - 14 - 15,697 2 15,733
Disposals hE - - - - (175) = (175)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-A=1-H 11,024 27 449 5509 105,512 664 123,365

Accumulated depreciation ~ BitHFE

At 1 January 2021 \“Z-—£—f-R 48 165 357 3648 19,875 398 24,861
Provided for the year ERitE 37 52 21 582 9,523 101 10,646
At 31 December 2021 R=E-—£+ZA=1-A 79 207 378 4,230 29,398 499 35,507
Provided for the year EREE 367 = 21 521 14,083 84 15,056
Disposals L = = = = (59) = (69)
At 31 December 2022 RZE_“#+-A=1-A 1162 207 399 4751 43402 583 50,504
Carrying values KEfE

At 31 December 2022 R_E_—#+-A=1-A 9,862 - 50 758 62,110 81 72,861
At 31 December 2021 RZE_-#+-A=1-A 10,229 = 57 1279 60,592 143 72300

e e e e e




For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

15

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation expense of approximately MOP14,340,000 (2021
MOP9,892,000) and MOP716,000 (2021: MOP754,000) have
been charged in direct costs and administrative expenses
respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has pledged certain
property, plant and equipment with carrying values of
approximately MOP9,862,000 (2021: MOP10,229,000) to
secure its bank borrowings and other banking facilities (including
performance guarantees) (Note 25).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

15

16

M - BERRE®

4314,340,0008F9L (ZZF = —4 : 9,892,000
JEPIT) R716,0008BF T (ZF = —F
754,000 T WITEFR S E D BB EEK
ARATERBA S R AR ©

R-ZZE-_—F+_-_A=+—H AEBEDE
7% B T (B 499,862,000 FI L (=T = — 4 :
10,229,000} 70 ) & T - B MR E
R AEREBITERREMBITEHE
(BREELOER) (H:E25) -

EREEERHEHEASRE

AU REANAREEAREANRES
¥ o

(a) HEMBRARPEINEE

2022 2021
—E-— —F-—%F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Office premises, warehouses, staff WA BEE - BIFES
quarters and vehicles MRE 5,947 5,022
Lease liabilities HESE
Current VL) 2,098 1,987
Non-current FERED 3,632 3,221
5,730 5,208

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were
approximately MOP5,939,000 (2021: MOP1,680,000).

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities approximate their
fair values and are denominated in HK$.

FRRNE KA E#) A5,939,00058
Ft (= =—% : 1,680,00082F97T) °

BEAEOREAZILAAKE B
BT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continueq)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

(c)

statement of profit or loss

16 EFHEEERESR

=17

(b) FEETIRPEDNEHE

2022 2021
—g-= — T
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: {#REEETESH :
— Office premises, warehouses, staff — WA BE - BITE
quarters and vehicles EhAE 2,392 2,100
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MEAENMNERX
(Note 11) (Hrzt11) 251 264
Gain on lease termination (Note 7) I EWES (7t 7) 171 =
Expenses relating to short-term leases WS HHESENAS 11,538 8,398
Total cash outflow for leases HEEEMNRERL B 14,413 10,727

Depreciation expense of approximately MOP354,000
(2021: nil) and MOP2,038,000 (2021: MOP2,100,000) have
been charged in direct costs and administrative expenses
respectively.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

For both years, the Group leases various offices,
warehouses, staff quarters and vehicles for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of one to
three years (2021: one to six years). One of the leases
has an extension option as described below. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
machinery and site equipment. As at 31 December 2022
and 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expense disclosed in Note 8.

(c)

#9354,0008F T (=T = —F : #&)
§ 2,088,000 FI L (=& = —4F :
2,100,000 ) T ERZE DI B
BN RITERB S AP ARk o

AEENHERBREARAGRX

RAREFEFERN  ARERESREHRA
BIEERIEARNES -
HESHABEERA—E==F(—F——
F:—EXRFIFL - EP—HHEERAR
TXEt e e R 24 - HERRDE
BRI ER LR - BRSETRERK
iR o 7O RE R B N R A N AT U=
MEER  AEERASONERLE
EB AR @B TR AR -

AREEEHIRT M e i T SR B R K2 1
HE R_T_—_FR-_F_—F+=
A=+—H  ZHHEEHEA R8T
BREHHEEMNERESHASEU -



For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

16 EFHEEERESR

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continueq)

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these

are accounted for (Continued)

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor and the relevant leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension option

The Group has an extension option in a lease for an
office entered into during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: same). This is used to maximise operational
flexibility in term of managing the asset used in the Group’s
operations. The extension option held is exercisable only by
the Group and not by the lessor.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether
or not it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option. The management assessed and concluded that the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option at the lease commencement date. The potential
exposures to these future lease payments for the extension
option in which the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise is summarised below:

Lease liabilities

Potential future

=17

(c) REBNHEEEFBREARFN (2)

BROBEARENEEEE+TWERER
S - THE % eI A E A 225 - 48
BAEEEENSARNERER -

HEHARIEME
AEBBERE_ZT__F+=H
=+ BHILEFEITVHRAZTHENT
HRERE(ZZ—F : 8R) - kAR
FERASEKEMALENAZ2E
LEMBEIEE o T E R IERER
BRASE(MIELBA)ITE -

AEBENEERG BB EEETELT
HEERERETAE - BEEMNGLR
R AEBEVESEEENEER®BA
HIfTE IR 2 - AKBERSEE
ETEEHRBENZFRRBEENK
HEERRSRN T

Potential future

recognised lease payments Lease liabilities  lease payments
asat notincludedin recognised as at not included in

31 December lease liabilities 31 December lease liabilities
2022 (undiscounted) 2021 (undiscounted)

Rt AHE RETAME

R=B=Z= BREMTE A-T--—4 BRATR
+=A=+—-H ARBEFR +-A=t-B RRMERT
ERNEESE (REBR) HANHEESRE (REEH)
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT FEMT TRAMT TRMAT
Office - Macau N 167 1,520 655 1,520

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of the
lessee. During the year ended 31 December 2022, there is
no such triggering event (2021: same).

AN+ AREB S B A A
HEANBEEABMHNBRBEESKE
NSO AEMEITFEREERE - &
E-T-_F+-A=+—HLEEFE "
MEEAEEEH(CZE=—F  HR) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & & -~ —

F+A=1T—HILFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 16 FRAREERBEEGEE®
LIABILITIES (continued)
(d) Deferred government grants (d) EIEEXAT#EBH
2022 2021
—g-= —ET-—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
At beginning of the year REF] - —
Government grants received relating to ER(SH F & 2= B R Y B R T
right-of-use assets (Note (i) AL (M a20) 659 =
Amortisation By (90) =
At end of the year RER 569 =
Less: Non-current portion B FERENER D (404) =
Current portion mENEL D 165 =
Note: Hat -
()  During the year ended 31 December 2022, government () REEZZ-_—_F+-A=+—HILF

grants of approximately MOP659,000 (HK$640,000) (2021:
nil) have been received for the purchase of certain item of
right-of-use assets, provided by the HKSAR Government
under the Construction Innovation and Technology Fund
(“CITF”). As a condition of receiving the fund, the Group has
undertaken not to dispose of the related right-of-use assets
within the next three years from the date of purchase. There
are no other unfulfiled conditions or contingencies attached

to these grants.

AREIR ©

B ERBEETERAEEEERB K
M A AR BT R IREE A kB
B¢ ([BEXEABES ) RENETHE
B} 49659,00052 9 7t (640,000 7T ) (=
TZ—F: &) FRENABELHN
G - AEBE B A BB E B HBAK
=FRTSLERBERREEE -
78 B Sl 4 BTSSR S R O 1R BBk

-l-;-'\'iﬁ‘

AA ST
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17 EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

(a)

(b)

Classification of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

The Group’s held equity interests in a private entity
established in Macau. The investment was not held for
trading, but for long-term strategic purpose. The directors
of the Company had elected to designate these investments
in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believed that
recognising short-term fluctuations in the investment’s
fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the
Group’s strategy of holding the investment for long-term
purpose and realising its performance potential in the long
run. Details of fair value measurement of the instrument are
set out in Note 3.2.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

17 BAABEFARMEEKZE

BxSTH
(a) BAREESARMEZEKENE

(b)

MEEZDME

REBR—REERFIKIH A B EE
B - REWFARHBEOMETE -
MERRAKEENREE - ARRES
EEEBERERRANEBEFAREMGEZE
WatmEa TARE - RA/KEAR
RHERENAABEERETHEH
KEERARERPFARE ORI —
B YRREREEREREEN - A
BLAMAREEENFIEHNME
3.2°

BARBEFARGMEEKRSENR
BiRE

2022 2021
—EB__ —E-—fF
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TRFIT
Unlisted investments REMRE
— Equity securities — R 5 - 3,016

The above unlisted equity investment was disposed on
28 March 2022 with the consideration of approximately
MOP3,000,000 with which was also the fair value as at the
date of disposal. The management of the Group was of
the view that the investment was no longer in line with the
Group’s inceptive expectation and investment objective
and decided to make such disposal. A cumulative loss
on disposal of approximately MOP7,700,000 has been
transferred to retained earnings.

FiAR ETRERER=_T-_—_F=A
—+/\B LA (B #93,000,0003%8 F9 7t (H
MERHERRNARBE)LE - &%
EEEEREEBRREETBERALE
ERVINBEHEREEBZE  WhTHET
BEME - HE 2 Z5TE518497,700,000
SBPITTE EE SRR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

17 EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE 17 AR EEFAHMEEURZER
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXTH»
INCOME (Continued)
(c) Amount recognised in consolidated statement (c) RiFEE2EWEARAERZLHE

of comprehensive income

2022 2021
—EHF =B —F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR T
Fair value loss on financial assets BEARBEFAREMEAE RS
at FVTOCI ZeMEBEZ ANEBEERE 16 1,204
(d) Valuation process (d) 1H{EBRE
Information about the methods and assumptions used in BRAEEAABERALERBEE
determining fair value is provided in Note 3.2. BREARMHFES.2
18 TRADE RECEIVABLES 18 B S EWFIE
2022 2021
—EHF —E-—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FRF9T
Trade receivables B S EWEIR
— contracts with customers —BFEAH4 32,947 43,282
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEEERE (743) (408)
32,204 42,874
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEEE ZEWFIE REE T ORI TTE
denominated in MOP. 8 -
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18 ES WA »)

AEEBRERTEFOEZ60REEH - RigH
S RHINE ZRYGIERRER DT

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group generally allows credit period of O to 60 days to its
customers. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based
on invoice date is as follows:

2022 2021

—E_— —E-—F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TS8P T

Within 30 days 30HAN 13,329 11,735
31 to 60 days 31260H 11,054 1,133
61 to 90 days 61%290H 6,958 4,150
Over 90 days EHBiE90H 1,606 26,264
32,947 43,282

B REMEBRFERNEMERNTTEEE
BEEE - ARBEINENZF BB T

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets. The Group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.

i e

The movement in provision for loss allowance on trade FHRE SEVGIBEESERENEBNT :
receivables are as follows:

2022 2021
—g-= —ET -
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
At beginning of the year REA] 408 1,407
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment BERE(BE) 335 (999)
At end of the year REL 743 408

XX
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18

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continueq)

For both years, the Group is granted a banking facility which
includes factoring services with the amount not exceeding
MOP52,530,000 (HK$51,000,000). All debts owing by an
approved customer in connection with the supply or provision
of goods or services are assigned to and purchased by the
bank. As at 31 December 2022, the Company has transferred
trade receivables amounting to nil (2021: MOP10,300,000
(HK$10,000,000)) to the bank in exchange for cash. The bank
has rights of recourse to the Group if the customer default
on payment of the trade receivables to the banks (Note 25).
These transactions have been accounted for as secured bank
borrowings.

The transferred trade receivables that are not derecognised
in their entirely to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvements:

8 ESEIWNFIE »

AEERMEFEHER —BEERERS
RIRITRLE © ©FE TR iE52,530,00008 7T
(51,000,000/87T) ° —HRAZF Lt E
REEMRBRH MR THTEEFICEE
FRITNAEITHEE - N T - —F+_-A
=+—H ' ' ARFRE#HEBEAET (T —_—
£ : 10,300,000 97T (10,000,000 7T ) ) K
ZSREWFIBEEEZRITUBRIIRS - HE
FAREMBITZNE SR GIA(HE25)
RITERRAAEBER - ZERHEERE
BRI THERALR °

AEBEES ANBERNRE IR LERND
HEE SRR

2022 2021
—E-— — -5
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TP
Bank borrowings and receivables RITE R R EWGRIA
Carrying amount of the trade BERAT A A S BEERERA
receivables before transfer and that B 5 W GRIARRE (A
the Group continues to recognise - 10,300
Carrying amount of associated 1EEE B EREE
liabilities - (10,300)
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19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

19 FAMRIA - BEREMEBURIR

RECEIVABLES
2022 2021
—F-= —F——%F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR
(Restated)
(ge=E=75)
Other deposits (Note (a)) EMiee (#itE) 1,747 2,350
Prepayments to suppliers and TEfT e D B 2 5RIE
subcontractors 12,457 26,833
Other prepayments S LN 3,037 7,115
Other receivables (Note (b)) H th pE WA (i aE b)) 3,279 11,638
20,520 47,936
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREBRNETEDHT
Current asset MENVEE 20,085 47,602
Non-current asset IEMENEE 435 334
20,520 47,936
The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits and AEBEMNRIE « Re REMEREIE K

other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

EETIA TSI RBEHE

2022 2021

—Eg-— — T

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TR

MOP RFITT 20,055 43,790
HK$ BT 465 4,146
20,520 47,936

Notes: Biat -

(@) As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s other deposits @ RZTEZ=F+=—A=+—H' ' REKEHN
balance is refundable rental deposit of approximately MOP85,000 HEMize T N TFREERRZTH
(2021: MOP85,000) paid to Mr. Kong and Ms. Choi in relation to AREHE R © 498500008 (=T =—
the lease of premises owned by Mr. Kong and Ms. Choi as office 4 : 85,0008 7T ) BT R ER S A IR X AT
of the Group. BEZYEERANEENAEREA -

() As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s other ) R-B-—F+-F=+—8 KEBEHEM

receivables is the amount of approximately MOP265,000 (2021:
MOP2,357,000) withheld by the customer for surety bonds.

FE R R T B IR B P B B A AR T TR RO 49
265,0002F97C(=Z = —4F : 2,357,000}2
7)) ©
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20 CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(@) Contract assets

The Group has recognised the following assets related to

20 SHEE ()

(@) EHEE
AEBECEIATIERATFRHEZER

contracts in relation to provision for building and ancillary IEERRISIEM S HEE ¢
services with customers:
2022 2021
—F- — B —F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TSR IT
Unbilled revenue of construction BESAN 2 AAE W=
contracts 288,012 271,457
Less: Impairment loss allowance W OREEERE (7,929) (7,640)
280,083 263,817
Retention receivables of construction BEAHN 2 RBURE
contracts 39,277 91,647
Less: Impairment loss allowance B OREEERE (3,635) (3,356)
35,642 88,291
315,725 352,108

During the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment
losses of approximately MOP568,000 (2021:
MOP2,463,000) is recognised. During the year ended
31 December 2022, impairment losses recognised on
contract assets attributable to work already performed but
not yet billed to customers and retention monies amounted
to approximately MOP289,000 and MOP279,000 (2021:
MOP209,000 and MOP2,254,000) respectively.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration that is conditional upon satisfaction by the
customers on the construction work completed by the
Group and the work is pending for the certification by the
customers or the work performed but not yet billed. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

HE-_ZT-_—#F#+-A=+—HLHF
E ' BEERBEEIE#568,00002F9 T
—EF - —4 :2463,00008F ) ° &
E—E-—F+=-A=+—HILEE -
RERAENARNZFAARENTRE
Wﬁ“@%?ﬁ&* VREEBERIRSE S
7 Bl & #7289,000 8 P9 JT & 279,000 38
Pt (=ZZF = —4F : 209,0003% F 7t &
2,254,000 L) °

PHNEETRRASEZAENNESR
W AEPREAREE ERHEET
BAGYE  BZIRERFEPRAE @ X
ZITREHTERRFARSE - E6H
R AEGHR  SHNEERBRE
B 5 RYHR -
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20 AHNEE (Af)#=
(a) BHNEE®)

20 CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (continueq)

(@) Contract assets (Continued)

The Group’s construction contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
construction period with reference to surveys of work
performed to date, customer’s correspondences or
other documents. The Group requires certain customers
to provide upfront deposits up to 5% to 10% of total
contract sum as part of its credit risk management policies.
The Group typically transfers contract assets to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

The Group also typically agrees to a retention period
ranging from one to five years for 5% to 10% of the
contract value. This amount is included in contract
assets until the end of the retention period as the
Group’s entitlement to this final payment is conditional on
completion of defect liability period.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract
assets as the end of each reporting period is as follows:

AEENBEANBIERESHBESRD
PR SRR - 2 ES AL
FrETIERALE  FPERIEMX
o AEEBERETRFPREEGNES
BE5%ZE10% A1 HiiRE © (EAEEER
REBRBRRN—3D - EEBEFKA
EIEGE  AEERFEERSNEE
=8 M -

REBETER ERIERE%E10%H A H)
BEXREE2LFREY RAKEE
B R A& SRR MR SERCERFE B £
BAFER BB ARNEE -
BEEREBHFERRBL -

AEBEBHZECNEESBERRE R
EAREEFEHREEEEEBBRRNK
HBIE o

REREHR - AOEENTEHKRE
RERENT

2022 2021

=F== —ET—F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TR

Within one year —&R 299,849 269,504
More than one year —F1% 15,876 82,604
315,725 352,108

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in Note
3.1(b).

RERHEFIRERMIEES.1() °
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20 CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) coninvesy 20 BHIEE (AE) =)

(b) Contract liabilities (b) &H&E
2022 2021
—E=—= B —F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T TR IT
Contract liabilities BHAE 12,638 3,054

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities:

TRINER AR EREERO M mE %
PREZFBANAERR

2022 2021

—g=-= T —%F

MOP’000 MOP’000

FRMT TR

Building and ancillary services BEREERE 2,654 =

No revenue were recognised during the year ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 relates to performance
obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Construction contracts

When the Group receives advanced payments before
or during the construction activities, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of
the advanced payment.

REE_TE_—FF T —F+_#
=t+t—HIEFETERREN F—@EF
ERBTHRHASTaBAKES -

HEHEREHBEESEBRTEN—K
SAHEFIAT ¢

BESH

BN B 7 b T RA 44 A SR e T HAR MR
B WHEARFRRELSNA
& - EEIHEEENER N REEBTAN
KBRS/ -
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21 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Pledged bank deposits

As at 31 December 2022, fixed deposits 0
MOP67,297,000 (2021: MOP48,558,000) i

F+A=1T—HILFE

CASH

f approximately
nterest-bearing

at 0.37% (2021: 0.44%) per annum were pledged to
secure the banking facility (including bank borrowings and
performance guarantees) granted to the Group.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits are denominated in

21 BIERRTERHERAERRESE
B
(a) BIEMBRITER

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 ' 55
ROB37% (T = —4F : 0.44%):HBEH
F AT 3 4967,297 000RFI T (— B~ —
F : 48,558,000082P70) B - FLAE
RAEEERNRITHE (BIERITHER
NBHITER) ©

AEEDEBERRITERIDIRBA TR

the following currencies: FHE
2022 2021
St —F_—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FiRMT FRFT
MOP SBPIIT 33,815 16,061
HK$ BT 33,482 32,497
67,297 48,558

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

(b) RERAEEEY

2022 2021
—B-CF -
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR

Cash at banks and maximum exposure ~ $R1TIR & ko= EEE
on credit risk 18,904 10,314
Cash on hand FERS 11 16
18,915 10,330
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21 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH 21 EERHRTERERERRESE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) B
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) (b) BERBELZEW &)
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated AEBERES KRS EEBWM IR TERE
in the following currencies: FHE
2022 2021
—EHF —E-—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T TR T
MOP SBPIIT 12,898 3,239
HKS ST 6,006 7,083
USD = 11 8
18,915 10,330
22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 AR
2022 2021
—ECF —E-—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR BT
Authorised EE
10,000,000,000 shares at HK$0.01 each ~ 10,000,000,000/% &A% FI{E
0.01 & LRI D 103,000 108,000
Issued and fully paid ERITREE
1,000,000,000 shares at HK$0.01 each 1,000,000,0004% &A% E &
0.01BTAIAR A 10,300 10,300
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23 {#fE

23 RESERVE

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium

The share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and may be
applied by the Company subject to the provisions, if any,
of its memorandum and articles of association in paying
distributions or dividends to equity shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code
of Macau Special Administrative Region, the subsidiary
registered in Macau is required to transfer part of its profits
of each accounting period of not less than 25% to legal
reserve, until the amount reaches half of its share capital.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments
designated at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 that are held at the
end of the reporting period.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly represented the capital injection from
the pre-IPO investor during the Group reorganisation in
2017.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

I i5iaE
BaBRIEFASHEATERE &
X A AT A ) A i AR AR 32 AN 93 R 2R A8,
By - 1 ELAR A E A2 KA Ko 40 R0 {5 (2m
BIRR T AR ER -

BRIFA R BN EREE R D IR A
EHRAXNRA %%i%a@&qﬂiﬂ,ﬁﬂﬁ’\]
B - BRITEERRMEERAERS
BRI DRSS

EERE

RIBCRPI S BI 1T R B EH# ) 377
ik PORFIEMOMBARANES S5
HARE S 1 D BB 10 25% B VB VA TE 1t

B BERAERESBEREBRAMNF
gLk e

DABEEME

NAABERE(CTAIELD) BEERE S
RRBEEBMBRELEESR THEER
RARE @.ﬁr)\ﬁﬁﬁiﬁuﬁzﬁnZ%m&
B2 AREBERFFEE -

Hithfi &

HHEEEIEEN T —tFAKEE
?ﬂﬁﬂF‘EJJE HERAREERNREERE

W]Dx
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EZRHMEMARIA

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2022 2021
=—a—— — T4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFMT TR
Trade payables B S ENRIE 125,353 153,548
Salaries payable AN 13,363 12,684
Retention payables EHREB € 24,302 45,732
Accruals and other payables (Note) FERTIA B R EM B RIA (M) 18,142 15,729
181,160 227,693

Note: As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s accruals Kz : RZTE_=ZF+=—RA=+—0 ' ~&£EH

and other payables are the amount of approximately
MOP11,033,000 (2021: MOP6,712,000) received from the
nominated subcontractor as the surety bond, and the amount
of approximately MOP265,000 (2021: MOP3,565,000) withheld
from the payment to subcontractors as the performance bonds
of the building and ancillary services provided to the Group.

The credit period granted to the Group by suppliers/
subcontractors normally ranges from O to 60 days. The ageing

FEETIEE REMENRIBRERIEED S
ﬁ%mﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁmmﬂowom@ﬁ
TT(ZZE=—% : 6,712,000897T) * LAK
ﬁéﬁ@?ﬁ FEFEIEAREFAEER
Eﬁ&m%%ﬁZE%% #7265,0003%F5

TT(ZZF=—%F : 3,665,000 7T) °

HES,/ HDEARTASENEEREEN
FOE60H - RIFZFAHNE ZENFIER

analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date was as BROMTEAT :
follows:

2022 2021
=F== —E-—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
0 to 30 days 0£30H 77,157 111,034
31 to 90 days 31Z290H 26,672 36,438
Over 90 days B0 H 21,524 6,076
125,353 153,548




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Retention payables to subcontractors are interest-free and
payable at the end of the defect liability period of individual
contracts (i.e., one year after completion of respective contract).
All retention payables are expected to be settled within one year
after the expiry date of the defect liability period.

The Group classifies these retention payables as current
because the Group expects to settle them in its normal

operating cycle.

The retention payables by due dates are as follows:

EZRHMEARE =

ENDEANRESAR2EARREE KN
REEEER(BISENERER —F) RN -
BHMARNRE BN REETHERA

B—FNGEE -

AEERZFERNRE S

DERRE AR
AEEEMHERAE LR 2EBHAGEESR -

ENREBSZBHBEMIASWT

2022 2021

== —E-—F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TP

Retention payable of construction BEASOZENRES

contract

Repayable within one year AR—FRNER 2,966 31,568

Repayable more than one year AR—FEER 21,336 14,164

24,302 45,732

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate
their fair values are denominated in the following currencies.

BHREMENFKENRAEREEAAEE
BE - WA TFEREHE -

2022 2021
—2__ T
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
MOP SEPFYIT 168,458 221,123
HK$ BT 12,702 6,570
181,160 227,693
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25

BANK BORROWINGS 25 SRITER
2022 2021
-2 - —F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR T
Secured: BHEA
— Bank overdrafts —RITIBEX 13,641 =
— Bank borrowings —ERITER 86,837 106,981
Unsecured: R
— Bank borrowings —IRITIERK 27,265 23,238
127,743 130,219
The bank borrowings are at floating rates which carry interests at IRITERDIZBFITREERFE - BPIR

MOP best lending rate, MIBOR and HIBOR plus/minus a spread.
The effective interest rate on the Group’s bank borrowings was
5.15% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
3.21% per annum).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were breaches of
financial covenants in the bank borrowings with a total amount
of approximately MOP29,953,000 (2021: MOP75,613,000),
including secured bank overdrafts of approximately
MOP13,641,000 (2021: nil), secured bank borrowings of
approximately MOP13,982,000 (2021: MOP71,130,000) and
unsecured bank borrowings of approximately MOP2,330,000
(2021: MOP4,483,000). These matters triggered cross-defaults
and resulted in certain other bank borrowings of the Group of
approximately MOP12,480,000 (2021: nil) as at 31 December
2022 may become immediate due for repayment if requested
by the bank. Consequently, the entire bank borrowings have
been classified as current liabilities at the end of the reporting
period. The secured bank overdrafts and bank borrowings are
guaranteed by the Company and secured by pledged bank
deposits and property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately MOP50,026,000 (2021: MOP41,811,000) and
MOP9,862,000 (2021: MOP10,229,000) respectively.

TREFE &?’%iﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ B0 REE
MFEBANEGFE -BE_FT-_—_F+_-A
=t HLEFE  ARERTERNERF
MEREA6%(ZTZ—F : FHE3.21%) °

KRB —_FR_FE-_—F+_RA=+—
B -SRI A £ 4929,953,00038FF 7T (=
T — —4F : 75,613,0002 F9 7T ) 15 £ 81 75 32
HEANBR  HRBEERBRITERL
13,641,000 (=2 =—F : &) - i
68 17 12 2 4913,982,00008FI T (=& = —
1 71,130,0008P9 7T ) LA KR I BRI T
ﬁ@z 330,0002FIT(ZZF = —4 : 4,483,000

SRPITT) - BB EMERINEL - WEEAR
%lﬂ_§::¢+:HE+*Hm%¥ﬁ
ftb 88 17 13X 4912,480,00032FF T (= B = —
F ) JREEIRITER AN B HAEE -
ES 1 BfETﬂ%?ﬁxEﬁ/\#&iﬁﬂi{ DEAER
FEE - GEBRTELMBITERBAEAL
AMERRR - WABEBIEITERARDE - B
B REREERE - 255 54 450,026,000
SRS T(=—Z ——4F : 41,811,0008F5 T) &
9,862,00008 P37t ( =Z = — 4 : 10,229,000
SBPITT) ©



25 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the remaining bank borrowings
of approximately MOP85,310,000 (2021: MOP54,606,000)
contain a repayment on demand clause. Out of such amounts,
the bank borrowings of approximately MOP2,432,000 (2021:
MOP2,195,000) and MOP1,756,000 (2021: MOP3,652,000)
that have original contractual repayment due one to two years
and two to five years, respectively were classified as current
liabilities (2021: same).

As at the date of issuance of this annual report, the lenders
have not made any demand for immediate repayment of these
borrowings under the loan facility letters. The management of
the Group has commenced negotiations with the banks for
waivers of the breach of the covenants, and yet obtained such
waivers as at the date of issuance of this annual report.

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair
values and are denominated in the following currencies.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

25 SR{ITER =)

RZE_—_F+=-A=+—8 ' TR
f& 3 4985,310,00038 F T ( =& = — & -
54,606,000/ 97T )i B EREBIER - H
P RAHNEZRED A FERMFERRE
ERFAIRITEFKL2,432,0008F9 (==
——% : 2,195,00032F3 7T ) & 1,756,000 9
TT(—ZF ——4 : 3,652,00002F97T) DB AR
FAGE(ZZE=_—F : fHR) °

RAFRTIBEAH - BHALFRIEE KA
B LR S MR R B -
AR S IR 5 B SR M BLAR T B A4
TR« A ITIR B R RIS A
e o

RITEFNRABEBEEAABERSE - LA
TR E -

2022 2021

it St —T——%F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TSR IT

MOP SBPITT 94,053 83,654
HK$ BT 33,690 46,565
127,743 130,219

The Group’s bank borrowings and other banking facilities

REBRITERREMRTHE (REEDY

(including performance guarantees) had been secured by the
pledge of the Group’s assets and the carrying amounts of the
respective assets are as follows:

ER)DNER AR EE(FRRREREE

MEREELT

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB L& 9,862 10,229
Pledged bank deposits BEHIRIRITER 67,297 48,558
Trade receivables B Z EWGRIA - 10,300
77,159 69,087
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26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 26 #Z¥ERIE|I9HEm T A

BTt AZTALSE

2022 2021
=—a—— — T4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TP
Financial assets ERMEE
At amortised cost REESHP AN GT 2
— Trade receivables — B S EWIE 32,204 42,874
— Deposits and other receivables — & & REMEYRIE 5,026 13,988
— Amount due from a joint operation — U —IAA EEETIE 2,023 1,289
— Pledged bank deposits —BERIRITER 67,297 48,558
— Cash and cash equivalents —RE MIREEEBY 18,915 10,330
125,465 117,039
At fair value BAREBERE
- Equity instrument at FVTOCI —BAAEBEF AEMEEYED
T HE - 3,016
125,465 120,055
Financial liabilities eRaE
At amortised cost R SHR NG T2
— Trade and other payables —B 5 KHEMERFIE 178,157 224,284
— Bank borrowings —iRITIEFR 127,743 130,219
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 5,730 5,208
311,630 359,711
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27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27 BAZHEE

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted, pursuant to a resolution passed on 24 November
2017, for the primary purpose of providing incentives to any full-
time or part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group, including any executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent nonexecutive directors, and any
suppliers, customers, agents, advisors and consultants of the
Group. Unless otherwise terminated or amended, the Scheme
will remain in force for 10 years.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme, and other schemes offered by the Company, as
from the date of adoption of the Scheme, shall not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue on the listing date (i.e. 1,000,000,000
shares). The overall limit on the number of shares which shall
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme, and other schemes
offered by the Company, shall not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares issued, and to be issued, upon exercise of
options granted in accordance with the Scheme to each eligible
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The option shall remain
open for acceptance by the eligible participant for a period of
28 days (exclusive of the date on which the letter containing the
offer is delivered to the participant). HK$1 shall be payable by
the participants on acceptance of the offer of the Option.

The exercisable period of the share options granted is
determinable by the board of directors, but no later than 10
years from the date of grant of the options. The subscription
price for the shares in respect of which options are granted is
determinable by board of directors, but shall be no less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the options, which must be a trading day; (i) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and
(iii) the nominal value of a Company’s share.

AR E R R 8 ([ %581 ) DRIER —
Z—tF+-A-THRBANRBEREK
W EZENRREER TARRRAEH
EAXREAR 2 EA2REFRRBES B
AEBETAATES  FRTESFRBIUF
HITESUAREMAHER - BF (K2 &
RNEAAR - BRIESBRIEHIENR - &5T
BB I0F -

BIEZATE - BRMZAEE BRAREZ
STEI R AR RENEMET S TR EAA
EREBREETEMAIERITHRG BEE
HAB BB ETAEEZETRMHAI10% (D
1,000,000,000 & J& 17 ) o AR IR % T8 KA
A ERENEME SIS E B HRITERET
B H AR R AR AT 8 BT RO R X
B LR NSHAARRD R NREZETRAR
30% o E{E121E B HAR - RIEZEE T
ZEERS2EATHERERTER B
TR TEITHRDEBETESBBARFE
BATIRANE1% - BIRERIHE BB EA LT
ENREIR A28 B (T BIEEE BRI Hx
EEZ2EATEH)  REABREZNE
BEBANTEZMIETT ©

ERBRENTERHNIHESSET @ &
TREXRERLBEREAHEI0F -
REREMP cBRONREEARESSE
T ETMEER TSR ENRSE « ()RED
BREAB(LARRS B )BT HRE
RAEHARRABROUWTE : (REERLE
Pt BRI AER S B e B MERM
AR RIBAD FHWHE « (i) AR B
DEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the scheme during the year nor outstanding at the end of
the reporting period.

As at the date of this report, the total number of outstanding
share options available for grant under the Scheme was
100,000,000 (2021: 100,000,000) shares, which represented
approximately 10% (2021: approximately 10%) of the shares of
the Company in issue as at that date.

28 JOINT OPERATIONS

The following sets out the joint operations indirectly undertaken
by the Company as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

27 BBIcHEETEl 2
RER - BREZHBLEDELY - 1768 -
SN BB ARHE - A SR ER SR AP 4B Y R
B HRERRAE o

RAFHEBH  srEBE T FREZREH
B J% R 48 21 5 100,000,000( — 8 = — £ -
100,000,000) f% * 16 AR B R % B B 217
PDEIHI10%(ZF=—F : £910%) °

28 SEEK
TREJARFTN - E-_—FR T - —4F
+ - A=+—HREERENA L%

% of ownership interest

Country of business/ (Indirect)
Name Principal activities incorporation BEEESE A
2B FEXK £ REM AR FRIEER (R#)
2022 2021
e —E-—&
Consorcio Companhia de Provision of construction Macau, unincorporated 50% 50%
Kin Pang — MC Dynasty services
B —REaEge Rt MRS BFY - 3PEE 50% 50%
Consércio Companhia de Provision of construction Macau, unincorporated 20% 20%
J&T - Kin Pang — MC Dynasty services
FE-ZIE-AEAERE REGEEMRTG RFT - IEEE 20% 20%
Consorcio Companhia de Kin Provision of construction Macau, unincorporated 60% -
Pang - Cheung YB services
B —RESELE R RS BFT - IPEE 60% =
29 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 29 BrEnEfERs
2022 2021
—E_— —EF -4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFT FIRFIT
At the beginning of the year REA] 7 =
Contribution to a newly incorporated — IR B A AL EE
associate 25 7
Reduction as a result of the acquisition  HBE — k& A Bl IR AE 28
of controlling interest in an associate FTEE & B HIDR 3) =
Share of losses HEEE (29) =
At the end of the year RFLL - 7




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BHmRME
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29 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(@ Particulars of the associates are as follows:

29 BtE QRS2

(@) REFBEDRRZFBMOT

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, performance guarantees of
approximately MOP358,807,000 (2021: MOP178,694,000)
were given by a bank in favour of the Group’s customers
as security for the due performance and observance of the
Group’s obligations under the contracts entered into between
the Group and their customers. The Group has indemnified the
bank for any claims from customers under the guarantees due
to the failure of the Group’s performance. The performance
guarantees will be released upon completion of the contract
works. The performance guarantees were granted under the
banking facilities with details as set out in note 25. At as 31
December 2022 and 2021, the management of the Group does
not consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the
Group.

% of voting rights held
% of ownership interest by the Group
Country of business/ (Indirect) (Indirect)
Name Principal activities incorporation WERRREA FREREREER S
8 IERH 215/ SRR AR (Ri&) (Ri&)
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —E--fF —E-C —E--fF
Buildway Development Investment holding Hong Kong 35% 35% 35% 35%
Limited
Buidway Development AR B 35% 35% 35% 35%
Limited
Mutual Reliance Investment holding Hong Kong N/A 35% N/A 35%
Development Limited
RECERERAH REER &b TR 35% TR 35%
Lesso Home Household ~ Trading of construction ~ Macau 20% N/A 20% N/A
Construction Materials, materials
Limited
BARFERNERAT  EEREMH i 20% NER 20% TER
30 CAPITAL COMMITMENT 30 BEAKIE
2022 2021
—F-—F —E-—&
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFIT TR
Capital expenditure in respect of the BEAWEDE  BEMEZEFD
acquisition of property, plant and BRRRERE MmN E 2
equipment contracted for but not BEART
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 1,953 1,112

31 SHARAE

RZEBE-_—_F+-_A=+—8  BITULKE
B = F A= AE T #358,807,00002 P9 7T
(ZZ=——4%F : 178,694,0002F9 7T ) & /B A&
R 1EEAEBZABTTRETAEEEE
BFAINHAHNB N ZEENER - AEH
AEBEFAAEBRBAOMBBEEREHNT
IR RFERTT - BHEREREHTIRET
BRI RRR - BAOERIBERTRERSE
HEHAMES R-E-_—ER T —
F+-A=1+—H AEEETEERA I
EO e AIASEBIRHABRR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;

32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Cash generated from/(used in) operations

F_F -

F+A=1T—HILFE

32 GERERERMEE

(a) EEME (FARE

2022 2021
—g== T
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Loss before income tax BRETIS BRI 18 (9,598) (21,197)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant, and M - BERZETE
equipment 15,056 10,646
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 2,392 2,100
Finance costs 5,162 2,534
Interest income (248) (702)
Gain on lease termination RIS BES (171) =
Amortisation of deferred government iR E U #7 Bh 8
grants (90) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant, LEYE  BEMEENER
and equipment 116 —
Share of results of associates GIES 29 =
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment B SR IEREBE L
losses of trade receivables R (Em) 335 (999)
Provision for impairment losses of BHEERBEEE 2 BE
contract assets 568 2,463
Operating profit/(loss) before HEESEHAICEFES
working capital changes 13,551 (5,155)
Changes in working capital: LBESEE) -
Trade receivables B S EWGRIE 10,335 67,503
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - e RHAREUY
other receivables 27,416 (85,153)
Contract assets 35,815 (125,001)
Amount due from a joint operation FEUL—I8 4 & ¥EI5 708 (734) (1,289
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMERFIE (46,530) 25,163
Contract liabilities 9,584 3,054
Cash generated from/(used in) LEMR (FTR)RE
operations 49,437 (70,878)
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32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continueq)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

This section sets out the movements in liabilities arising

32 FERE

by =1

NLE

RMEE )

(b) MEFBELENSEZHIR

AEEI S 2N FEREETHELEZA

from financing activities for each of the years presented. BEEE) o
Bank Lease Interest

borrowings liabilities payable Total

RITERK HEAE EAFE st

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

TFIRFIT TRFIT FRFITT FIRFITT

(Note 25) (Note 16)
(Kt5£25) (K15t 16)

At 1 January 2021 R —%F

—H—H 28,331 5,592 - 33,923

Financing cash flows RMEBRSMRE 101,888 (2,064) (2,534) 97,290

New leases entered I E - 1,680 = 1,680

Interest expenses MERAXZ - - 2,534 2,534
At 31 December 2021 N-E=-—F

+—A=+—H 130,219 5,208 - 135,427

Financing cash flows MERESRE (2,476) (2,624) (5,162) (10,262)

New leases entered RIMHFEE - 5,939 - 5,939

Lease termination KIFHAE - (2,793) - (2,793)

Interest expenses MEFZ - - 5,162 5,162
At 31 December 2022 R-ETE-—F

+—-—HA=+—H 127,743 5,730 - 133,473

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) Names and relationships with related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the

ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party, to
joint control over the party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operation
decisions, or vice versa.

33 Bl ARS
(a) BB S RIBREAHRER

W— A BN ERIERENS—T7
HREH S - TR S —FERIET B

MU REHEETARE -

BREETT - RZTFR -
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33 BAMIE RS =)

B -—REaEre
Consorcio Companhia de J&T
— Kin Pang — MC Dynasty

(a) Names and relationships with related parties (a) BAEE A BBREHEE 2

(Continued)
The directors of the Company are of the view that the RKATEERA  LUWTFE&H/ATAEN
following parties/companies were related parties with e - —F#x - - —®+—HK
transactions or balances with the Group during the years =+ QI EERAEERAS T 5%
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021: B RAEE T

Name of related parties Relationship with the Group

EAu 5 B 18 RSB IR

Mr. Kong Director and shareholder of the Company

LIS RABEE IR

Ms. Choi Director of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Kong

R+ RNATEE RS BB

Constructor Civil Kong Kin | Entity controlled by Mr. Kong

B BELIEHCER

Consorcio Companhia de Kin Pang A joint operation

— MC Dynasty

—IEARET
A joint operation

PiE-EE-REaERE —IHEEEB
Consorcio Companhia de Kin Pang — Cheung YB A joint operation
ZiE - REAELE —IHEEEB
(b) Transactions and balance with related parties (b) EREA RB RS
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated BRERE TGk At Bl o FT IR B35 ) -
financial statements, the Group has following significant AEEEBABMAEBATEAR G R
transactions and balances with related parties: R
Transactions with related parties EAEAMt S 23X 5
2022 2021
=F-= —E- 4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR

Construction service cost paid/payable to [R1EE{E Z 2L E B R ERE 2

of-use asset and lease liability relating to the lease property
are approximately MOP161,000 (2021: MOP646,000) and
MOP167,000 (2021: MOP655,000) respectively.

Constructor Civil Kong Kin | BT FERT R AR 3,012 2,238
Lease payment of office to Mr. Kong MELERBEX LTI NORAE
and Ms. Choi (Note (i) MERK(HEE))) 507 507
Note: HieE
()  As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the right- ) WM=F-_—_F+-_HA=+—8 #@#AE

MEBBNFERAEEAERAERENIR
EES RIA#161,000RFF T (=B =—
4 : 646,00032F9 7T ) 5 167,000/8 P9 7T
(=ZZ=——4 : 655,0002F97T) °
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33 B ARZ @
(b) BBA RS REER D)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions and balance with related parties
(Continued)
Transactions with related parties (Continued)

The above-mentioned transactions were conducted in
the normal course of business and were charged at terms
mutually agreed by the relevant parties.

EHEAM S 2 X5 (4)

ERRZHELTERFERFET L

1ZAERER T KRB E R FRKE -

Balance with a related party — A BN B AL R
2022 2021
=F-—= —E_—F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Amount due from a joint operation U —IB A &R
- Consorcio Companhia de Kin Pang - —&E—BR=Z4& 1’!55‘“ &
MC Dynasty, non-trade related IEE 5 HH 2,023 1,289
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amount R_EBE-——FR-_FE—-—F+—

of the amount due from a joint operation was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

(c) Key management compensation

The executive directors of the Company are regarded
as key management. Details of the key management
compensation are disclosed in Note 9(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

34 DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been declared or paid by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

(c)

=t—8 BR-EBEELEXHHEANK
HESEEN - 28 MRERERE -

FEEIEASHM
$Qﬂ$ﬂ?ﬁ§$?ﬁ%$%%ﬁ/\% - B
AEZEEABFHOFBREHMH
HRMTTI() TR -

EEREBRTHRABZFHFM I BATMEZ
BEg2REMNALZRREETSBEE

E
34 g2
AATRBE_T-—Ft-A=t+—-A1t

FEMBERIRNKRE(ZT=_—F : #) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE —ZE - —F+-_A=+—HILFE

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35 AT BIRREREEED
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

(a) ADTEBFMRIRR

2022 2021
—ZE_— —E-—F
NOTES MOP'OO_O MOP’000
Kzt TRFMT T8RP IT
ASSETS 'E
Non-current assets FRENEE
Investment in a subsidiaries R—ENBRARRIEE 12,620 12,620
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BAREEFAEMEE
Wamates TH - 3,016
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE O 45,407 42,769
. 58,027 | 58,405
Current assets MEBEE
Prepayments TR RIR 261 388
Bank balances and cash SRR NIRE - 249
. 261 637
Total assets HEE 58,288 59,042
EQUITY RS
Share capital A% 22 10,300 10,300
Reserves G 35(b) 33,082 37,257
Total equity g 43,382 47,557
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables and accruals H A AT FRIE M BT B 1,054 1,194
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A Rl FE 13,852 10,291
Total liabilities HaE 14,906 11,485
Total equity and liabilities HREXREE 58,288 59,042

RRABFBRRNRCEEFEN_F
—=F=-A=1HB#E  XAETIAL
RERE -

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023 and
was signed on its behalf.

)N

Mr. Kong Kin | Ms. Choi Fong Lan
L1t 3ER S #HEBEZL
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEF HITEF
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35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35 AR BIRRERREESE «
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company

(b) ADTMEELE

Share Fair value Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
RAEE
[RiREE fitth Hitifk RitER GL
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT T2 TRMAT TR TRMAT
As at 1 January 2021 R=%-—-%—A—H 80,932 (6,480) (969) (31,496) 41,987
Loss for the year ENEE - - - (3,526) (3,526)
Other comprehensive loss for ~ EREM2 EEE
the year
- (1,204) - - (1,204)
Balances as at 31 December R=F=—F+=f
2021 and 1 January 2022 =+-BR=%F==F
—B—R 248k 80,932 (7,684) (969) (35,022) 37,257
Loss for the year FNEE - - - (4,159) (4,159)
Other comprehensive loss for ~ EREM2 EEE
the year - (16) - - (16)
Release of fair value reserve upon HERLA BB ALl
disposal of equity instrument  Z2EHEAES T A%
at fair value through other IR AR EERE
comprehensive income - 7,700 - (7,700) -
Balance as at 31 December WR=F-"f+ZF
2022 =+—-H2#k 80,932 - (969) (46,881) 33,082
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLFE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—¥—- —T-—F ZEZ-TF ZT-NEF ZT-NF
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT TRMT TRMT TRMT FRMT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(=) (=7) (& =75)

RESULTS ES

Revenue A 598,823 958,955 694,359 342,758 303,020
(Loss)/profit before tax HAT(EE) /i (9,568) (21,197) 16,219 17,536 19,776
Income tax credit/(expense) T3 ®,/(B) (2,043) 417 (3,332) (3,294) (2,941)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),/FHE (11,611) (20,780) 12,887 14,242 16,835

(Loss)/profit for the year T ATEGEEA
attributable to: (E518) /i -
Owners of the Company RAFHERA (11,611) (20,780) 12,887 14,242 16,835

As at 31 December

W+=B=+-—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-= —E-—F —ZE-TEFE —ZE-HhE —ZE)N\E

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFMT TRMT FRFT TRMT TRMT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(=7) (g=7) (& =75)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BER&(E

Total assets REE 534,953 583,440 478,430 366,614 266,620
Total liabilities =R 333,660 370,520 243,526 137,692 52,911
Net assets EEE 201,293 212,920 234,904 228,922 213,709

Equity attributable to owners A AIHEA AJE(GHEZ

of the Company 201,293 212,920 234,904 228,922 213,709
Total equity B 201,293 212,920 234,904 228,922 213,709
/ This report is published in both English and Chinese languages. AN ThLAAR B HIZE o anAh 8 R AR F AT Al
/ Should there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English % * #IAE SR AZE -

versions, the English version shall prevail.

XXX
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